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2022

39,580,219.46 41.47
5,596,225.09 5.86
4,116,089.25 4.31
2,762,861.06 2.89
2,290,758.93 2.40
2,233,666.50 2.34
2,125,618.36 2.23
1,971,578.91 2.07
1,735,674.38 1.82
1,562,932.82 1.64
1,366,915.02 1.43
1,366,777.81 1.43
976,688.12 1.02
966,433.00 1.01
947,306.59 0.99
869,724.24 0.91
857,530.53 0.90
851,891.74 0.89
840,674.96 0.88
734,922.31 0.77
733,890.96 0.77
690,492.40 0.72
616,287.50 0.65
609,375.00 0.64
552,500.00 0.58
505,081.15 0.53
475,140.00 0.50
394,937.50 0.41
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339,840.00 0.36
328,848.46 0.34
327,105.33 0.34
319,366.27 0.33
297,550.50 0.31
287,704.06 0.30
269,013.13 0.28
219,898.75 0.23
216,204.00 0.23
199,727.86 0.21
127,400.00 0.13
93,860.72 0.10
81,358,712.67 85.24
1,211,016.63 1.27
1,545,214.29 1.62
1,771,687.87 1.86
3,207,630.46 3.36
4,979,318.33 5.22
6,353,556.98 6.66
) Q?é?gzé818.90) 100.00
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2022
) (c77) ()
TEVA PHARVACEU 3.1500 [2026/10/ 4,550,000.00 | 0.97 | 4,395,246.37 | 0.90 | 4,116,089.25 | 4.31
3.15 10/26
ﬁfgﬁ EﬁgEgBERG 25,000.00 | 96.18 | 2,404,460.00 | 96.38 | 2,409,500.00 | 2.52
;‘_)SDZ%OR CRED 2.9000 [2028/ /16| 2,550,000.00 [ 0.99 | 2,536,082.31 | 0.87 | 2,226,864.77 | 2.33
?ﬁg’g PLC 5.5 5.5000 [2026/ /15| 1,930,000.00 [ 1.39 | 2,676,434.68 [ 1.03 | 1,990,876.17 | 2.09
Z’Yggt’ﬁ;g“”E 4.6250 [2029/ /15| 2,115,000.00 | 1.03 | 2,171,980.08 | 0.92 | 1,949,384.29 | 2.04
ch 2%2'%5 LLe 4.5000 |2032/ / 2,030,000.00 [ 1.01| 2,050,953.53 | 0.88 | 1,777,681.15 | 1.86
'/;gcs;ﬁffwfﬁg 17,372.00 |111.84 | 1,942,798.61 [101.99 | 1,771,687.87 | 1.86
;Ag XESQS SANDS 3.9000 [2029/ / 1,500,000.00 | 0.91| 1,359,113.65 | 0.89 | 1,341,982.67 | 1.41
gf?gg‘[’%ﬁ%' 3.1250 2031/ /14| 1,605,000.00 [ 1.00 | 1,597,000.78 [ 0.77 | 1,235,538.90 | 1.29
10 gogg g%gR c0 3.2500 [2082/ /12| 1,440,000.00 [ 0.91| 1,312,253.35 | 0.84 | 1,202,400.00 | 1.26
1 ;’zg” LOYALTY 8 8.0000 [2025/ /20| 1,086,000.00 [ 1.04 | 1,128,516.78 | 1.04 | 1,134,859.14 | 1.19
12 ZL_JEQEZ/SEP oF 4.2500 2026/ /14| 1,350,000.00 | 0.88 | 1,190,618.30 | 0.82 | 1,111,098.92 | 1.16
13 gizglﬁs?gm 7.1250 [2026/ /15| 1,103,000.00 [ 1.02 | 1,122,872.99 [ 0.98 | 1,079,410.77 | 1.13
14 g'ggsNgvzngK 3.3750 2026/ /15| 1,520,000.00 [ 0.96 | 1,452,852.89 | 0.70 | 1,071,584.47 | 1.12
15 ;’%BESCROW LTS 5.0000 [2028/ /15| 1,110,000.00 [ 0.99 | 1,094,225.34 | 0.89| 987,641.88 | 1.03
16 g%&%iggm 3.8750 [2028/12/15| 1,130,000.00 [ 0.95 | 1,073,328.77 | 0.87 | 985,466.88 | 1.03
17 Z‘_\SE'QEEQSERV'C 4.2500 [2029/ /15| 1,110,000.00 | 0.97 | 1,071,792.55 | 0.87 | 966,410.49 | 1.01
18 E%QGUAY 2.739 2.7390 [2083/ /29| 1,160,000.00 [ 0.97 | 1,129,454.72 | 0.82| 947,306.59 | 0.99
19 ng Q}S4LEASE co 6.5000 2024/ /15| 1,129,512.00 [ 0.79| 888,005.80 [ 0.77 | 869,724.24 | 0.91
20 \ézlfggURED FINAN 5.0000 [2032/ /15 930,000.00 | 0.99 | 922,197.25 | 0.89| 829,383.30 | 0.87
21 ZugssT%EOM 6.8750 2025/ /28 930,000.00 | 1.00| 927,303.87 | 0.87| 808,111.88 | 0.85
22 QEE'EE/SSANCE 5.5000 [2029/10/15 930,000.00 | 0.99| 917,702.15| 0.86| 803,466.13 | 0.84
23 gﬁggTBkggmBERG 31,697.00 | 25.78 | 817,148.66 | 25.18 |  798,130.46 | 0.84
24 Z?gngﬁgiN“ Lt 4.2500 (20317 / 910,000.00 | 1.02 | 931,541.96 | 0.87 | 789,192.20 | 0.83
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) |¢c/7.7) )
MATCH GROUP 1
25 3.625 10/31 3.6250 |2031/10/ 920,000.00 | 0.89 816,728.40 | 0.85 780,134.58 | 0.82
26 INTESA SANPAOL 4.1980 2032/ / 960,000.00 | 0.87 830,843.57 | 0.77 734,922.31 | 0.77
4.198 6/32
27 TENNECO PACKIN 7.9500 |2025/12/15 800,000.00 | 0.98 784,881.00 | 0.89 714,000.00 | 0.75
7.95 12/25
28 PEVEX MASTER T 6.6250 | 2038/ /15| 1,000,000.00 [ 0.86 862,209.84 | 0.71 710,000.00 | 0.74
6.625 6/38
29 gé;i?gg ISSUER 3.6071 | 2035/ /16 764,000.00 | 1.13 861,871.57 | 0.91 697,283.88 | 0.73
30 %ggorzp 5.2 5.2500 | 2029/ /27 730,000.00 | 0.97 708,825.97 | 0.95 690,492.40 | 0.72
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2022
2022
2022

2013 403,325,905.90 54,292 7.99 1,076
2014 261,783,217.39 35,239 6.49 874
2015 117,533,637.50 15,821 3.92 528
2016 85,645,607.10 11,529 3.09 416
2017 87,426,829.79 11,769 3.96 533
2018 77,901,344.79 10,486 3.74 503
2019 60,762,139.45 8,179 3.11 419

10
2020 38,133,577.58 5,133 2.03 273

11
2021 37,317,516.60 5,023 2.00 269

12
2022 37,212,617.02 5,009 2.17 292
2021 39,208,725.16 5,278 2.21 297
36,237,290.95 4,878 2.04 275
10 34,510,360.89 4,645 1.95 262
11 33,061,317.04 4,450 1.90 256
12 33,518,882.03 4,512 1.95 262
2022 34,184,456.35 4,602 1.99 268
34,483,635.41 4,642 2.02 272
37,212,617.02 5,009 2.17 292
33,982,742.48 4,574 1.99 268
35,295,798.88 4,751 2.07 279
29,134,105.90 3,922 1.71 230
30,691,962.04 4,131 1.82 245
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2013 175,305,475.69 23,598 9.20 1,238

2014 74,256,153.53 9,996 7.99 1,076

2015 54,146,652.95 7,289 5.84 786

2016 41,589,849.10 5,598 5.11 688

2017 33,348,364.89 4,489 5.43 731

2018 35,283,254.87 4,749 4.92 662

2019 28,697,314.48 3,863 4.62 622
10

2020 20,359,625.06 2,741 3.54 477
11

2021 23,689,835.20 3,189 4.48 603
12

2022 20,308,312.29 2,734 4.08 549

2021 23,664,595.87 3,185 4.61 621

23,051,531.81 3,103 4.53 610

10 22,806,849.56 3,070 4.51 607

11 22,215,044.53 2,990 4.34 584

12 22,079,428.11 2,972 4.41 594

2022 21,306,629.52 2,868 4.24 571

20,666,845.57 2,782 4.14 557

20,308,312.29 2,734 4.08 549

19,242,202.10 2,590 3.87 521

18,700,474.74 2,517 3.77 507

16,406,890.52 2,209 3.36 452

17,153,880.88 2,309 3.52 474
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2013 71,583,867.69 9,636 10.55 1,420

2014 90,885,645.24 12,234 10.37 1,396

2015 100,154,244 83 13,482 9.24 1,244

2016 80,275,269.89 10,806 7.90 1,063

2017 71,877,177.61 9,675 8.35 1,124

2018 46,263,397.95 6,228 7.83 1,054

2019 33,164,634.90 4,464 7.48 1,007
10

2020 26,106,855.30 3,514 6.39 860
11

2021 30,874,489.34 4,156 7.02 945
12

2022 28,272,480.41 3,806 6.23 839

2021 30,814,054.85 4,148 7.03 946

30,956,475.02 4,167 6.92 932

10 30,130,806.96 4,056 6.81 917

11 29,249,587.17 3,937 6.63 892

12 29,571,503.92 3,981 6.69 901

2022 29,053,876.78 3,911 6.48 872

28,643,144.30 3,856 6.32 851

28,272,480.41 3,806 6.23 839

27,066,099.91 3,643 5.97 804

26,509,731.42 3,568 5.85 787

24,110,284.01 3,245 5.34 719

24,838,184.60 3,343 5.59 752
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2013 2,469,249.26 405 10.44 1,711

2014 2,233,895.42 366 10.26 1,681

2015 2,801,781.61 459 9.15 1,499

2016 1,593,587.84 261 7.79 1,276

2017 2,807,992.08 460 8.19 1,342

2018 3,358,308.87 550 7.55 1,237

2019 1,284,241.84 210 7.06 1,157
10

2020 1,827,007.89 299 6.04 990
11

2021 934,115.25 153 6.80 1,114
12

2022 357,672.96 59 6.22 1,019

2021 610,837.29 100 6.90 1,131

603,235.15 99 6.80 1,114

10 392,683.53 64 6.72 1,101

11 383,083.27 63 6.55 1,073

12 387,468.80 63 6.63 1,086

2022 376,604.26 62 6.44 1,055

362,046.03 59 6.30 1,032

357,672.96 59 6.22 1,019

317,774.76 52 5.99 982

311,838.98 51 5.88 963

261,032.08 43 5.37 880

267,919.12 44 5.64 924
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2013 7.471,538,004 10,544

-~y 5,826,345,309 10,330

2015 8,582,166, 655 9,169

2016 6,750,721,735 7,776

2017 6,717.770,631 8,061

2018 3,270,576,807 7.371

2015 2,035,134,083 6,827

10 1,227.942,648 5.842
2020 227,942, ;

11 1,183,014, 340 6,569
2021 7 ] 7 7

12 910,223,640 5,993
2022 1223, ’

2021 1.207.553,890 6,651

1.132,779.502 6,559

10 1.134,092,793 6.474

11 1,088,528,703 6.315

12 1,058,234,855 6,385

2022 1.016,182,477 6,201

993,441,492 6,059

910,223,640 5,993

842,502,865 5.772

814,432,715 5,658

742.119,287 5,152

793,352,478 5.401
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2013 34,904,429.46 4,698 9.67 1,302

2014 21,303,805.03 2,868 8.61 1,159

2015 32,060,682.97 4,316 4.81 647

2016 26,896,449.12 3,621 3.76 506

2017 62,923,858.66 8,470 4.96 668

2018 38,909,270.53 5,238 4.80 646

2019 23,759,667.35 3,198 4.06 547
10

2020 13,378,547.72 1,801 2.91 392
11

2021 13,813,780.93 1,859 3.20 431
12

2022 5,476,017.40 737 2.31 311

2021 13,222,872.83 1,780 3.29 443

12,886,128.59 1,735 3.26 439

10 11,896,284.21 1,601 3.30 444

11 10,993,933.26 1,480 3.06 412

12 10,577,035.03 1,424 3.08 415

2022 9,954,130.81 1,340 2.88 388

7,015,346.77 944 2.05 276

5,476,017.40 737 2.31 311

5,216,503.67 702 2.56 345

5,475,758.97 737 3.10 417

4,851,109.01 653 3.46 466

3,666,866.24 494 3.25 437
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2013 23,414,998.54 3,152 9.19 1,237

2014 16,607,832.15 2,236 7.48 1,007

2015 5,943,175.49 800 5.46 735

2016 4,455,616.89 600 4.51 607

2017 8,560,308.84 1,152 3.91 526

2018 49,616,522.31 6,679 3.62 487

2019 31,130,142.62 4,190 2.65 357
10

2020 20,571,479.54 2,769 2.15 289
11

2021 15,638,266.87 2,105 2.02 272
12

2022 6,834,790.67 920 1.05 141

2021 16,362,124.26 2,203 2.09 281

13,435,983.84 1,809 1.94 261

10 12,663,071.73 1,705 1.78 240

11 9,134,677.97 1,230 1.31 176

12 8,289,467.84 1,116 1.27 171

2022 7,770,956.68 1,046 1.20 162

7,072,343.21 952 1.09 147

6,834,790.67 920 1.05 141

6,533,429.07 879 1.00 135

5,771,529.06 777 0.88 118

5,321,956.53 716 0.81 109

5,077,179.09 683 0.77 104
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2013 2.136,192.87 288 7.44 1,001

-y 474,215.45 64 6.10 821

2015 806, 65749 109 4.58 617

2016 54265049 73 3.24 436

2017 650,626.98 88 3.88 522

2018 1,256,946.96 169 4.37 588

2015 1,120,824.54 151 3.57 481

10 731,877.69 99 2.49 335
2020 877 .

11

o001 627,948.68 85 3.34 450

12 502,578.95 68 3.07 413
2022 ,578. '

2021 664,170.62 89 3.45 464

535,940.91 72 3.27 440

10 523.316.85 70 3.19 429

11 484,273.01 65 2.96 398

12 490,167.61 66 2.99 402

2022 492,653.78 66 3.01 405

481,306.82 65 2.94 396

502,578.95 68 3.07 413

439,231.66 59 2.68 361

443,319.36 60 2.71 365

38419509 52 2.35 316

395.567.50 53 2.41 324
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2014 25,684,631.66 3,457 10.24 1,378

2015 20,168,131.42 2,715 7.61 1,024

2016 7,797,564.86 1,050 5.78 778

2017 14,153,716.71 1,905 5.60 754

2018 17,344,361.70 2,335 5.64 759

2019 14,376,001.48 1,935 5.25 707
10

2020 7,687,032.62 1,035 3.83 516
11

2021 9,185,622.29 1,236 4.98 670
12

2022 8,095,148.59 1,090 4.70 633

2021 9,286,893.01 1,250 5.15 693

8,553,517.76 1,151 4.96 668

10 8,449,813.72 1,137 4.90 660

11 7,880,523.33 1,061 4.56 614

12 8,349,135.40 1,124 4.86 654

2022 8,136,325.12 1,095 4.70 633

8,041,777.68 1,083 4.64 625

8,095,148.59 1,090 4.70 633

7,207,810.03 970 4.38 590

7,189,208.51 968 4.50 606

6,222,759.70 838 4.03 542

6,246,228.59 841 4.20 565
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2014 2,064,126.13 194 10.24 965

2015 1,171,409.50 110 9.91 934

2016 4,736,159.67 446 8.37 788

2017 5,257,893.85 495 8.71 820

2018 3,824,743.75 360 7.99 753

2019 3,242,430.09 305 7.41 698
10

2020 2,418,673.89 228 6.27 591
11

2021 2,389,307.36 225 6.95 655
12

2022 1,787,665.97 168 6.26 590

2021 2,312,262.08 218 7.00 659

2,282,385.24 215 6.89 649

10 2,128,015.66 200 6.80 641

11 1,824,121.93 172 6.63 625

12 1,848,202.61 174 6.70 631

2022 1,796,998.05 169 6.50 612

1,807,073.98 170 6.34 597

1,787,665.97 168 6.26 590

1,723,304.98 162 6.02 567

1,692,481.62 159 5.89 555

1,459,869.42 138 5.37 506

1,534,393.50 145 5.63 530
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1.56 210 1.20 162
1.47 198 1.20 162
1.20 162 1.20 162
0.58 78 0.70 94
0.36 48 0.60 81
0.36 48 0.60 81
0.34 46 0.58 78
10 0.24 32 10 0.48 65
11 0.24 32 11 0.48 65
12 0.24 32 12 0.48 65
2021 0.02 2021 0.04
0.02 0.04
10 0.02 10 0.04
11 0.02 11 0.04
12 0.02 12 0.04
2022 0.02 2022 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04
0.02 0.04

2022 8.62 2022 9.18
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0.72 97 0.72 118
0.72 97 0.72 118
0.72 97 0.72 118
0.72 97 0.72 118
0.72 97 0.72 118
0.72 97 0.72 118
0.70 94 0.66 108
10 0.60 81 10 0.36 59
11 0.60 81 11 0.36 59
12 0.60 81 12 0.36 59
2021 0.05 2021 0.03
0.05 0.03
10 0.05 10 0.03
11 0.05 11 0.03
12 0.05 12 0.03
2022 0.05 2022 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03
0.05 0.03

2022 7.92 2022 7.08
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720 0.96 129
720 0.96 129
720 0.96 129
720 0.67 90
720 0.48 65
720 0.48 65
660 0.48 65
10 360 10 0.48 65
11 360 11 0.48 65
12 360 12 0.48 65
2021 30 2021 0.04
30 0.04
10 30 10 0.04
11 30 11 0.04
12 30 12 0.04
2022 30 2022 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04
30 0.04

2022 7,080 2022 7.15
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1.32 178 1.08 145
1.26 170 1.02 137
1.08 145 0.84 113
0.63 85 0.50 67
0.48 65 0.36 48
0.48 65 0.36 48
0.46 62 0.36 48
10 0.36 48 10 0.36 48
11 0.36 48 11 0.36 48
12 0.36 48 12 0.36 48
2021 0.03 2021 0.03
0.03 0.03
10 0.03 10 0.03
11 0.03 11 0.03
12 0.03 12 0.03
2022 0.03 2022 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03
0.03 0.03

2022 7.68 2022 6.35
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0.45 61 0.40 38
1.08 145 0.32 30
0.69 93 0.96 90
0.60 81 0.96 90
0.60 81 0.96 90
0.58 78 0.88 83
10 0.48 65 10 0.48 45
11 0.48 65 11 0.48 45
12 0.48 65 12 0.48 45
2021 0.04 2021 0.04
0.04 0.04
10 0.04 10 0.04
11 0.04 11 0.04
12 0.04 12 0.04
2022 0.04 2022 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04
0.04 0.04

2022 5.60 2022 6.08
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2012 2013 31 6.23
2013 2014 31 0.38
2014 2015 31 21.11
2015 2016 31 6.38
2016 2017 31 39.81
2017 2018 31 3.54
2018 2019 31 775
2019 - 2000 31 27.01
w20 oo 31 10.34
oo oo 31 2050
2012 2013 31 9.24
2013 2014 31 0.11
2014 2015 31 11.89
2015 2016 31 0.51
2016 2017 31 18-00
2017 2018 31 1.66
2018 2019 31 5-69
2019 - 2000 31 12.99
w20 oo 31 40.11
o2 oo 31 1.79
2012 2013 31 12.14
2013 2014 31 5.12
2014 2015 31 3.95
2015 2016 31 6.71
2016 2017 31 14.81
2017 2018 31 2-40
2018 2019 31 4.41
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010 2000 31 6.55
1 19.25
2020 2021 31
o oo 31 271
2012 2013 31 10.93
2013 2014 31 5.17
2014 2015 31 3.80
2015 2016 31 6.99
2016 2017 31 14.38
2017 2018 31 0.98
2018 2019 31 2-25
010 2000 31 9.35
1 18.54
2020 2021 31
o oo 31 3.24
2012 2013 31 13.01
2013 2014 31 4-80
2014 2015 31 4.21
2015 2016 31 /.34
2016 2017 31 12.92
2017 2018 31 0.37
2018 2019 31 1.57
010 2000 31 9.15
1 18.61
2020 2021 31
o oo 31 3.29
2012 2013 31 11.78
2013 2014 31 1.03
2014 2015 31 32.98
2015 2016 31 7-90
2016 2017 31 44.68
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2017 2018 31 6.45
2018 2019 31 5.42
010 2000 31 16.50
o0 oo 31 26.46
o oo 31 12.81
2012 2013 31 15.75
2013 2014 31 490
2014 2015 31 12.57
2015 2016 31 5-86
2016 2017 31 2-66
2017 2018 31 4-86
2018 2019 31 14.09
010 2000 31 5-28
1 10.70
2020 2021 31
o oo 31 30.20
2012 2013 31 1.50
2013 2014 31 4-30
2014 2015 31 11.15
2015 2016 31 18.34
2016 2017 31 30.86
2017 2018 31 21.91
2018 2019 31 10.07
010 2000 31 2017
o0 oo 31 48.59
o oo 31 2-69
2013 27 2014 31 6.90
2014 2015 31 15.14
2015 2016 31 14.98
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2016 2017 31 7-27
2017 2018 31 11.43
2018 2019 31 3.37
010 2000 31 17-90
o0 oom 31 42.56
o o 31 4.02
2013 27 2014 31 6.40
2014 2015 31 0.10
2015 2016 31 5-85
2016 2017 31 15.53
2017 2018 31 2-16
2018 2019 31 3.75
010 2000 31 8.91
1 18.50
2020 2021 31
o oo 31 3.02
100x
10.00 10.00

10.00
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31,319,297 16,063,199 50,714,502

31,319,297 16,063,199 50,714,502

16,690,152 27,097,896 40,306,758

16,690,152 27,097,896 40,306,758

8,112,457 18,404,095 30,015,120

8,112,457 18,404,095 30,015,120

4,797,008 7,206,117 27,704,277

4,797,008 7,206,117 27,704,277

1,263,489 6,896,524 22,071,242

1,263,489 6,896,524 22,071,242

2,467,571 3,696,913 20,841,900

2,467,571 3,696,913 20,841,900

1,610,704 2,925,782 19,526,822

1,610,704 2,925,782 19,526,822

10 2,588,887 3,296,354 18,819,355
2,588,887 3,296,354 18,819,355

11 960,488 1,200,718 18,579,125
960,488 1,200,718 18,579,125

12 380,248 1,846,372 17,113,001
380,248 1,846,372 17,113,001

4,277,418 13,031,557 19,039,944

4,277,418 13,031,557 19,039,944

1,825,697 11,569,540 9,296,101

1,825,697 11,569,540 9,296,101

2,657,514 2,680,068 9,273,547

2,657,514 2,680,068 9,273,547

1,130,217 2,265,433 8,138,331

1,130,217 2,265,433 8,138,331

547,230 2,565,597 6,119,964

547,230 2,565,597 6,119,964

2,833,587 1,787,223 7,166,328

2,833,587 1,787,223 7,166,328

459,478 1,360,969 6,264,837

459,478 1,360,969 6,264,837

10 166,298 671,985 5,759,150
166,298 671,985 5,759,150

11 163,683 636,344 5,286,489
163,683 636,344 5,286,489

12 278,490 584,903 4,980,076
278,490 584,903 4,980,076
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6,733,018 3,514,293 6,861,178
6,733,018 3,514,293 6,861,178
6,133,209 4,233,635 8,760,752
6,133,209 4,233,635 8,760,752
7,630,294 5,552,523 10,838,523
7,630,294 5,552,523 10,838,523
5,085,815 5,759,342 10,164,996
5,085,815 5,759,342 10,164,996
1,518,677 3,080,619 8,603,054
1,518,677 3,080,619 8,603,054
665,002 3,361,051 5,907,005
665,002 3,361,051 5,907,005
194,574 1,667,146 4,434,433
194,574 1,667,146 4,434,433
10 96,405 442,234 4,088,604
96,405 442,234 4,088,604
11 614,368 304,034 4,398,938
614,368 304,034 4,398,938
12 613,545 471,555 4,540,928
613,545 471,555 4,540,928
156,218 433,450 236,460
156,218 433,450 236,460
40,555 59,279 217,736
40,555 59,279 217,736
206,179 117,757 306,158
206,179 117,757 306,158
5,182 106,785 204,555
5,182 106,785 204,555
261,657 123,152 343,060
261,657 123,152 343,060
474,032 372,133 444,959
474,032 372,133 444,959
1,675 264,823 181,811
1,675 264,823 181,811
10 145,731 25,209 302,333
145,731 25,209 302,333
11 14,316 179,239 137,410
14,316 179,239 137,410
12 599 80,531 57,478
599 80,531 57,478
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593,480 236,941 710,682
593,480 236,941 710,682
314,961 461,595 564,049
314,961 461,595 564,049
745,772 373,856 935,965
745,772 373,856 935,965
287,467 355,320 868,112
287,467 355,320 868,112
184,299 219,082 833,329
184,299 219,082 833,329
52,848 442,495 443,682
52,848 442,495 443,682
20,017 165,599 298,100
20,017 165,599 298,100
10 10,078 97,980 210,198
10,078 97,980 210,198
1 13,514 43,609 180,103
13,514 43,609 180,103
1 11,568 39,800 151,871
11,568 39,800 151,871
3,570,981 260,438 3,722,652
3,570,981 260,438 3,722,652
1,664,875 2,914,157 2,473,370
1,664,875 2,914,157 2,473,370
6,187,869 1,996,723 6,664,516
6,187,869 1,996,723 6,664,516
4,665,568 4,223,444 7,154,700
4,665,568 4,223,444 7,154,700
9,133,723 3,598,999 12,689,424
9,133,723 3,598,999 12,689,424
2,361,878 6,951,855 8,099,447
2,361,878 6,951,855 8,099,447
1,331,760 3,638,412 5,792,795
1,331,760 3,638,412 5,792,795
10 659,361 1,849,095 4,603,061
659,361 1,849,095 4,603,061
1 450,019 740,800 4,312,280
450,019 740,800 4,312,280
B 146,145 2,086,294 2,372,131
146,145 2,086,294 2,372,131
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1,986,605 1,347,398 2,530,217
1,986,605 1,347,398 2,530,217
1,317,911 1,628,716 2,219,412
1,317,911 1,628,716 2,219,412
130,676 1,262,091 1,087,997
130,676 1,262,091 1,087,997
551,906 651,922 987,981
551,906 651,922 987,981
1,362,293 160,564 2,189,710
1,362,293 160,564 2,189,710
13,648,610 2,118,426 13,719,894
13,648,610 2,118,426 13,719,894
2,671,334 4,730,071 11,661,157
2,671,334 4,730,071 11,661,157
10 1,206,859 3,336,596 9,531,420
1,206,859 3,336,596 9,531,420
1 207,547 1,983,770 7,755,197
207,547 1,983,770 7,755,197
1 1,071,591 2,320,326 6,506,462
1,071,591 2,320,326 6,506,462
198,256 147,711 275,613
198,256 147,711 275,613
30,700 228,563 77,750
30,700 228,563 77,750
125,024 26,766 176,008
125,024 26,766 176,008
2,056 10,494 167,570
2,056 10,494 167,570
0 0 167,570
0 0 167,570
141,683 21,685 287,568
141,683 21,685 287,568
26,592 0 314,160
26,592 0 314,160
10 14,030 34,571 293,619
14,030 34,571 293,619
1 52,807 158,619 187,807
52,807 158,619 187,807
1 4,660 28,641 163,826
4,660 28,641 163,826
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2,556,246 47,296 2,508,950
2,556,246 47,296 2,508,950
1,224,767 1,083,941 2,649,776
1,224,767 1,083,941 2,649,776
144,163 1,443,747 1,350,192
144,163 1,443,747 1,350,192
1,765,409 588,624 2,526,977
1,765,409 588,624 2,526,977
2,572,857 2,023,423 3,076,411
2,572,857 2,023,423 3,076,411
558,499 896,368 2,738,542
558,499 896,368 2,738,542
10 617,271 1,348,773 2,007,040
617,271 1,348,773 2,007,040
11 95,962 258,470 1,844,532
95,962 258,470 1,844,532
12 78,519 199,656 1,723,395
78,519 199,656 1,723,395

434,018 232,493 201,524

434,018 232,493 201,524

118,715 201,524 118,175

118,715 201,524 118,175

497,582 50,137 565,619

497,582 50,137 565,619

293,741 255,907 603,454

293,741 255,907 603,454

243,445 367,919 478,980

243,445 367,919 478,980

55,162 96,623 437,519

55,162 96,623 437,519

10 5,952 57,679 385,792
5,952 57,679 385,792

11 42,181 84,332 343,641
42,181 84,332 343,641

12 21,949 79,955 285,635
21,949 79,955 285,635

2013
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2022 31
2022 31
108,851,420 102,985,148 13,862,831
1,942,798 2,054,464 276,551
6,994,432 941,520
449,397 459,730 61,884
860,480 115,829
6,328,183 851,837
1,175,932 158,292
488,404 65,744
5,235 705
82,708 11,133
121,434,716 16,346,327
3,888,078 523,374
393,850 53,016
491,002 66,094
434,282 58,459
214,670 28,897
5,421,882 729,840
116,012,834 15,616,488
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37,212,618 17,113,001 2.175 293
7,499,268 151,871 49.379 6,647
470,932 57,478 8.193 1,103
28,272,481 4,540,928 6.226 838
20,308,313 4,980,076 4.078 549
5,474,517 2,372,131 2.308 311
6,834,791 6,506,462 1.051 141
502,579 163,826 3.068 413
8,094,890 1,723,395 4.697 632
1,342,445 285,635 4.700 633

145/342



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 31

6,955,329 936,257
23,141 55,376 7,454
7,010,705 943,711
1,083,072 145,792
947,688 127,568
112,030 15,080
67,692 9,112
46,300 6,232
25,000 3,365
22,138 2,980
9,098 1,225
60,378 8,127
2,373,396 319,483
4,637,309 624,228
2,467,063 332,001
(28,121) (3,785)
(2.315,829) (311,734)
123,113 16,572
(11,035,618) (1,485,505)
(90,782) (12,220)
(20,099) (2,706)
6,707,733 902,928
(4,438,766) (597,502)
(4,315,653) (580, 930)
321,656 43,298
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2022

31
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4,637,309 624,228
123,113 16,572
(4,438,766) (597,502)
321,656 43,298
(4,246,736) (571,653)
(562,409) (75,706)
(36,986) (4,979)
(2.646,354) (356,226)
(2,454,302) (330,374)
(1,797,336) (241,939)
(2,607,675) (351,019)
(63,853) (8,595)
(853,287) (114,861)
(111,413) (14,997)
(15,380,351) (2,070,349)
(13,789,181) (1,856,162)
(28,847,876) (3,883,213)
144,860,710 19,499,700
116,012,834 15,616,488
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— 98,617,239 800,818 99,418,057
— 2,422,298 — 2,422,298
— — 313,064 313,064
831,729 — — 831,729
— 6,328,183 — 6,328,183
— — — 2,054,464
831,729 107,367,720 1,113,882 111,367,795
— 3,888,078 — 3,888,078
2022 31
2022 31
2022 31
2021 31 2022 31
2,145,246 — — — (90,782) 2,054,464
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2022 31
2022 31
0.70
0.01 15,000
30
0.02 15 0.0125 45 0.0050
45,000

10,000
8,400
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0.80
0.05
2022 31
2022 31
380,248 805,075 11,568 686,647 599 5,684 613,545 4,220,853
(1,846,372)  (3,890,575) (39,800)  (2,209,275) (80,531) (754,328) (471,555)  (3,287,889)
(1,466,124)  (3,085,500) (28,232)  (1,522,628) (79,932) (748,644) 141,990 932,964
278,490 1,245,080 146,145 456,770 1,071,591 1,630,785 4,660 17,057
(584,903)  (2,612,253)  (2,086,294)  (5,376,059)  (2,320,326)  (3,713,198) (28,641) (97,378)
(306,413)  (1,367,173)  (1,940,149)  (4,919,289)  (1,248,735)  (2,082,413) (23,981) (80,321)
78,519 377,474 21,949 107,671 2,607,314 9,553,096
(199, 656) (993, 386) (79,955) (407,936)  (7,738,033) (23,342,277)
(121,137) (615,912) (58,006) (300,265)  (5,130,719) (13,789,181)
10
2022 31
2.003 59.444 9.380 7.019 4.481
a 0.070 1.991 0.317 0.234 0.152
0.342 (8.847) (1.011) (0.427) (0.075)
0.412 (6.856) (0.694) (0.193) 0.077
(0.240) (3-209) (0.493) (0.600) (0.480)
2.175 49.379 8.193 6.226 4.078
@ 20.57 (11.53) (7.40) (2.75) 1.72
1.73 1.77 1.75 1.76 1.75
3.37 3.45 3.42 3.44 3.42
2022 31
3.203 2.017 3.344 4.980 5.296
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0.108 0.061 0.111 0.169 0.173
(0.523) (0.667) (0.027) 0.028 (0.414)
(0.415) (0.606) 0.084 0.197 (0.241)
(0.480) (0.360) (0.360) (0.480) (0.355)
2.308 1.051 3.068 4.697 4.700
(12.96) (30.04) 2.51 3.96 (4.55)
1.76 1.79 1.74 1.75 1.75
3.45 3.52 3.39 3.41 3.58
31
a
6,328,183
a
3,888,078
31
(2,315,829)
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6,707,733

2022 31

a (113,665,014)
e 205,659,123
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12
2022 31
6,328,183 3,888,078
6,328,183 3,888,078
()

Citibank, N.A. @ 221,474 (199) — 221,275
Goldman Sachs International(® 1,652,622 (1,652,622) — —
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. @ 576,460 (239,550) — 336,910
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc® 3,545,404 (630,236) — 2,915,168
UBS AG™® 332,223 (332,223) — —
6,328,183 (2,854,830) — 3,473,353

¢!

@

()

Citibank, N.A.® 199 (199) — —
Goldman Sachs International® 2,400,012 (1,652,622) — 747,390
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.® 239,550 (239,550) — —
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc® 630,236 (630,236) — —
UBS AG®™ 618,081 (332,223) — 285,858
3,888,078 (2,854,830) — 1,033,248
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2022 31
*
- 85.7%
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
$ 375,000 Angolan Government International Bond 144A 8.250% 2028 5 9 374,449 382,969
374,449 382,969
- 2.8%
- 0.3%
380,000 Pampa Energia SA 144A 7.500 2027 1 24 378,115 330,419
- 0.6%
330,000 YPF SA 144A 8.500 2025 7 28 315,678 280,912
452,780 YPF SA 144A 4.000 2026 2 12 394,247 405,972
709,925 686,884
- 0.5%
720,000 Transportadora de Gas del Sur SA 144A 6.750 2025 5 2 696,997 655,200
- 0.6%
Provincia de Buenos Aires/Government Bonds 144A
732,458 MTN 3.900 2037 9 1 339,703 314,952
560,000 Provincia de Cordoba 144A 5.000 2027 6 1 356,856 366,806
696,559 681,758
- 0.8%
166,198 Argentine Republic Government International Bond 1.000 2029 7 9 102,001 57,172
Argentine Republic Government International Bond
750,589 0.500 2030 7 9 434,219 253,324
Argentine Republic Government International Bond
1,901,310 1.125 2035 7 9 968,272 583,702
1,504,492 894,198
3,986,088 3,248,459
- 0.3%
- 0-3%
200,000 Bahamas Government International Bond 144A 5.750 2024 1 16 192,604 181,029
250,000 Bahamas Government International Bond 144A 6.950 2029 11 20 258,342 203,627
450,946 384,656
450,946 384,656
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
370,000 Bahrain Government International Bond 144A 6.000 2044 9 19 347,131 325,118
347,131 325,118
- 2.0%
- 2.0%
480,000 Viking Cruises Ltd. 144A 7.000 2029 2 15 480,000 442,424
750,000 Viking Ocean Cruises Ship VII Ltd. 144A 5.625 2029 2 15 759,468 685,496
1,310,000 VOC Escrow Ltd. 144A 5.000 2028 2 15 1,289,834 1,219,831
2,529,302 2,347,751
2,529,302 2,347,751
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- 0.6%
- 0.6%
730,000 B3 SA - Brasil Bolsa Balcao 144A 4.125% 2031 9 20 719,056 655,819
719,056 655,819
- 2.0%
- - 0-2%
280,000 ATS Automation Tooling Systems Inc. 144A 4.125 2028 12 15 281,034 263,523
- 0.3%
330,000 First Quantum Minerals Ltd. 144A 6.875 2027 10 15 330,000 345,114
- 0.2%
200,000 MEG Energy Corp. 144A 5.875 2029 2 1 200,000 202,757
- 0.1%
160,000 Cascades Inc./Cascades USA Inc. 144A 5.375 2028 1 15 160,000 160,379
- 0.2%
170,000 Bausch Health Cos. Inc. 144A 6.125 2027 2 1 170,000 171,251
- 1.0%
1,210,000 1011778 BC ULC/New Red Finance Inc. 144A 3.500 2029 2 15 1,210,084 1,118,030
2,351,118 2,261,054
- 5.2%
- 1.0%
Spirit Loyalty Cayman Ltd./Spirit IP Cayman Ltd.
1,086,000 144A 8.000 2025 9 20 1,131,832 1,158,241
- 0.9%
1,129,512 Global Aircraft Leasing Co. Ltd. PIK 144A 6.500 2024 9 15 858,318 1,027,257
- 3.1%
740,000 Melco Resorts Finance Ltd. 144A 5.375 2029 12 4 712,182 627,150
640,000 MGM China Holdings Ltd. 144A 4.750 2027 2 1 639,837 562,951
300,000 Sands China Ltd. 5.400 2028 8 8 312,610 295,386
650,000 Sands China Ltd. 144A 3.250 2031 8 8 631,148 527,732
400,000 Wynn Macau Ltd. 144A 5.500 2027 10 1 377,338 346,000
740,000 Wynn Macau Ltd. 144A 5.625 2028 8 26 752,241 644,266
770,000 Wynn Macau Ltd. 144A 5.125 2029 12 15 748,301 654,080
4,173,657 3,657,565
- 0.2%
250,000 China SCE Group Holdings Ltd. 6.000 2026 2 4 245,458 121,250
500,000 Yuzhou Group Holdings Co. Ltd. 6.000 2023 10 25 473,354 72,500
718,812 193,750
6,882,619 6,036,813
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
430,000 Colombia Government International Bond 3.125 2031 4 15 392,973 364,103
392,973 364,103
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
250,000 Costa Rica Government International Bond 144A 7.000 2044 4 4 242,883 246,333
242,883 246,333
-1.3%
-1.3%
280,000 Dominican Republic International Bond 144A 5.500 2029 2 22 280,000 277,479
640,000 Dominican Republic International Bond 144A 4.500 2030 1 30 646,446 590,568
300,000 Dominican Republic International Bond 144A 6.000 2033 2 22 282,795 292,845
320,000 Dominican Republic International Bond 144A 6.850 2045 1 27 325,867 318,867
1,535,108 1,479,759
1,535,108 1,479,759
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- 0-4%
- 0.4%
$ 650,000 Ecuador Government International Bond 144A 1.000% 2035 7 31 313,092 425,726
313,092 425,726
- 1.1%
- 1.1%
200,000 Egypt Government International Bond 6.588 2028 2 21 208,173 185,404
680,000 Egypt Government International Bond 144A MTN 3.875 2026 2 16 668,736 612,000
510,000 Egypt Government International Bond 144A MTN 7.600 2029 3 1 510,000 485,775
1,386,909 1,283,179
1,386,909 1,283,179
- 0.9%
- 0.2%
EUR 180,000 Burger King France SAS 4.750 2026 11 1 209,637 200,123
- 0.7%
930,000 Altice France SA/France 144A 5.500 2029 10 15 917,245 835,351
1,126,882 1,035,474
- 1.2%
- 0.4%
EUR 450,000 APCOA Parking Holdings GmbH 4.625 2027 1 15 515,999 471,830
- 0.3%
EUR 360,000 TUI Cruises GmbH 6.500 2026 5 15 441,663 380,524
- 0.5%
590,000 Cheplapharm Arzneimittel GmbH 144A 5.500 2028 1 15 592,690 573,498
1,550,352 1,425,852
- 0.6%
- 0.6%
680,000 Ghana Government International Bond 144A 10.750 2030 10 14 736,658 719,100
736,658 719,100
- 0.3%
- 0.3%
350,000 Cikarang Listrindo Tbk PT 144A 4.950 2026 9 14 346,487 348,330
346,487 348,330
- 0.2%
- 0-2%
Ardagh Packaging Finance PLC/Ardagh Holdings USA
300,000 Inc. 144A 5.250 2027 8 15 285,185 278,250
285,185 278,250
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
260,000 Intesa Sanpaolo SpA 144A 4.198 2032 6 1 260,000 230,289
260,000 230,289
- 0.9%
- 0.9%
$ 190,514 lIvory Coast Government International Bond 5.750 2032 12 31 180,370 187,267
830,000 Ivory Coast Government International Bond 144A 6.125 2033 6 15 804,003 803,778
984,373 991,045
984,373 991,045
- 0.5%
- 0.5%
GBP 270,000 Wheel Bidco Ltd. 6.750 2026 7 15 374,888 335,088
GBP 220,000 Wheel Bidco Ltd. 144A 6.750 2026 7 15 308,410 273,035
683,298 608,123
683,298 608,123
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- 0.3%
- 0.3%
$ 300,000 Kenya Government International Bond 144A 7.250% 2028 2 28 322,002 288,750
322,002 288,750
- 1.0%
- 1.0%
360,000 Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd. 144A 4.250 2026 7 1 360,000 335,146
340,000 Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd. 144A 5.500 2026 8 31 340,000 330,387
460,000 Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd. 144A 5.500 2028 4 1 455,687 440,611
1,155,687 1,106,144
1,155,687 1,106,144
- 2.6%
- 0.4%
GBP 340,000 Cidron Aida Finco Sarl 6.250 2028 4 1 466,548 419,125
- 0.2%
EUR 310,000 Ideal Standard International SA 6.375 2026 7 30 361,208 285,338
- 0.5%
510,000 Ultrapar International SA 144A 5.250 2026 10 6 504,966 518,568
- 0.5%
680,000 ARD Finance SA PIK 144A 6.500 2027 6 30 680,000 621,246
- 1.0%
640,000 Altice France Holding SA 144A 10.500 2027 5 15 653,100 670,417
610,000 Altice France Holding SA 144A 6.000 2028 2 15 588,218 526,125
1,241,318 1,196,542
3,254,040 3,040,819
- 3.6%
- 1.0%
1,280,000 BBVA Bancomer SA/Texas 144A ~ 5.125 2033 1 18 1,186,157 1,207,062
- 1.9%
1,520,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.625 2035 6 15 1,201,101 1,363,164
1,000,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.625 2038 6 15 860,813 852,000
2,061,914 2,215,164
- 0.7%
260,000 Mexico Government International Bond 2.659 2031 5 24 251,583 237,380
$ 570,000 Mexico Government International Bond 3.500 2034 2 12 566,944 530,563
818,527 767,943
4,066,598 4,190,169
- 7.4%
- 0.6%
620,000 NatWest Markets NV 7.750 2023 5 15 631,521 652,160
- 0.3%
330,000 Sensata Technologies BV 144A 4.000 2029 4 15 332,212 314,133
- 0.2%
EUR 270,000 United Group BV 5.250 2030 2 1 310,290 281,835
- 1.0%
320,000 UPC Holding BV 144A 5.500 2028 1 15 321,263 316,096
930,000 VZ Secured Financing BV 144A 5.000 2032 1 15 921,982 869,550
1,243,245 1,185,646
- 1.8%
1,990,000 Petrobras Global Finance BV 5.750 2029 2 1 2,053,474 2,067,148
- 3.5%
4,550,000 Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands 111 BV 3.150 2026 10 1 4,383,994 4,132,265
8,954,736 8,633,187
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- 0.7%
- 0.7%
$ 300,000 Nigeria Government International Bond 144A 7.875% 2032 2 16 310,752 283,125
530,000 Nigeria Government International Bond MTN 6.500 2027 11 28 532,004 503,500
842,756 786,625
842,756 786,625
- 0.6%
- 0.6%
700,000 Oman Government International Bond 144A 5.625 2028 1 17 572,568 722,568
572,568 722,568
- 1.1%
- 1.1%
540,000 Carnival Corp. 144A 5.750 2027 3 1 540,000 514,713
740,000 Carnival Corp. 144A 6.000 2029 5 1 740,681 697,309
1,280,681 1,212,022
1,280,681 1,212,022
- 0.9%
- 0.9%
1,160,000 Paraguay Government International Bond 144A 2.739 2033 1 29 1,128,628 1,026,600
1,128,628 1,026,600
- 1.1%
- 0.4%
500,000 Petroleos del Peru SA 144A 4.750 2032 6 19 506,312 447,750
- 0.7%
240,000 Peruvian Government International Bond 2.783 2031 1 23 240,004 226,557
710,000 Peruvian Government International Bond 1.862 2032 12 1 646,791 610,446
886,795 837,003
1,393,107 1,284,753
- 0.2%
- 0-2%
280,000 Senegal Government International Bond 144A 6.750 2048 3 13 288,301 242,340
288,301 242,340
- 0.4%
- 0.4%
Republic of South Africa Government
510,000 International Bond 5.650 2047 9 27 484,776 446,013
484,776 446,013
- 0.7%
- 0.1%
EUR 200,000 Cellnex Finance Co. SA MTN 2.000 2033 2 15 235,341 189,608
- 0.6%
EUR 590,000 Tendam Brands SAU ~ 5.250 2024 9 15 705,679 654,382
941,020 843,990
- 3.1%
- 0.3%
390,000 TC Ziraat Bankasi AS 144A MTN 5.125 2023 9 29 371,913 383,592
- 2.0%
2,550,000 Turkey Government International Bond 4.250 2026 4 14 2,337,674 2,293,701
- 0.8%
930,000 Turk Telekomunikasyon AS 144A 6.875 2025 2 28 926,985 918,747
3,636,572 3,596,040
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
650,000 Ukraine Government International Bond 7.375 2032 9 25 650,000 274,625
650,000 274,625
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- 6.0%
- 0.7%
GBP 764,000 Marston®s Issuer PLC 3.360% 2035 7 16 859,187 800,818
- 0.9%
EUR 850,000 INEOS Quattro Finance 1 PLC 3.750 2026 7 15 1,049,308 891,769
EUR 120,000 INEOS Quattro Finance 1 PLC 144A 3.750 2026 7 15 145,806 125,897
1,195,114 1,017,666
- 0.3%
GBP 320,000 Bellis Acquisition Co. PLC 4.500 2026 2 16 432,306 404,906
- 3.0%
EUR 550,000 Carnival PLC 1.000 2029 10 28 518,491 445,864
GBP 464,000 Saga PLC 3.375 2024 5 12 643,038 574,884
GBP 1,930,000 Saga PLC 5.500 2026 7 15 2,676,096 2,407,735
3,837,625 3,428,483
- 0.5%
$ 620,000 Virgin Media Secured Finance PLC 144A 5.500 2029 5 15 620,000 614,054
- 0.3%
GBP 300,000 Marks & Spencer PLC MTN 3.750 2026 5 19 429,960 387,402
- 0.3%
340,000 Vmed 02 UK Financing | PLC 144A 4.750 2031 7 15 340,000 320,009
7,714,192 6,973,338
- 33.8%
- 3.5%
1,230,000 Delta Air Lines Inc. 144A 7.000 2025 5 1 1,225,372 1,316,552
210,000 Delta Air Lines Inc./SkyMiles IP Ltd. 144A 4.750 2028 10 20 210,754 211,923
560,000 Spirit Airlines Inc. 1.000 2026 5 15 510,490 502,922
2,115,000 United Airlines Inc. 144A 4.625 2029 4 15 2,174,656 2,013,478
4,121,272 4,044,875
- 4.1%
1,240,000 Ford Motor Co. 3.250 2032 2 12 1,150,752 1,105,634
200,000 Ford Motor Credit Co. LLC 4.950 2027 5 28 199,974 203,606
2,550,000 Ford Motor Credit Co. LLC 2.900 2028 2 16 2,535,308 2,298,590
1,103,000 JB Poindexter & Co. Inc. 144A 7.125 2026 4 15 1,126,902 1,123,829
5,012,936 4,731,659
- 0.6%
780,000 American Axle & Manufacturing Inc. 5.000 2029 10 1 771,137 731,274
- 0.7%
730,000 Boise Cascade Co. 144A 4.875 2030 7 1 730,000 710,997
80,000 Standard Industries Inc./NJ 144A 5.000 2027 2 15 77,251 79,442
807,251 790,439
- 0.5%
570,000 Sasol Financing USA LLC 5.500 2031 3 18 570,000 533,131
- 2.6%
Allied Universal Holdco LLC/Allied Universal
820,000 Finance Corp./Atlas Luxco 4 Sarl 144A 4.625 2028 6 1 821,368 766,454
730,000 Carriage Services Inc. 144A 4.250 2029 5 15 724,386 681,631
610,000 CoreCivic Inc. 8.250 2026 4 15 614,113 630,902
230,000 CoreCivic Inc. 4.750 2027 10 15 228,343 200,243
320,000 StoneMor Inc. 144A 8.500 2029 5 15 320,748 319,580
480,000 WW International Inc. 144A 4.500 2029 4 15 479,305 390,079
3,188,263 2,988,889
- 0.6%
790,000 H&E Equipment Services Inc. 144A 3.875 2028 12 15 772,053 739,392
- 0.2%
290,000 Coinbase Global Inc. 144A 3.625 2031 10 1 290,000 247,225
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- - 0.3%

310,000 Sunnova Energy Corp. 144A 5.875% 2026 9 1 310,268 296,459

- 0.3%
330,000 TopBuild Corp. 144A 3.625 2029 3 15 330,000 300,327

- 1.6%
220,000 Acuris Finance US Inc./Acuris Finance SARL 144A 5.000 2028 5 1 220,000 202,125
320,000 Match Group Holdings Il LLC 144A 3.625 2031 10 1 320,000 288,115
1,605,000 MercadoLibre Inc. 3.125 2031 1 14 1,596,746 1,398,516
2,136,746 1,888,756
- 0.4%

350,000 Las Vegas Sands Corp. 3.900 2029 8 8 359,729 320,987
140,000 Wyndham Hotels & Resorts Inc. 144A 4.375 2028 8 15 140,000 134,756
499,729 455,743

- - 0.3%
380,000 BWX Technologies Inc. 144A 4.125 2028 6 30 380,000 366,381

- 6.7%

2,030,000 CCO Holdings LLC/CCO Holdings Capital Corp. 4.500 2032 5 1 2,051,487 1,859,886
297,000 CCO Holdings LLC/CCO Holdings Capital Corp. 144A 4.500 2030 8 15 302,385 278,875
910,000 CCO Holdings LLC/CCO Holdings Capital Corp. 144A 4.250 2031 2 1 931,780 829,449
550,000 CSC Holdings LLC 144A 6.500 2029 2 1 552,621 554,937
410,000 CSC Holdings LLC 144A 5.750 2030 1 15 362,540 367,652
460,000 CSC Holdings LLC 144A 5.000 2031 11 15 383,792 385,416

DIRECTV Holdings LLC/DIRECTV Financing Co. Inc.
350,000 144A 5.875 2027 8 15 350,000 345,036
570,000 DISH DBS Corp. 7.750 2026 7 1 522,593 565,757
410,000 DISH DBS Corp. 5.125 2029 6 1 410,000 349,152
410,000 DISH DBS Corp. 144A 5.750 2028 12 1 410,000 387,962

1,520,000 DISH Network Corp. 3.375 2026 8 15 1,447,830 1,371,456
330,000 Sirius XM Radio Inc. 144A 4.125 2030 7 1 330,000 309,220
175,000 Univision Communications Inc. 144A 9.500 2025 5 1 173,857 184,097

8,228,885 7,788,895
- 0.4%
425,000 Freeport-McMoRan Inc. 5.450 2043 3 15 374,837 476,875
- 3.7%
270,000 Apache Corp. 5.100 2040 9 1 224,812 273,337

1,440,000 EQT Corp. 3.900 2027 10 1 1,368,902 1,437,079
100,000 EQT Corp. 144A 3.125 2026 5 15 100,000 96,822
100,000 EQT Corp. 144A 3.625 2031 5 15 100,034 95,466
410,000 Oasis Petroleum Inc. 144A 6.375 2026 6 1 413,494 421,619
630,000 Occidental Petroleum Corp. 6.125 2031 1 1 630,000 708,750
580,000 Range Resources Corp. 8.250 2029 1 15 644,230 635,628
400,000 Range Resources Corp. 144A 4.750 2030 2 15 397,282 397,437
230,000 Southwestern Energy Co. 4.750 2032 2 1 231,130 229,712

4,109,884 4,295,850

- 1.3%

540,000 Ball Corp. 2.875 2030 8 15 534,239 484,342
280,000 Ball Corp. 3.125 2031 9 15 280,000 249,987
800,000 Pactiv LLC 7.950 2025 12 15 783,602 820,877

1,597,841 1,555,206

- 0.3%

400,000 Bausch Health Americas Inc. 144A 9.250 2026 4 1 418,500 409,746
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- 2.4%
650,000 Energy Transfer LP W 7.125% — 669,570 633,572
750,000 Energy Transfer LP W 6.750 - 764,616 729,477
90,000 Energy Transfer LP W 6.500 - 90,102 88,680
130,000 EQM Midstream Partners LP 144A 6.500 2027 7 1 130,000 135,720
590,000 Western Midstream Operating LP 4.650 2026 7 1 590,632 601,995
40,000 Western Midstream Operating LP 4.550 2030 2 1 39,968 39,979
520,000 Western Midstream Operating LP 5.750 2050 2 1 376,806 510,039
2,661,694 2,739,462
- 0.1%
120,000 Diversified Healthcare Trust 4.375 2031 3 1 120,000 102,860
- 0.9%
320,000 Carrols Restaurant Group Inc. 144A 5.875 2029 7 1 315,043 262,619
210,000 IRB Holding Corp. 144A 7.000 2025 6 15 210,000 219,228
160,000 Michaels Cos Inc./The 144A 5.250 2028 5 1 161,048 147,033
240,000 Party City Holdings Inc. 144A 8.750 2026 2 15 242,409 228,836
Suburban Propane Partners LP/Suburban Energy
250,000 Finance Corp. 144A 5.000 2031 6 1 252,476 234,847
1,180,976 1,092,563
- 0.4%
180,000 Minerva Merger Sub Inc. 144A 6.500 2030 2 15 180,000 174,628
380,000 Rackspace Technology Global Inc. 144A 3.500 2028 2 15 380,000 340,366
560,000 514,994
- 1.9%
494,000 CommScope Technologies LLC 144A 6.000 2025 6 15 464,798 467,708
350,000 Frontier Communications Corp. 144A 5.875 2027 10 15 350,000 348,257
700,000 Level 3 Financing Inc. 144A 3.625 2029 1 15 695,448 616,000
790,000 T-Mobile USA Inc. 2.625 2029 2 15 781,078 721,056
2,291,324 2,153,021
40,733,596 39,244,022
- 0.4%
- 0.4%
Central American Bottling Corp./CBC Bottling
430,000 Holdco SL/Beliv Holdco SL 144A 5.250 2029 4 27 426,907 427,850
426,907 427,850
105,331,076 99,418,057
-2.1% "
-2.1%
- 1.0%
440,000 Mileage Plus Holdings LLC Initial Term 6.250 2027 6 21 433,373 458,026
702,900 United AirLines Inc Class B Term 4.500 2028 4 21 699,858 695,822
1,133,231 1,153,848
- 1.0%
1,117,350 DIRECTV Financing LLC Closing Date Term 5.750 2027 8 2 1,113,891 1,117,568
- 0.1%
151,640 RCL Term # 0.000 2022 4 5 151,573 150,882
2,398,695 2,422,298
2,398,695 2,422,298
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- 1.8%
-1.8%
17,372 Legg Mason US$ Accumulating Share Fund 1,942,798 2,054,464
1,942,798 2,054,464
1,942,798 2,054,464
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
- 0.2%
290 Targa Resources Corp. PIK 304,500 313,064
304,500 313,064
304,500 313,064
ETF - 0.7%
- 0.7%
31,697 SPDR Bloomberg Short Term High Yield Bond ETF 817,149 831,729
817,149 831,729
ETF 817,149 831,729
- 90.5% __ 110,794,218 105,039,612
- 9.5% 10,973,222
- 100.0% 116,012,834
144A 1933 144A
ETF
MTN
PIK
*
2022 31
W
- 2022 31
# 2022 31
2022 4 4 UBS AG AUD 1,941,296 USD 1,454,429 (3,453)
2022 4 4 Goldman Sachs International BRL 35,769,654 USD 7,549,845 30,806
2022 4 4 Goldman Sachs International BRL 35,769,654 USD 7,249,891 (269,146)
2022 4 4 Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc BRL 170,349,587 USD 35,955,420 146,716
2022 4 4 Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc BRL 166,514,087 USD 34,575,184 (427,269)
2022 4 4 UBS AG BRL 3,835,500 USD 750,000 (56,249)
2022 5 18 Citibank, N.A. EUR 2,341,918 USD 2,690,536 80,364
2022 5 18 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. EUR 2,449,785 USD 2,796,956 66,562
2022 5 18 UBS AG EUR 1,278,529 USD 1,465,745 40,767
2022 5 18 Citibank, N.A. GBP 3,262,644 USD 4,429,629 134,969
2022 4 4 UBS AG GBP 14,927 USD 20,000 346
2022 4 UBS AG GBP 357,153 USD 467,994 (2,241)
2022 5 18 UBS AG GBP 1,350,807 USD 1,834,516 56,432
2022 4 4 Goldman Sachs International IDR 307,089,358,520 USD 21,390,831 12,805
2022 4 4 Goldman Sachs International 1DR 295,641,358,520 USD 20,555,208 (25,865)
2022 4 4 UBS AG JPY 127,603,413 USD 1,071,000 19,603
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« D
2022 4 4 UBS AG JPY 862,942,960 USD 6,986,547 (123,731)
2022 4 4 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. MXN 174,010,828 USD 8,602,153 (117,628)
2022 4 4 UBS AG MXN 2,121,436 USD 100,000 (6,306)
2022 4 4 Goldman Sachs International RUB 781,551,875 USD 7,389,628 (2,056,348)
2022 4 4 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. RUB 76,275,000 USD 900,000 (21,873)
2022 4 4 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. TRY 2,039,353 USD 140,000 1,404
2022 4 4 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. TRY 104,112,819 USD 6,985,169 (90,442)
2022 4 4 UBS AG ZAR 7,990,379 USD 542,751 (3,789)
(2,613,566)
2022 4 4 UBS AG AUD 3,755,976 USD 2,758,476 62,719
2022 4 4 UBS AG AUD 34,556 USD 26,000 41)
2022 4 4 Goldman Sachs International BRL 54,391,438 USD 10,862,911 532,881
2022 4 4 Goldman Sachs International BRL 209,434,881 USD 44,195,712 (177,574)
2022 4 4 Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc BRL 336,863,674 USD 67,126,572 3,398,688
2022 4 4 Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc BRL 3,835,500 USD 809,553 (3,303)
2022 4 4 Citibank, N.A. EUR 550,000 USD 606,859 6,141
2022 4 4 Citibank, N.A. EUR 10,736 USD 12,151 (199)
2022 4 4 UBS AG GBP 341,865 USD 447,943 2,083
2022 4 4 UBS AG GBP 372,081 USD 500,081 (10,192)
2022 4 4 Goldman Sachs International IDR 592,696,017,040 USD 41,120,028 113,702
2022 4 4 Goldman Sachs International IDR 301,365,358,520 USD 20,990,832 (11,281)
2022 4 4 UBS AG JPY 840,959,074 USD 6,811,012 122,881
2022 4 4 UBS AG JPY 990,546,373 USD 8,636,186 (474,512)
2022 4 4 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. MXN 339,772,080 USD 16,601,737 382,587
2022 4 4 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. MXN 2,802,961 USD 140,000 (259)
2022 4 4 Goldman Sachs International RUB 1,178,811,250 USD 13,147,062 962,426
2022 4 4 Goldman Sachs International RUB 29,750,000 USD 350,000 (3,211)
2022 4 4 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. RUB 8,450,000 USD 100,000 (1,500)
2022 4 4 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. TRY 203,104,397 USD 13,512,979 125,907
2022 4 4 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. TRY 5,560,253 USD 370,000 (1,542)
2022 4 4 UBS AG ZAR 15,491,520 USD 1,030,312 27,394
2022 4 4 UBS AG ZAR 188,949 USD 13,000 (124)
5,053,671
2,440,105
AUD -
BRL -
EUR -
GBP -
IDR -
JPY -
MXN -
RUB -
TRY -
usD -
AUD -
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(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Assets and Liabilities

March 31, 2022
{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Assets

Investments in securities, at fair value (cost 3108,851.420)
AfTiliated investments, at fair value (cost $1,942,798)
Cash equivalents

Foreign currency, at fair value (cost $249,397)

Due from broker

Unrealized gain on forward foreign surrency contracts
Interest receivable

Receivable for investments sold

Dividends receivable

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Unrealized loss on forward foreign cucrency contracis
Redemptions payable

Accrued distnbutor fees

Acerued management fees

Accrued expenses

Total Lialalities

Met assets attributable to redeemeble unitholde=rs
BRL Class RUE Class
$37,212,618/17,113,001 units $ 2175 £5474,517/2,372,131 units
JPY Class TRY Class
£7,499,268/151,871 units 3 49.379  $6.834,791/6,506,462 units
GBEP Class ZAR Class
$470,932/57,478 units § 8.193  5502,579/163,526 units
USD Class MXN Class
28,272 481/4,540,928 units S 6226 <3094 890/1,723,395 unils
IDR Class AUD Class
$20,308,313/4,980,076 units 5 4.078 £1 342,445/285,635 units

$

102,985,148
2,054,464
6,094,432

459,730
860,480
6,328,183
1,175,932
488,404
5,235
£2,708

121,434,716

3,888,078
393,450
491,002
434,282
214,670

5421,882

116,012,834

2.308

1.051

3.068

4.687

4.700

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Statement of Operations
Year Ended March 31, 2022
{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Investment Income
Interest
Dividends (net of foreign tax withholdings 523,141}

Total investment income

Expenses

Distributor fees

Management fees

Administeative, accounting. and transfer apent
Agent company fees

Professional

Custody

Trustee fees

Loan servicing

CHher

Total expenses

Met imvestinent incomd

5 6955329
55,376

7,010,705

1,083,072
947,688
112,030

67,692
46,300
25,000
22,138
9,098
60,378
2,373,396
4,637,309

Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments, foreign currency

translation/transactions and derivative contracts
Net realized gain (loss)
Investments
Foreign currency transactions
Forward foreign currency contracts
Met realized gain
Net charge in unrealized gain (loss)
Investments
Affiliated investment companics
Foreign currency translation
Forward foreign currency contracts

Met change in unrealized gan {loas)

2,467,063
(28,121)
(2,315,829}

123,113

(11,035,61%)
(40,782)
(20,059}

6,707,733

(4.438.766)

Met realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments, foreign currcncy

translation/transactions and derivative contracts

Wet increase in net assers resulting from operations

(4,315,653}
s 52165

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Staternent of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

From operations

Net investment income % 4,637,309

Met realized gain : 123,113

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) (4,438,766}
Net increase in net assets resusting from operations 321,656

From distributions to unitholders

BRL Class {4.246,736)
JPY Class (562,409)
GEP Class (36,986)
USD Class (2,646,354)
IDR Class (2,454,302)
RIUB Class (1,797,338)
TRY Class (2,607,675)
ZAR Class (63,853)
MXN Class (853,287)
AUD Class C (111A413)
Total distributions (15,380,351)
From participant transactions
Net (decrease) in net assets resulting fom participant transactions (Mote 9) (13,789,181)
Met (decrease) in net assets (28,847,876)
Net assets
Beginning of year 144 860,710
End of yvear £ 116,012,834

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. Organization and Investment Objective

WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currenzy) Fund {the "Fund™) was formed on October 4,
2010 as a sub-trust of the Western Asset Offshore Funds (“Trust™), a unit trust established by a trust
desd under the Trusts Act (25 amended) of the Cayman Islands and registered under the Muiual
Funds Act of the Cayman Islands. The Trust is struetured as an umbrella wnit trust, which allows it
to create multiple sub-trusts, with the aim of segregating assets and liabilities of each sub-trust. As
of March 31, 2022, there were 10 sub-trusts of Western Asset Offshore Funds, Western Asset
Management Company Limited (“WAMCL”) is ke Trust's Manager. Western Asset Management
Company, LLC (*WAM™), formerly known as Western Asset Management Company, Western
Asset Management Company Pre. Ltd. (“Western Assel Singapore”™), Western Asset Management
Company Ltd. (*Western Assat Tokyo™), Western Asset Management Company Distribuidora de
Timlos e Valores Mobilidrios Limitada (*Western Asset Beazil™), and Western Asset Management
Company Pty. Lid. (“Western Asset Melbourne"} are the sub-investment managers to the Fund
(collectively the “Investment Mznager™). BNY Mellon Fund Management {Cayman) Limited is
admimistrator and trustee to tke Fund, The Bank of New York Mellon, 2 wholly-owned subsidiary
of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, is the custodian and sub-administrater to the Fund,
The Bank of New York Mellon (Singapore Branch) is the regisirar and wransfer agent to the Fand,
Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stenley Securities Co., “td. (Japan) is Agent Compamy. Mitsubishi UFJ
Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ltd. (Japan) and Monex, Inc. are distributors to the Fund.

The investment objective of the Fund is (o seek to provide unitholders with a long-term total
refurn consisting of income ard capital gains threcgh a diversified portfolie of investments mainly
consisting of global corporate bonds, including kigh yield bonds and bonds of emerging markets
issuers. The Fund may also invest in securities or asset classes that are ouiside traditional high
yield or emerging markets bench-narks, such as non-agency mortgage-backed securities, preferred
securities and subordinated securities. The Fund offers multiple hedged classes.

At Mareh 31, 2022, the Fund had one unaffiliated unitholder who held 94% of the Funds units
outstanding. The Fund may be materially impacted by the actions of this unitholder.

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

In conformity with generally aceepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("LLS.
GAAP™, the Fund uses the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, income and expenses are
recorded as earned and incurred, sespectively.

The Fund is an investment company which follows accounting and reporting guidance in the
Finaneial Accounting Standarcs Board (“FASB™) Accounting Standards Codification 946, Financial
Services — Investment Companies.

i7

178/342



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WA High Income Corporate Bond {Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
MNotes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with LLS. GAAF, requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported antournts
of increases and decreases in net assets from opesations during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents and Foreign Currency

Cash equivalents and foreign currency consist of cash and foreign currency on deposit with financial
institutions. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, plus acerued interest, which approximates fair
value.

The Fund considers all highly Liquid investrents with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash held in banks periodically exceeds the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation’s (“FDIC) insurance coverage of 3250,000 and, as a result, thers may be a
concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of the FDIC insurance covernge.

Due to/from Broker

The Fund records restricted cash, if any, on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities within “Due
toffrom Broker” which represents balances required by brokers for collateral on certain derivative
positions. “Doe to/from Broker” is reported on a net-by-counterparty basis as there is a valid right to
offset with each of the brokers. The Fund continua:ly monitors the creditworthiness of the financial
instinutions with which it conducts business.

Security Transactions and Investment Income

Security transactions are accounted for as of trade date, The cost of securities delivered and the net
gain or loss on securities sold are determined using the first-in, first-out method. Interest income
earned on securities is recorded net of applicable withholding taxes on the accroal basis. Interest
income includes aceretion of discounts and amortization of premimms which are recorded using the
effective vield method. To the extent any issuer defaults or a credit event occurs that inpacts the
issuer, the Fund may halt any additional interest income aceruals and consider the realizability of
interest accrued up to the date of default or credit event. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-
dividend date net of applicable withholding taxes,

Functional and Presentation Corrency

Ttems incleded in the Fund’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates. The majority of issuances, redemptions, and valuatioans
of the units are effected and denominated in the U.S. Dollars (“USD").
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign Currency Translatdon/Transactions

Investrent securities and other assats and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into USD amounts based upon prevailing exchange rates on the date of valuation. Purchases and
sales of investment securities, income and expense items, and issuance and redemptions of wnits
denominated in foreign currenzies are translated into USD amounts based upon prevailing exchange
rates on the respective dates of such transactions.

The Fund does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates on investments from the fuctuations arising from changes in market prices
of securities held, Such fluctuations are included =ithin the net realized and unrealized gain or loss
on investments on the Statement of Operations.

Met realized foreign exchangs pains or losses srise from sales of foreign currencies, including
exchange gaing and losses on the settlement of forward foreign currency contracts, currency gains of
losses realized between the trade and settlement £2tes on securities transactions, and the difference
between the amounts of dividends, interest, and foreign withholding taxes recorded om the Fund’s
books and the USD eguivalent of the amounts actually received or paid. Met unrealized foreign
exchange gains or losses arise from changes in the fair values of assets and liabilities, other than
investments in securities and derivative contracts, on tie date of valuation, resulting from changes

in exchange rates.

Certain foreign security and currency transactions may involve considerations and risks not typically
associated with those of USD dencminated transactions as a result of, among other factors, the
possibility of lower levels of governmental supervision and regulation of foreign securities markets
and the possibility of political or economic instability.

Income Taxes

According to the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital
gains or other texes payable by the Fund. As a resclt, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial statements.

The Fund intends to conduct its affairs so that it will not be deemed to be engaged in trade or business
in the U.S. and, therefore, nonz of its income will he treated as “effectively connected™ with a U5,
trade or business carried on by the Fund, Effectively connected income is subject to U8, federal
income tax at the graduated rates applicable to US, domestic corporations. Certain categories of
income that are not “effectively connected” but are derived from U.S. sonrces, including dividends
and interest income, are subject (o a U5, tax of thirty percent. However, under the partfolio interest
exemption, the thirty percent tax does not apply to portfolio interest earned. For the year ended
March 31, 2022, interest earned by the Fund qual-fies under the portfolio interest exemption.

The Fund is subject to the authoritative guidance with respect to accounting for and disclosure of

nncertainty in tax positions, which requires the Fund to determine whether a tax position is more
likely than not to be sustained opon examination. Management has analyzed the Fund s tax positions

180/342



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2022

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes (Continued)

for all open tax vears and has concluded that as of March 31, 20221, there are no uncertan ax
positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. The Fund's policy is to
recognize interest and penalties, if any, related to uncertain tax positions as a component of income
tax expense. For the year ended March 31, 2022, the Fund did not recognize any intersst or penalties
for uncertain tax positions. There are currently no examinations being conducted of the Fund by the
Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing autherity.

Issuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund units are issued in multiple classes (each a “Class” and, collectively, the “Classes™). The Fund
eurrently offers a Brazilian Real (“BRL™) Class, JTapanese Yen (“IPY™) Class, British Pound (“GBEP™)
Class, United States Dollar (“USD™) Class, Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR™) Class, Russian Ruble
{(“RUB") Class, Turkish Lira (“TRY™) Class, South African Rand (“ZAR") Class, Mexican Peso
{(“MINY) Class, and Australien Dollar (“*AUD™) Class (each, except the USD Class, 15 a "Hedged
Class™). The BRL Class, USD Class, IDR Class, RUB Class, TRY Class, ZAR Class and the MXN
Class are denominated in USD, the GBP Class in GBP the JPY Class in JPY and the AUD Class in
AUD (each a “Denomination Currency™), in which issuances, redemptions, and valuation of units
are effected and in which units are denomimatad.

The net asset value of each Class is determined in the Denomination Currency on the relevant
“Dealing Day”, A Dealing Day is every business day on which federal, state or local banks are open
for business in Mew York, London, Japan and the Cayman Islands and the New York Stock Exchange
and London Stock Exchange are open for trading. Issvances and redemptions of Fund uniis are
made on such days, based upen the closing net asser value. A sales charge of up to 3.5% of the net
asset value may be charged and retained, by the Distributor. For the year ended March 31, 2022, the
Diistributor has waived the sakes charge.

The Trustee, in consultation with the Investment Manager, may temporarily suspend the determination
of the met asset value of the Fund, and the issuance and redemption of the Fund's units, and may
postpone the date of payment of redemption proceeds if, among other reasons, during any period
when it is not reazonably practicable for the Investaent Manager o fairly determine the value of the
Fund's net assets. There were no such oceurrences during the year ended March 31, 2022,

Allocation of Income, Expenses, Gains, and Losses

Income, expenses, and realized and unrealized geins and losses are allocated on a daily basis to
each Class of units based upon the relative portion of net assets of each Class. The Fund will apply
adjustments to the valuation of its Classes in order to specifically credit or charge to-the relevant
Clags of units any applicable gains, losses and expenses generated by hedging transactions with
respect 1o such Classes (e.g, all costs associated with hedging transactions relating to the JPY
Class of units are borne by the JPY Class of units). All Classes of units will bear ratably any gains,
losses and éxpenses penerated by hedging non-USD denominated investments to the functional

GUITETIEY.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Redemptions Payable

Redemptions are recognized as liabilities when the amount requested in the redemption notice
becomes fixed and determinasle. This will generally occur either at the time of the receipt of the
notice or on the last day of a fiscal pericd, depending on the nature of the redemption request. As a
result, redemptions paid after the end of the year but based upon year end net asset values, are reflected
as redemptions payable on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities at March 31, 2022. Redemption
notices received for which the dollar and share amounts are not fixed remain in capital until the net
asset value nsed to determine the redemption and share amounts are determined.

Distribations to Unithalders

Distributions from net investment income, net realized or unrealized gains and/or capital are declared
by the Fund on the fifteenth (15%) day of each month. Distributions are paid in cash or in-kind, as
may be determined by the lovestment Manager, unless the unitholders elect 1o reinvest in additional
units. Cash distributions with respect to a Class are paid in the Class Denomination Currency.

Recent Accounting Fronouncement

In March 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards
Update (“ASU™) Mo. 2020-(4, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848) - Facilitation of the Effects
of Reference Rate Reform on Financiel Reporting. In January 2021, the FASB issued ASU No,
2021-01, with further amendments to Topic 848. The amendments in the ASUs provide optional
temporary accounting recognition and financial reporting relief from the effect of certain types of
contract modifications due to the planned discontinuation of the London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR™ and other interback-offered based reference rates as of the end of 2021 and 2023, The
ASUs are effective for certain reference rate-related contract modifications that occur during the
period March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022. Management is reviewing the requirernents
and believes the adoption of these ASUs will not have a matenial impact on the financial statements.

3. Yaluation

The Fund has adopted procedures for determining the fair value of its invesiments each Dealing Dhay.
Under these procedurcs, the Fund has delegated its authority to a pricing committee governed by the
Investment Manager to determnine the velue of the Fund’s investments each Dealing Dy, The notes
below deseribe in greater detail the methodologies used to value the Fund's investments,

The Fuzd vses hoth the income and market approaches to establish the fair value of its investments.
Use of particular techniques and inputs may vary over time based on availability and relevance as
market and economic conditions evalve.

The Investment Manager considers pricing techniques it deems relevant and appropriate when
making fair value determinations. When determining the reliability of third party pricing information
for imvestments owned by the Fund, the lovestment Manager, among other things, conduets due -
diligence reviews of pricing vendors, monitors the daily change in prices, and reviews transactions
among market participants. Ir: addition. prices which change from the prior day by greater than a

2]
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3.

Valuation (Continued)

pre-established threshold will be verified against additional pricing sources, when available, or by
evaluation of verifiable changes to the model inputs that impacted the resulting fair value.

Exchange traded options, wacrants, and publicly traded U.S. and non-US. equity securities are
generally valued at the official closing price of, er the last reported sale price on, the exchange or
market on which such securitiss are traded, as of she close of business on the day the securities are
being valued or, lacking any sales, at the Jast avaiable bid price. Futures contracts are valued at the
last settlement price at the end of each day on the board of trade or exchange upon which they are
traded.

Fixed-income securities, including short-term securities purchased with more than 60 days left to
maturity, are generally valued at prices obtzined “rom one or more pricing vendors. Vendors value
such securities based on one or more inputs described in the following able. The table provides
examples of inputs that are commonly relevant for valuing particular classes of fixed-income
securities, in which the Fund is authorized to invest. However, these classifications are not exclusive,
and any of the inputs may be used to value any otaer class of fixed-income security.

Fined-income class and Derivatives Examples of inputs

All All henchmark yields, wansactions, bids, offers,
quitations from dealers and electronic rading
systems, spreads and other refationships observed

m the markets ameng comparable securities; and
proprietary pricing models such as yield measures

| calculated using factors such as cash flows, financial
or collateral performance and other reference daia

| (collectively referred to as “standard inputs™).

Corporate bonds and notes | Standurd inputs and new issue data,
Bonds and notes of povernment and government | Standard inputs.
ARCNCISS |

Mortgage-backed and asset-backed obligations | Btamdard inputs, prepayment information, default
| rates, delinguency and loss assumptions, collzteral
| characteristics, credit enhancements and specific
| deal information.

Seructured products (including Intesest Only | Standard inputs, plus new issue data, monthly
and Principal Only securities and Collateralized | payment information and collateral performance.
Mortgage and Collareralized Debt Obligations)

Loans, loan participations and loan assignments Transactions, bids, offers, and guotations from
dealers

Swdent loans Standard inpwts including the weighted mverage life

of the leans,
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i Valuation {Continued)
Fixed-income class and Derivatives Examples of inputs o
Swaps and other derivatives Standard inputs and interest rate curves, interest

raté volatilities, credit spreads and recovery rates on
the underlying reference securities, index spreads,
foreign exchange spot and forward carves, and
foreign emchum_ga volatilities.

Where the Investment Manager deems it approprate to do so (such as when vendor prices are
unavailable or not deemed to be representative), fixed income securities will be valued in good faith
at the mean quoted bid and asked prices that are reasonably and timely available or at prices for
securities of comparable mamity, quality and type.

Short-term securities purchased within 60 days oo maturity are valued at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value.

Securities and investments “or which representative market quotations are not readily available or
are considered unreliable are fair valued in good faith by the Investment Manager. Various inputs
miay be reviewed in order to make a good faith determination of a security’s fair value. These inputs
include, but are not limited to, the type and cos® of the security; contractual or legal resirictions
on resale of the security; re’evant finaneial or business developments of the issuer; actively traded
similar or related securities; cenversion or éxchange rights on the security; related corporate actions;
significant events occurring after the close of trading in the security; and changes in overall market
conditions. Fair valuations and valuations of irvestments that are not actively trading involve
judgment and may differ materially from valuations that would have been used had greater market
activity occurred.

If third party evaluated vendor pricing is neither available nor deemed to be indicative of fair value,
the Investment Manager may elect to obiain indicative market quotations (“broker quotes™) directly
from a broker-dealer. Indicative market quotations are typically received from established marzet
participants. The Investment Manager has requested transparency to view the underlying inputs
which support these market quotations. When transparency to the underlying inputs is received from
the broker then the security may be considersd Lavel 2 of the fair value hierarchy if the inputs are
observable. If the inputs are not transparent or are found 1o be unobservable, then the secuntics are
categorized as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,

If broker gquotations are net seceived as of the valuation date, the most recent available broker
guotation(s) may be used, However, adjustments are made to the most recent broker quotation(s)
based on interpolated changes in the yields of associated benchmark securities from the date upon
which the broker quotation was received to the valuation date. Typically, benchmark securities are
comprised of certain treasury securities with smndard maturities. Specifically, the interpolated
change in the vield is caleulated using an interpelation facter which measures the duration of the
security being priced versus tae duration of the benchmark securities with durations immediately
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LN Valuation (Continued)

greater than and less than the security being priced. The interpolated yield change is then applied to
the duration of the security to zalculate the implied change in price.

Over-the-counter financial derivative instruments, such as forward foreipn currency contracts,
options contracts, swaptions contracts, or swap agreements, derive their value from underlying asset
prices, indices, reference rates, and other mputs or a combination of these factors. These contracts
are normally valued on the basis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quotations. Depending
on the product and the terms cf the transaction, the value of financial derivative instruments can he
estimated by a pricing service provider using a series of techniques, including simulation pricing
models, The pricing madels use inputs that are observed from actively quoted markets such as issuer
details, indices, spreads, interest rates, yield curves, and exchange rates,

Centrally cleared swaps transected on a multilateral or trade facility platform, such as a registered
exchange, are valued at the daily settlememt price determined by the respective exchange. For
centrally cleared eredit default swaps, the clearing facility requires its members 1o provide actionable
price levels across complete “erm structures. These levels along with external third party prices
are used to produce daily settement prices. Centrally cleared interest rate swaps are valued using
a pricing model that references the underlying rates including the overnight index swap rate and
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR™) forward rate to produce the daily settlement price. These
securities are categorized as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.,

lnvestments in a collective investment vehicle, incloding investments in investiment companies, are
valued using the net asset value of such investment vehicles, as a practical expedient.

The various inputs that are used in determining the fair value of the Fund's assets and liabilities are
summarized into the broad levels listed below:

o Level 1 —quoted prices in active markets for identical investments

»  Level 2 —other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar investments,
interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, ete.)

o Level 3 —significant unobservable inputs, including the Investment Manager’s own
assumptions in determining the fair value of investments. Level 3 fair value
techniques include (1) the use of proprietary models that require the use of judgment
and the application of various assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment
gssumptions and default rate assomptions, and (i) the solicitation of valuations
from third parties (typically, broker-dealers). Third-party valuation providers often
utilize propristary models that are subjective and also require the use of judgment

- and the application of various assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment
assumptions £nd default rate assumptions
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i Valuation {Continued})
The valuation levels are not necessarily an indication of the risk or liquidity associated with
investing in those securities.

The following is a summary of the levels within the valuation hierarchy used in valuing the Fund's
assets and liabilities carried at fair value:

Assets
Other
Significan: Significant
Quoted Observable Unobservable
Prices laputs Inputs

Description (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Notes and Debentures 5 — 5 98,617,239 § EO0E1E 5 99,418,057
Term Loans (Funded} —_ 2AX2 298 — 2422 298
Preferred Stock -— 313,064 313,064
Exchange Traded Fund 831,729 - - 231,729
Forward Foreign Currency

Contrects — 6,328,183 - 6,328,183
Imwestments valued using the

practical expedient — - — 2054 464
Total $ 831,729 § 107,367,720 § 113,882 §  1i1,367,795

Liabilities
Other
Significant Significant
Cuoted Ohservable Unohservable
Prices Inputs Inputs

Deseription (Level 1) (Level 2) {Level ) Total
Forward Foreign Currency

Contracts b — 5 3BER,078 § — & 3,888.078
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4. Tnvestments in Alfiliated Invesiment Companies

The following table summarizes the Fund’s investments in affiliated investment companies (the
“Investee Funds") as of March 31, 2022, The Fund did not directly pay any management fee or
performance fee to the Investez Funds for the year snded March 31, 2022, The Fund did not receive
any distributions from the affitiated investment comparues during the year ended March 31, 2022,

Change in
Fair Value Unrealized  Fair Valoe
At March Redemption  Realized Gain At March
Investment 31, 2021 Purchases Froceeds  Gain (Logs) {Laoss) 31, 2022
Legg Mason USS
Accurnslsiing Shase
Fund E_2lenae6 3 B D = 3 (M3 § 20MAS

Legg Mason US$ Accumulating Share Fund — The Fund's investment objective is to seek to
maximise total return, consisting of income and capital appreciation. The Fund invests at least two-
thirds of its Net Asset Value in the global fixed inzome markets. The Fund invests primarily in debt
gecisrities that are denominated in US. Dollars, Eu-o, Japanese Yen, Pound Sterling and a variety of
other currencies that are listed or traded on regulatad markets globally,

5. Loans, Loan Participations and Loan Assignmeats

The Fund may acquire loans, by acting as a member of the original lending syndicate of the loans
or through an assignment frem another lender, and may also purchase loan participations (ie,
participation interests in other lenders’ portions of Joans). The underlying portfolio may also include
loans, loan participations and other types of loans, including bridge loans and debtor-in-possession
facilities.

Investmients in loans and loan participations may subject the Fund to liquidity risk. Loans and loan
participations may be transferable among financial institutions, but may not have the liquidity of
conventional debt securities and are often subject to restrict.ons on resale, such as the need for the
consent of the lead or agent bank of the loan or the borrower, thereby making them potentiatly
illiquid.

Certain of the loan participa‘ions or assigoments acquired by the Fund may involve unfunded
commitments of the lenders or revolving credit Scilities under which a borrower may from time
to time boreow and repay amounts up to the maximum amount of the facility. In such cases, the
Fund would have an obligation to advance its portion of such additional borrowings upon the terms
specified in the loan documentation. Such an obligation may have the effect of requiring the Fund to
increase its invesiment in a company at a time when it might not be desirable to do so, inchuding at
a time when the company's financial condition maxes it unlikely that such amounts will be repaid.

At March 31, 2022, the Fund did not have any unfunded leas commitmenss,
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6. Payment-In-Kind Securities

The Fund may invest in payment-in-kind securities (“PTK”). PIKs give the issuer the option at ezch
interest payment date of makirg interest payments - either cash or additional debt securities. Those
additional debt securities usualiy have the same terms, including maturity dates, interest rates, and
associated risks as the original bonds. The daily market quotations of the original bonds may include
the accrued interest and require a pro rata adjustment from the unrealized gain or loss on investments
to interest receivable on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

For the year ended March 31, 2022, the Fund did not receive any in-kind payments from PIK
securities,

7. Forward Forelgn Currency Contracts

The Fund may enter into a forward foreign currency contract to hedge against foreign curreacy
exchange rate risk on its non-USD denominated securities and units or to facilitate settlement of
a foreign currency denominated portfolio transac:ion. A forward foreign currency contract is an
agreement between two parties to buy and sell a currency at a set price with delivery and settlement
at a finure date. The contract s marked to market daily and the change in value is recorded by the
Furd as an unrealized gain or loss. When a forward foreign currency contract is closed, through
either delivery of the currencies or offset by entering into another forward foreign curtency contract,
the Fund recognizes a realized gain or loss equal to the difference between the value of the contract
at the time it was opened and the value of the confract at the time it is closed.

Forward foreign currency cont-acts involve elements of market risk in excess of the amounts reflected
on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund bears the nisk of an unfavorable change in the
foreign exchange rate underlying the forward foreign currency contract. Risks may also arise upon
entering into these contracts fom the potential inebility of the counterpartics to meet the terms of
their contracts.

5. Charges and Fees

Iavestment Manager Fee
The Investment Manager's fee is acerued daily anc pavable quarterly in arrears at an annusl rate of
0.70% of the average daily net assets of the Fund.

Trustee Fee
The Trustee fee is acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an anmual rate of 0.01% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum of 515,000 per year.

Administrator Fee
The Administrator fee is acereed daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual mie of 0.02% on

the first 3 billion or less, 0.0125% on the next $1.5 billion 2nd 0.0050% on the amount over 54.5
billion of the average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum of $45,000 per year.
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8. Charges and Fees (Continued)
Registrar and Transfer Agent Fee

The annual Registrar and Tracsfer Agent fee for the Fund is $10,000. The anznal maintenance fee

for each Class is 58,400,

Distributor Fee

The Distributor fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.80% of

the average daily net assets of the Fund,

Apent Compamy Fee

The Agent Company fee is accrued dailv and paysble quarterly in arrears at an annual rate of 0.05%

of the average daily net assets of the Fund.

9. Units of Participation

The following represents the Fund's umi: activity for the year ended March 31, 2022:

Year Exded March 31, 2022
BRL Y GBP UsD
Units Amount  Units Amount  Units _ Amount Units Amount
Ulnite Lasued IW0248 § 205,075 15685 686,647 554 5 5,654 613,545 § 4,220,853
Unitsredeemed  (1546,372)  (3890.575) (39,8000 (2.209275)  (80,331) _ (754328) _ (471,555) (3.287,889)
SLI:':S' (L466,124) 5 (BOES.500) _ (2E230) § (L5068 (19932) 5 (148.644) 141,990 § 932,964
IDR RUB TRY EAR
Units Amount ) Units Amomint LUinitx  Amount Units Amount
Unite Famaed 75400 & 1245080 146,145 5 456770 10TLSOL S 1,630,785 apED S 17,057
Units redecmed (584.903) (2612283) (2086204) (S376050) (2320326) (LTIAI9E) _ @RE)  (97.378)
Ne {decrease) (306,413) § (1367,173) _(1.940,149) § (4919,289) _(1.248735) § (2082413) ___(39B) S (80321)
MXN AUD Total
Units Amount Units Amont Units Ameunt
Units Issued 7SS0 8 3TTAM 200408 01671 2607314 5 9,553,006
Units redesned (IODES6)  (UDTIBE) (7955 (407.038) (T.7IENA3) (23342.077)
et [decrease) UZLI37) S (615512) _ (58.006) §  (300,265) _ (5,130.719) $(11,789,181)
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Motes to Financial Statements (Continued)
March 31, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

10.  Financial Highlights
Year Ended March 31, 2022

Selected Per Unit Data BRL IPY GBP usD DR
Met asset value, beginning of vear  § 2003 § 50444 8 f380 3 7.019 $ 4441
Met investment income 0070 1591 0317 0.234 0,152
Met realized and unrealized gain

(loss) 0342 (B.R4T) {1011} {0427 (0.075%
Total income {lass) from

investment operations 0412 (5856 (0.694) (@.193) 0.077
Chstributions to unitholders (0.2400 (3.209) (493} [, 600 [0480)
Mt asset value, end of year 5 2175 5 49379 5 3193 § 6226 5 4078
Taal return % 2057 (11.53) {7.40) (2.75) 1.72
Ratios to Average Net Assets
Expenses % 1.73 1.77 1.75 .76 1.75
Met investment income % 3.37 345 342 344 342

Year Ended March 31, 2022

Selected Per Unit Diata RUB TRY ZAR MXN ALD
Met aszet value, beginning of year % 3203 % ) - Mg 3 4980 § 5.296
Wet investment income ™ D108 LX) [IRANE 0169 0173
Met realized and vnrealized gain

(loss) {0.523) (0667) (0.027) 0.028 {0.414)
Todal income (loss) from

investment operations {0.415) {0.606) 0.084 0.197 {0.241)
Distnbutions o unithaldess {450} {360} {0360} (0,480 (0.353)
Yeet aooue valios, endiad yeut $ 2308 $ 1051 § 3068 § 4697 § 4700
Total return %6 (12.96) {30.04) 2.51 396 (4.55)
Ratios to Average Net Assefs
Expenses %o L.76 179 1.74 1.75 1.75
Met investment income % 3.45 3.52 3.9 341 3.48

© Net investmen? income per unit has been caloulnted bassd upoa average units outstanding for the year.

©  Total return calculation is based on the value of 8 single wnit of paricipetion outstanding througheat the year.
1t represents the percentage change in the net asset value per onit between the beginning and eud of the year,
exchiding distributions to onitholdsrs,

The above ratios are caleulate for the participating units as a whole. An individual unitholder’s total
return 2nd fatios may vary from these ratios based on the timing of capital unit transactions.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2022

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

11. Derivative Instruments

The Fund may transact in a variety of derivative instruments including forwards for trading purposes
with each instrument’s primary risk exposure being foreign exchange risk. The fair value of these
derivative instruments is inciuded as a separate line item within the Statement of Assets and
Liahilities by contract type.

The following tables provide information sbout the fair values and the location of denvatives
not accounted for as hedging instruments which zre included within the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities at March 31, 2022 and are grouped by derivative type:

Asset
Derivatives!"
Foreign
Exchange
Risk

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts ¥ 6328183

Liability
Foreign
Exchange
sk
Forward Forcign Currency Contracts 5§ 3.BEROTR

o Genesally, the location for asset desivatives is receivables and wnrealized gain and for lability derivatives i payazles
and anrealized (Joss)

The following tables provide information about the effect of derivatives within the Fund's Statement
of Operations for the vear ended March 31, 2022 The first table provides additional detail about
the amounts and sources of pains or losses realized on derivatives during the year. The second
table provides additional information about the change in unrealized gain (loss) resulting from the
Fund's derivatives during the year. The realized anc unrealized gains and losses from derivatives are
presented as separate line items on the Statement of Operations.

Amount of
Realized
{Loss) on

Derivatives

Recopnized
Foreign
Exchange

Risk

Forward Foreign Currency Contricts 5 (231 5:3_255
Tae—— T
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Motes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2022

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

11. Derivative Instruments (Continued}

Change in

Unrealized
Gain (Loss)

o
Derivatives
Recopnized
Foreign
Exchange
Risk

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 6,707,733

During the year ended March 31, 2022 the volume of derivatives activity for the Fund was as follows:

Monthly
Average
Yalues
Forward Currency Contracts to Deliver'™ & (113.665014)
Forward Currency Contracts 1o Receive™ 205,659,123

@ This amount, convested to presentational currency where applicable, corresponds to the represeniative average
payable value at settlement date hased on the monthly activity of the Fund.

@ Tiis amount, comverted to presentationa] emrency whore applicable, eortespends w the representative averape
receivable value st setilermment date based on the monthly activiey of the Fund.

12, Offsetting Assets and Liahilities

By using derivative instruments, the Fund is exposed to the counterpartys credit risk, the risk that
derivative counterparties may not perform in accardance with the contractual provisions offset by
the vaiue of any collateral received. The Fund’s exposure to credit risk associated with counterparty
non-performance is limited to the unrealized gains inberent in such transactions that are recognized
withis the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund minimizes counterparty credit risk through
credit limits and approvals, credit monitoring procedures, executing master netting arrangements,
and manzging margin and collateral requirements, as appropriate. The Fund records counterparty
credit risk valuation adjustments, if material, on certain derivative assets in order to appropriately
reflect the credit quality of the counterparty. These adjustments are also recorded on the market
quotes received from counterperties or other market participants since these quotes may not fully
reflect the credit risk of the counterparties to the derivative instruments,

For financial reporting purposes, the Fund does not offset derivative assets and liabilities that
are subject to netiing arrangements within the Stetement of Assets and Liabilities. Information is

presented below for all derivative assets and liabilities that are subject to an enforceable Master
Netting Agreement (“MNAY). = . d

3
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2022

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

11.

Offsetting Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

Offsetting of Derivative Assets and Liabilities at March 31,2022
Amounts Presented in the Statement

Assets Liabilities
Forward Foreign Cureency Contracts $ 6,328,183 5 3883078
Total dernvative assets and lizhilities in the Statement of Assets &
Liabilitics subject to a MNA § 6328183 5 3883073
Derivative Assets and Collateral Received
Ciross
Amounis of
Assels
Presented in
the Siatement
of Assets and F:nancial Cash Received
Liabifities Issirumeni as Collateral Met Amount™
Citibank, M.A® g 221474 8 {199} % — % 221,273
Goldman Sachs
Intermational™ 1,652,622 {1,652,62%) .- —
FPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A @ 576,460 {239,550 — 336,910
Morgan Stanley & Co.
International ple™ 3545404 {B30,236) — 2915168
URS AGR 333,223 (332,223) = —_
Total 3 6,328,187 § (2,854,830) § — § 3,475.353

W Net amount reprosents the net amount receivable from the counterparty in the event of defauly
= Orver the Counter.

32

193/342



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

il Offsetting Assets and Liabilities {Continued)
Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Pledged

Gross
Amounts of
Linhilities
Presented in
the Statement
af Assets and Financial Cash Fledged
Liabilities Lastrument a8 Collateral MNet Amount'™
Citihank, N.AS 5 199 % (199 § — &
Goldmen Sachs
International @ 2,400,012 (1,652,622) - 747,350
IPMoarpan Chase
Bank, M.A. 239,550 (239.550) — i
Morgan Stanley & Co.
[nternntional plet™ 630,236 (630.236) — —
UBS AGH 615,081 {332,223) - 285,858
Toral i IRER0TE S (2,854.830) § — § 1,033,248

M Net amount represents the net anount payable from the counterparty in the event of defaull.
B Qver the Counter.

13 Fund Invesiment Risks
Lower-Raied Securities Risk

The Fund may invest in lower-rated securities, which are commonly referred (o as “junk bonds” or
“high yield"” bonds. Lower-rated securities reflect a greater possibility that adverse changes in the
financial condition of the issuer or in general econemic conditions, or an unanticipated rise in interest
rates, may impair the ability of the issuer to make payments of inlerest and principal. Additionally,
lower-rated securities are generally less liquid than higher-rated securities. The inability or pesceived
inability of issuers to make timely payments of interest and principal and limitations in liquidity
would likely make the values of securities held by the Fund more volatile and could limit the Fund's
ability to sell its securities at prices approximating the valoes placed on such securities.

Investment in Emerging SEUeTS

The Fund may invest in emerging marke! instruments which are subject (o certain credit and market
risks. The securities and currency markets of emerging market covntries are generally smailer, less
developed, less liquid and more volatile than the securities and currency markets of the United States
ané other developed markets, Disclosure and reguistory standards in many respects are less stringent
than in other developed markets. There also may be a lower level of monitering and regulation of
securities markets in emerging market countries 2nd the activities of investors in such markets and
enforcement of existing regulations may be extremely limited. Political and economic structures in
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2022

{Expressed in U.5, Dollars)

13, Fund Investment Risks (Continued}

Investment in Emerging Market Issuers (Continued)

many of these countries may be in their infancy and developing rapidly, and such countries may lack
the social, political and economic stability characteristics of more developed countries.

Investment in Non-11.5. Securities

The Fund invests in securities of non-1.5. issuers which present certain special risks, including those
resulting from future political, legal, and cconomic developments, which could include changes
in currency exchange ratcs cr exchange control regulations, expropriation of assets, confiscatory
taxation, nationalization of assets, imposition of witbholding or other taxes, adverse changes in
investment capital or exchange control regulaticns, political changes, diplomatic developments,
difficulty in obtaining and enforcing judgments against non-US. entities, the possible imposition
of the applicable country’s governmental laws or “estrictions, and the reduced availability of public
information concerning issuers. Additionally, issusrs of non-ULS. securities are not generally subject
to uniform accounting, auditing and financial reporting standards or other regulatory practices
and requirements comparable to those applicable to US. issuers. In the event of nationalization,
expropriation or other confiscation of assets, the Fand could lose its entire invesiment in a security.

The costs associated with investment in debt secorities of non-U.8. issuers, including withholding
taxes, brokerage commissions and custodial fees, may be higher than those associated with
invesiment in debt securities of U5, issuers. In addition, non-1LS. securities transactions may be
subject 1o difficulties associated with the settlement of such transactions. Non-UL58, markets have
different clearance and settlerient procedures witizh in some markets have at times failed to keep
pace with the volume of tramsactions, thereby creating substantial delays and settlernent failures.
Delays in settlement could resilt in temporary periods when assets of the Fund are uninvested and
o return is eamed thereon. Settlement failures could also adversely affect the Fund's performance.
The inability of the Fund to make intended security purchases due to settlement problems could
cause it Lo miss attractive investment opportunities. Inability to dispose of a porifolio security due
to settlement problems could result in losses to the Fund due to subsequent declines in value of the
portfolio security.

Sovereign Debt Risk

The Fund may invest in soversign debt instrumests which can invelve a high degree of risk. The
governmental entity that controls the repayment of sovereign debt may not be able or willing to repay
the principal and/or interest when due in accordasce with the terms of the debt. A governmental
entity’s willingness or ability to repay principal and interest when due may be affected by, among
ather factors, its cash flow situation, the extent of its reserves, the availability of suificient foreign
exchange on the date a payment is due, the relative size of the debt service burden to the economy
as a whole, the governmental entity’s policy toward the International Monetary Fund, the political
constraints to which a governmental entity may be subject, and changes in governments-and political
VSIS,
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Motes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

13, Fund Investment Risks (Continued)
Mon-Publicly Traded and Rule 144A Securities Risk

The Fund may invest in non-publicly traded and Rule 144A securities which may involve a high
degree of business and financial risk and may result in substantial losses. These securities may be less
liquid than publicly traded securities, and the Fund may take longer to liquidate these positions than
would be the case for publicly traded securities. Although these securities may be resold in privately
negotiated transactions, the prices realized from these sales could be less than those originally paid
by the Fund. Further, companies whose securities are not publicly traded may not be subject to the
disclosure and other investor protection requirements that would be applicable if their securities
were publicly traded. Consequently, these securities may be difficult to value.

Hedging Transactions Risk

Hedging strategies in general are usually intended to limit or reduce investment risk, but can also be
expected to limit or reduce the potential for profit. Not withstanding the foregoing, to the extent taat
assets of the Fund attributable to a particular Class of shares are insufficient to satisfy the liabilities
assoviated with a hedging transaction with respect to such Class of shares, such amount of the
lizhilities that exceed such assets may be borne by the other Classes of shares of the Fand.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fixed income securities will decline in value because of changes
in interest rates. As nominal interest rates rise, the value of certain fixed income securities held by
the Fund is likely to decrease. A nominal interest rate can be deseribed as the sum of a real interest
rate and an expected inflation rate. Fixed income securities with longer durations tend 1o be more
sensitive to changes in interest rates, usually making them more volatile than securities with shorter
durations. Duration is used primarily as a measure of the sensitivity of a fixed income’s market price
{0 inmterest rate (1.e., yield) movements.

Liguidity Risk

The Fund may invest in assets and derivatives that may not be readily available to sell or dispose
of, including securities whose disposition is restricted by securities laws. The effect of liquidity risk
is particularly pronounced when low trading volume, lack of 2 market maker, large position size,
or legal restrictions (including daily price fluctation limits or “circuit breakers™ or an affiliaton
with the issuer of a security) limit or prevent the Fund’s ability to initiate a transaction, sell assats,
or unwind derivative positions at desirable prices. The Fund is also exposed to liquidity risk when it
has an obligation to purchase particular securities (for example, as a result of entering into reverse
repurchiase agreements, writing a put, or closing out a short position).
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(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
March 31, 2022
{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

13.

Fund Investment Risks (Continued)
Coneentration of Risk

To the extent the Fund concentrates its investments in one or mare countries, the value of the Fund’s
assets will be especially affected by economic, palitical and other factors affecting such country or
countries, and may flucruate more widely than the value of a fund that invests in a greater number
of countres.

Derivative Instruments Risk

The Fund may invest in various derivatives which may present additional risks and costs that are
different from and, in certain cases, greater than the risks and costs presented by investing directly in
securities and other more traditional investments, Following are add’tional risk factors concerning
the use of derivatives:

» Management Risk: Derivative products are specialized instruments that require investment
techniques and risk analyses different from those associated with stocks and bonds. The
suceessiul use of derivatives requires sophisticated management and an understanding not oaly
of the underlying instrument but also of the desivative itself. In particular, the use and complexity
of derivatives require the maintenance of adeguate controls to monitor the transactions entered
itto, and the ability to assess the risk that a derivative adds to the Fund’s portfolio,

o Counterparty Credit Risk: The use of derivatives subjects the Fund to the risk that the counterparty
will not be able or willing to make timely settlement payments or otherwise meet its obligations,
especially during unusually adverse market conditions. If the counterparty defaults, the Fund
will have contractual remedies, but the Funé may be unable to enforce its contractual rights,
Counterparty risk is more pronounced if a counterparty’s obligations exceed the amount of
collateral held by the Fund (if any), the Fund is unable to exercise its interest in collateral upon
defizit by the counterparty, or the termination value of the instrument varies significantly from
the marked-to-market value of the instrument.

& Documentation Risk: Many derivative instruments have documentation risk. Because the
contract for each over-the-counter derivative ansaction is individually negetiated with a specific
counterparty, there exists the risk that the perties may interpret contractual terms differently.
If that occurs, the cost and unpredictability of the legal proceedings required for the Fund 1o
enforce its contractual rights may lead the Fund to decide not to pursue its claims against the
counterparty. The Fund, therefore, assumes the risk that it may be unable 1o obtain payments the
Investment Manager believes are owed to them under derivatives instruments or those payments
may be delayed or made anly after the Fund has incarred the costs of litigation.
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(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars})

14. Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal course of business, the Fund eaters into contracts that contain a variety of representations
and warranties, which provide general indemnifications. The Fund’s maximum exposure under these
arrangements is unknown, as this would involve futare claims that may be made against the Fund
that have not yer occurred. Based on experience, management is of the view that the risk of loss
in connection with these potential indemnification obligations is remote; however, there can be no
assurance that material liabilities related 1o such obligations will not arise in the futare that could
adversely impact the business of the Fund.

15.  Subsequent Events

The Fund has evaluated subsequent events through May 26, 2022, the date the financial staternents
were available 1o be issned.

On February 24, 2022, Russia commenced a military attack on Ukraine. The outbreak of hostilities
between the two countries could reselt in more widespread conflict and could have a severe adverse
effect on the region and the markets. In addition, sanctions imposed on Russia by the United States
and other couniries, and any sanctions imposed in the future eould have a significant adverse impact
on the Russian economy and related markets. The price and liquidity of investments may fluctuate
widely a5 a result of the conflict and related events. Management is continuing to monitor this
development and evaluate its impact on the Funds. The extent and duration of Russia’s military
actions and the repercussions of such actions are impossible to predict, but could result in significant
marlket disruption.
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(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

Schedule of Investments

March 31, 2022
(Expressed in U.S. Dollars}

PRINCIPAL ‘NTEREST MATURITY FAIR
AMOUNT * RATE DATE COST ___VALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES - B5.T%
ANGOLA - 0.3%
ig - 0.3%

5 375,000 Angelan Government [mtemmaticne] Bond [444 L2500 May-00-2008 § 34449 5 B2 H5%
TOTAL ANGOLA ITd 440 382969
ARCGENTINA = LB%

Ebectric - 0.3 %
JR0,000  Prmpn Energia 54 1444 7500 Jans24-2007 378,015 ALY
Ol & Gas - 0L6%
330,000 YPFSA 1844 500 Jul-28- 2025 315,678 ZED91Z
SS2THE  YPF SA 14440 4000 Feb-12-2026 4,247 205972
09,924 86,584
Pipelines - 0.5%
T20UM0  Trassporiadora de (as del Sur SA 1444 67800 May02-2025 6997 655200

Regional (State/Province) - 16%
Provincia de Batnos Airsaovermment Bonds 1444

TI2458  MTNY 1800 Sep0l-2007 330,703 34052
SEO00  Prowineba de Cordoba ]44A 0 5000 Jun=01-2427 336,856 360,806
66,559 651,758
Sovereign = 0LB%
166,195  Asgenting Republic Gaversment lnterastional Bond 1000 JelGR-2(29 102,001 AT
40,589 Argentine Repubiic Governmert lnternational Boad | 0.5900  Jul-09.2030 434,219 253314
1,905,310 Amgentine Republis Governswn International Bend 4 LIE5  hul09-20ds HE,1T72 353,702
£ 504 202 Big 198
TOTAL ARGENTINA 3,086,058 1,248,459
BAHAMASL -0.1%
Sovereign = 0.3%
206000 Bshamas Government Tateraational Bond 1544 57500 Jan-16-2024 192,604 151,029
250,000 Awharus Government [mtersatiosal Bond 1444 6950 Mow-R0-2029 158,342 205,527
450,946 BB
TOTAL BAHAMAS 450,546 ARLES6
BAHRAIN - 8.3%
Severeken - 0.4%

370,000 Bahrain Governmesl Intematonel Bond 1244 G000 Sep-15-2044 34T,131 325,118
TOTAL BAHRAIN T3 A5018
BERMUD:A - 2.0%

Luizure Tlme - 20%%
450,000 Viking Cruises Lid, 1444 000  Feb-15-2020 420,000 442,434
750,000 Viking Oocan Craises Ship vIL Lid, 1444 5625 Fe-15-2020 T 68 HE5,495
1,300,000 VOO Escrow Lad. 134A 5000 Fee15-2008 1,259,334 1,219,831
2579302 2,347,751
TOTAL BERMUDA 2830 902 1347751
BRAZIL - 0.i%%
Diversliled Flaamelal Service - 6%

TI0,000 B3 5A - Orasil Bolsa Balows 1444, £02%  Sep-20-2031 TI9050 GEAER

TOTAL BRAZIL TR 056 G5581%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
4
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

FRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY FAIR
AMOUNT * RATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Continwod)
CANADA - L%
Machinery-Iiversified - 0.2%
5 2E0.000  ATS Automation Tooling Systems [ne, 1444 41255 Des-)5-2008 % ZRLO34 8 263,523
Miming - .3%

350,000  First Qruentum Miscrals Lad 1244 6875 Oxs-15-0027 130,000 45,014
O & Gas - 0L2%

HO0M0  MEG Ererpy Carp. 1444 L7 Fehe00-2009 200,000 200,757
Puckaging & Contaloers < 0.1%

160000 Cascades InciChscades USA loe, 1444 375 kan-15-2028 160,000 160,379
Pharmaceuticali - 8.2%

170,000 Bansch Feaith Coa. Ine. 1444 6125 Feb-Dl-2007 1P 0 171,251
Retail - 1.0%

1,210,000 1911TTE BC ULCMew Red Finance tnc, 1444 3800 Febl5-2000 1,200,054 1118030
TOTAL CANADA IS8 1 261,054
CAYMAN ISLANDS - 52%
Adrdines - 1.0%s
Spirit Leyaley Cayman Lid Spant [P Cayman Lid,

1,086,050 1444 E000  Sep-20-2025 1,131,852 1,158,241
Diversified Financial Services = 9.9%

1028512 Gloal Adrcrefl Leasing Co. Lad, PIK 1424 £.500  Sepel5-2004 £5831% 1,007,257
Ladging - 1.1%

740,000 Meleo Resarts Finance Lud, 1444 5375 Decadd-2020 TIL182 627,150

0,000 MGM China Holdings Lid. 1444 4,750  Feb-01-2027 63RA3T 462 951

300,000 Sands China Lud 5400 Aup-0E-2008 x40 295386

650,000 Sands Chine 1od. 1444 5.280  Ang-(E-2031 A31,148 527,732

400,000 Wynn Mecaa Lid. L43A 5500  Dphr-2007 TR 46,0060

TO000  Wymn Maca Lid, 1424 5625 Aug-26-2006 752,241 Ga4, 26k

TIOE0  Wynn Mocaa Lid. 1444 5423 DeocadS-H2% 745,300 654,080

4,173 657 3457 565
Real Estale - (1%
250000 Chira SCE Group Hobdings Ll GO0T  Feb D4-2005 245458 121,250
SHO000  Yiskou Group Holdings Co. Lid 6000 Oct25-2003 471354 72,500
T8 812 193,730
TOTAL CAYMAN ISLANDS 6882619 EA36813
COLOMBIA - 0.3%
Soverelgn - .3%

430,000 Colomiin CGoverzment Intersational Bossd 3025 Ape15-2031 02973 36,103
TOTAL COLOMBIA 392,973 364, 103
COSTA RICA -0.2%

Sovereign - 1.21%

250,000 Cosy Rica Government Internatican] Bond 14244 T Ape-(u-iiad 42 BRI 345333
TOTAL COSTA RICA 243 AR 246,313
DOMINTCAN REPUBLIC - 134
Sovereign - 1.1%

220,000  Doaminican Repablic Mnecnatiosal Bond 1444 5500  Peb-22-2008 TEO,000 ATT 4T

640,000  Dominican Repabliz Inlernationa] Bund 1447 4500 Jam=30-2000° Gl il 5, 568

300,000 Dominbean Repablic Internatione] Band 1444 GO0 Fes-22-1073 T8 292,545

The accompanying netes are an integral part of these finazcial statements.
5
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

FRIMNCTRAL INTEREST MATURITY EalR
AMOUNT * RATE DATE COST VALUE

NOTES AND DERENTURES (Costinwed)
TOMINICAN REPUBLIC {Continued)

Seversipn (Continwed
§ 320,000 Dominican Repuablic Internstioas] Bond 1444 GAS0%  Jan-2T-2045 % 325867 § 318,867
1335108 1,479,759
TOTAL DOMINICAN REFUBLIC 1535108 1,479,759
ECUADDR - 0.4%
Soverclgn - BdY

H30000  Beuader Governmaost International Bood 14404 L0 d-31-20aE 33092 L2850
TOTAL ECUADMR 33092 42726
EGYFT - L.1%

Sovereign = L1%s

200,000 Egypt Government Ietcnatonal Bond 6. 580 Feh-21-2028 2R T 185,404

620,000 Egypt Gevernment Tnternational Band 1444 MTN 3575 Feb-16-2026 663,734 613,000

S10,000  Egyp Government Isginationa! Bond 1444 MTN 7600 Bar-Dl-2029 S10,000 ARE 774

1,385,909 128170
TOTAL EGYPT 1,385,500 st _!..133.”!
FRANCE - 0.9%
Retail - 0.3%
EUR LEDG00  Burger King Frnce SAS 4750 NowdD|-2026 H0a5T M, 123
Telecomneunications - 0,7%

930,000 Alice France SAFranos 1444 5500 Oct15-202% 17245 H35,351
TOTAL FRANCE 1,126 882 1035474
GERMANY - 1.2%

Cosnrercial Services = 0.4%

EUR 430,000 APCOA Packing Heldings GmhH 2625 Jam=l 52627 3139959 471,830
Leisure Time - 0.3%

ELR 60,000  TU Crgses GmbH G300 Mmy-15-2026 441 562 300,524
Pharmaceaticals - 1.5%

00,000  Cheplapharm Areneisisiel GmiH 1484 5500 Jame 152028 591690 5T 498
TOTAL GERMANY 1,550,352 1,425,852
GHANA = 0.6%

Sovercign = 0.6%

680,000 Ghars Covernment International Bend 1444 10,750 Ogi-14-2080 714,658 TH9.100
TOTAL GHANA 716,628 2 T8, 100
INDONESTA - 0L3%

Elgetric = 01.3%

390,000 Cikawarg Limzizde Thk FT 1434 4950 Sep-ls-2026 A7 348,350
TOTAL INDONESTIA 346,487 348,30
IRELAND - 0.2%

Packaging & Coatainers - 0.1%
Artagh Pacicaping Finanoe PLC Andagh Holdings

F, Tk LSA Ine, 4424 E250 Aup-15-D027 ifSSLSj Pt &L
TOTAL IRELAND 285,185 178,250
JTALY - L.2% ¥
Banks - 0.2% '

260000 lazess Senpeclo SpaA 1444 4198 - Jur0]-2002 s e v 230,259
TOTAL ITALY 250,500 130,259

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
6
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Assat Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

PRINCIFAL INTEREST MATURITY FAIR
AMOUNT * RATE DATE COST VALUE

NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Centinued)
TVORY COAST - 0.9%

Severign - D9%
5 190,514  Ivory Coasd Governmen! Iniaroasional Bosd | L750% Dec-31-2032 § 1E03T0 8 157,267
£30,000  bvory Coasy Gevernment International Hood (244 6025 Juon-l52093 Bl 03 03,778
SMATE  WGL04s
TOTAL IVORY COAST 084373 oyl 148
JERSEY CHANNEL ISLAND = L.5%
Retail = 0.5%
GHP 270,000 Whoeh Bideo Lad 6750 Jul-l5-2026 74,858 335,088
GEP 230,000 Wheel Bideo Lud 1444 6750 Jul-15-2006 IR A0 273,035
55,298 608,123
TOTAL JERSEY CHANNEL ISLAND B3I 08,113
KENYA - 0.3%
Sovercipn - 0.1%
300,000 xm.emamu;wumw 1444 125 Feb-22.2028 1232 : ZR%.740
TOTAL KENYA 312,802 2487
LIBERLA - 10% -
Loeizure Time - 1.0%
360,00  Royal Canbbean Coeises Lid, 1444 4250 Tul-Mi-2026 Tt 000 EELAEEY
T40,000  Foyel Caribbean Cruises Lid, 1444 5800 Aug-31-2C26 3401, (00 334,387
60,000 Rayal Caribbean Cnises L1l 1444 SE00  Aped)-N2E 455,647 0811
1155 587 1,106, Lad
TOTAL LIEERIA 1,155,637 1,106,144
LUXEMBOURG « L6%
Biodechnalogy - 0.4%
Gar 340000 Cidron Aida Fisco Serl 5250 ApeOl-20E A5 S48 419,125
Building Materials - 0.2%%
EUR 310,000  Ideal Standard Intevastions] 54 375 ul3d-200% 361,208 285,338
il & Gaz -8,5%
S10,000  Ubirspar Tnicrmasionil SA [44A 4250 OctD6-3006 S 46 518,568
Packaging & Contxiners = 0.5%
80,000 ARD Frmamoe SA PIK 1244 i 50 Juns340=2027 G0, . 621,246
Teleeommmnlcaiions - L%
(40,000 Abice France Holdieg SA 14440 100500 May-15-2027 63,100 670,417
H10,000  Abice France Holdieg 54 1424 GO0 Felbe]5<2028 SER2IE 526,125
1,241,118 1,196,542
TOTAL LUXEMBOURG 3,254 040 3040518
MEXICD - 3.6%
Banks - 1.0%
1,280,000 BEVA Banconer S0 Texas 1444 ~ 5125 Jan-1E-2033 1,186,157 1,207,062
0l & Gas - L.9%
1,520,000 Petealoos Mexicenos 6625 Jus.15-20%3 1,301,101 1363, 164
1,000,000  Petroleos Menicanos 6625 Jum15-2008 BE0E1Y E52,00:
2,001,914 2.215,064
Severcign - 0.7% v
260,00 Mexico (overnmant Isemational Band 24659 May-De-2031 51,583 257,380

The accompanying netes are an integral part of these financial statements.
T
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2022

{Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

PRINCIFAL INTEREST MATURITY FALR
AMOUNT * HATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)
MEXICO [Conitnaed)

Severign (Continaed)
L SI0000  Mexion Gevernment Intereational Boed 315007  Fob-]2-2034 5 566304 § 530,563
B1#,527 THTHA3
TOTAL MEXICO Al 066 550 o4, 190,169
NETHERLANDS - 7.4%
Eanks - L6
G30,000  NatWest Markets NY TAE0 May-15-20203 631,521 452,160
Electronics - 0.3%%
U000 Sensics Technolopies BY 1444 2000 Ape 52029 332212 34,133
Imtermet = 0.2%
FUR 270,000 Ulniesd Groap BV £240  Feall-0030 310,290 151,835
Media - 10%
320,000 UPC Holding BV L44A £500  Jan-15-2028 321,263 36,096
S30000  VZ Seawod Floancing BY [44A 5000 Ja-B5-3002 F21.982 0,550
1,243 245 1,185,646
(Nl & Cas - 18%

1890000 Pewrotras Globa! Firmoos BY 5750 Feb-01-2009 EIGIATE 2067 148
Pharemnacenticals - 1.5%

4550000 Tewa Pharmecectical Fimance Netheziaads 111 AV 1080 Oc01-2025 4,303 4,132,285
TOTAL NETHERLANDS B 054 TI6 H053,187
NIGERIA - 0.7%

Sovercign - 0.7%
300,000 Niperia Governmens lutersitional Boed 1444 TEM  Febel6-2032 T2 263,115
530,000 Wigerls Government Interritional Bosd MTH 6500  MNov-XE-2027 532,004 503,500
243 TEG } TE66L5
TOTAL NIGERIA BAZ.T56 7RG 625
OMAN - 0.6%
Severvign - 0.6%

00,000 Oman Government Intemational Bond 1444 5623 Jan-17-200% 372,568 TIL 568
TOTAL OMAN STLS68 Tk 568
PANAMA = L1%

Lalswre Thowe - 1.1%
540,000 Cernival Corp. 1444 5750 Mua0)-2027 540,000 214,713
TL0,000  Cartivel Corp. 1444 000 lay-01-2029 T40,68L £507,30F
1,280,681 Bedfrllirr]
TOTAL PANAMA 1,280,681 1212022
FPARAGUAY - 0.5%
Severeign - 1L9%%

1,060,000 Paraguay Governmes! Ietoouaizonal Bood 1444 2738 Jan-X0-3003 1,128,625 1,006, 600
TOTAL PARAGUAY 1128628 16,600
FERU - L1%

Dl & Gas - 0AYe

SG00000  Petrolsos del Pera SA 1844 750 Juns] %22 SaE1E . 447,750
Severvign - 8,7%

2A0000  Peruvinn Covermutiestt Irnemational Bond 2TE1 Jam-23-2031 240,004 126,557

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
8
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

PRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY FAIR
AMOUNT * RATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Continued) [
FERU (Cantinued)
Sovervigs (Continoed)
£ TI0,500  Peruvian Grerpmens [nkerrational Bond LBG2% Decdl-2032 S 2 1% T 1 G106
ERG.TO5 37,003
TOTAL PERU 1.393,107 1,284,753
SENEGAL - 2%
Baverelgn - 0.1 %

280000  Senepil Government Intermaticmal Bomd 1444 6750 Binrel3-20<43 LRE 300 242,340
TOTAL SENEGAL ZER 300 242340
SOUTHAFRICA = 0.4%

Soverehrn - 0.4%
Republic of South Africa Goviramen!t International

10,000 Bosd 5650 Sep27-2047 454,776 446,013
TOTAL SOUTH AFRECA d34.TTH 446,013
SPAIN - LT%

Engineering & Constrection - 0.1%

ELR 200,000 Celinex Floanos Co. SA MTN 2000 Feb-135=-1033 35241 159 608
Foetail = D6%

EUR 400,000 Tendam Brends SARS ~ 5290 Sep-l5-2024 THE6TR 654382
TOTAL SFPAIN a41.020 543 990
TURKEY « 3.0%

Banks - 0.3%

00000 TC Zira: Banlas! AS 1444 MTN 5125 Sep-19-2013 ITLEL3 383,552
Sovereign - Z.0%

2550000 Torkey Governanent Inematicnn] Bond 4280  Aprld-J0I6 337,674 1,293,701
Teleenmmumications = L8%

930,000 Turk Telekomanikasyoa A% L4234 575 Feb-28-2025 D36 985 aLg M
TOTAL TURKEY 3,636,572 3,556,040
UKRAINE = 0.2%

Bovercipn - 0L1%

GE0000  Ulraine Gevernment Intzrmationa] Bond 1375 Sep-2i-DO32 G50, (00 274,625

TOTAL UKRAINE G50, 000 I1Td 525

UNITED KINCODOM - 6.0%
Beverages - IL.7%

[riahg Téd, 000 Marston's lasver FLC 3380 Ful-36-2035 HS0.LEY R0, 218
Chemicals = 05%
ELUR E50,000 [NEOS Quanro Fiaizoe | PLU 3750 Jul-13-2026 1EM9. 508 91,768
EUR 120,000 INEOS (hatiro Fimanee | FLO 14dA 1.750 Jel-15-2026 145 206 125597
1,195,114 1,017,666
Food - 0.3%
GBF $20,000  Bellis Acquiziten Co. PLC 4500 Feb-16-2026 43206 40,506
Lefiyare Time - 3.0%
ELR A50,000 Careival PLC 1000 O 282009 518491 405 864
CRP 454,000 Saga PLC 3375 May-12-2024 £43,038 474,584
GEr LE30000  Saga PLC 5,500 Jual- 152026 - AT 2407733
1,837,625 3,428 483

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

PRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY FATR
AMOUNT * RATE DATE COST VALUE

NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Continmed)
URITED KINGDOM (Coatinaed)

Miedia - 0.5%

5 G20,0000  Virgin Media Secured Fiagncr PLC 1484 55000 May-l5-200% F 20,000 5 614,054
Reetail = 0.3%

GHP 00,000 Marks & Spencer PLC MTN 3750 May-19-1026 429,960 IBT 402
Teleeommunications - 0.3%

LAN0 Vied OF UK Financing 1 PLC 1444 4780 lull 52031 S0 D 30,00

TOTAL UNITED KINGEMIN T,704,152 6,973,338
UNITED STATES - 33.8%
Abrlimes - 1.5%

1,230,000 Delze Al Lines Inc. 1344 000 Miy-01-202% 1L 215372 1316552
200,000 Dhelta Ade Lines Inc/SkyMiles [P Lid, 1424 4750 Oct-20-2028 210,754 211,523
S50,000  Spirit Aizlines Ine. Lo May-15-2026 00,430 S02,972

2115000 United Adrlines Inc. 1824 4525 Apel5-I029 1174 656 2013478

4,121,272 4[4, BT
Auts Mapafacturers = 4.1%

1,240,000 Ford Matar O, 3250 Felb-12-2032 105,752 1,105,654
200500 Foed Metar Crodit Co, LILC 4950 May-28-2007 199,574 5,606

2,550,000 Food Mosor Credit Co, LLC 2900 Fobe16-2028 233508 2,194,530

LS00 JB Poindester & Co, Ino. 1444 L1235 Apr-l5-2006 1126502 1,123,829

5012056 4,731,559
Auto Parts & Equipment - 0.6%
TROO00  Amservcas Axle & Marnfuctusing lse 5000 DoeDi-2029 771,137 T3l 24
Hublding Material - L.T%
TIOMO  Bolse Cascade Co. 1444 4875 JulDl-2030 Ta0g00 70997
80,000  Standard Isdusiries Tne b0 1444 5000 Feb-15-2007 17251 9442
BOT 251 0,439
Cheraleals - 1.5%
570,000 Sasol Finencieg USA LLC 5500 hear-1E-2000 S70,000 33,131
Cammercls] Services - 28%
Allled Universal Holdoo LLC/ AL Universal
B0, 000 Finanee Corp/Atlas Lunco 4 Serl 1444 4625 Juo-0i-2008 21,368 TE5A%54
730,000 Cardage Serviess Ine. 1444 4250 Miay-15-2029 Ti4,386 651 631
S10.000  Corelivic lnc. 8250 Apr-13-I02E Gl 13 630,902
230,000 Corelivie Inc, 4750  Oet-15-2007 228,343 200,243
IM000  Stomedor e 1424 BR300 Myl §-2029 20,148 319,580
AR0,000  WW Imternational Tno, 444 4800 Apr-| -0 479,305 350,079
3,148,243 TOER ERD
DistribulioaWiolesale - 6%
700,000 HEE Equipment Scrvices Ine. 1444 1878 Dec-l5.2008 T2 738,092
Diversified Fimameial Serviees - 0.21%
290,000 * Colabase Global Ine, L44A 362% - Dol-2031 290,000 247,225
Emergy-Alternate Seureca - 03% ;
310,000  Sunnove Enerpy Covp. 1444 5815 Bep0l-2026 0268 205,459
Engineering & Comsrection - 1.3%
30,000 TopBuild-Corp. 1444 = 14625 ¢ Mpelioe - 330,000 300,327
Intermed - 1% :
220,000  Acuris Fimisos US Ioc/Acurs Ficance SARL 1444 3000 May-01-2028 220,000 02,125
370,000 Mstel Group Holdings I LLC 1544 3625 D501 -2031 320,000 P LA

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Comtinued)

March 31, 2022

{Expressed in U.S, Dollars)

PRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY FalR
AMOUNT * RATE DATE COST VALUE
NOTES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)
UNITED STATES (Costizied )
Interaet (Contnwed)
5 1,605,000 MercadoLibee Inc. 3125% Tap-l4-2081 5 1506746 5 1,398,516
2136,746 1,208.756
Lodging - 0.4%
350,000 Las Vegas Samds Corp, 3000 Aug-DR-200% 359,729 320947
40000 Wyndham Haotels & Fesons Inc, L4 4375 Auge15-20%8 140,000 134,750
499,779 455,743
Muchinery-Constroctien & Mining - 0.3%
IR0000  BWX Techoolegies lns, 1444 4125 Jun-30-200% I 364,381
Media - 6.7%
2,530,000 CCD Haldings LLECACTO Eoldings Capital Corp. 4500 Miny-Dl-20E2 2,050 457 1,855, 856
CO0 Holdings LLC/CO0 Foldings Capitad Corp.
297,000 L44A 500 Aup-15-2030 302,385 LTRATE
CO0 Haldings LLCACTO Eoldings Capital Corp,
SL0,000 [24a 4380 FebD]-2031 A1 7R0 BI9,448
550,000 CSC Holings LLC [44A GA00 Febe0l-202% 552,621 534,657
AL000  CHC Holdings LLC 1444 2750 Jan-1 521033 A2 540 36T 652
450,000  CEC Holdings LLC 1424 000 Noy-l5-D051 383,792 EELEHL
DIRECTY Holdings LLOTHRECTW Financing Co.
350,00 =6, 1444 5875 Awg-l5RET 350,000 345,056
570,000 DISH DBE Corp 7750 Jul01-2026 33255 565,757
410,000 DISH D8RS Corp 5125 Jus01-2029 410,000 44,152
410,000 DIEH DBS Corp. 1944 5750 Dec-fl-X2d 410,000 387,902
15200000 [ISH Metoork Corp. 1378 Aupgelsa0e 1,447,830 1,371,456
130,000 Sirius XM Radio ne. 1A 4125 D120 330,000 220
175000 Univision Comenunicetions Ino, 1444, 9500 May-01-2025 172,857 184,007
5215885 1, TRERGS
Mining - 4%
425000 Freepori-McMoRan lnc. 5450 Mas| 52043 AT4RAT 476,875
il & Gas-3.7%
TM0M00  Apache Comp, 5008 Sepl-20e0 224,812 271,337
L0000 EQT Corp. 1500 Cer01-2007 1,368,302 1,437,079
100,000 EQT Cocp. 1444 LIS May15=M16 104,000 6,822
100,000  EQT Corp. 1444 3625 Muy-15-2031 103, i3 05,464
410,000 Ussis Perolenm loe, 1444 6375 Jun-01-20045 403484 421609
£30,000 Occidental Petroleum Corp G125 Jen=D=2031 G0, 08,7540
50,000 Hange Resoances Com. 8250  Jap-15-2029 B30 635 628
400,000 Range Resoarces Corp. 1444 6750 Feb-15-20%0 397,382 AT, 417
230,000  Soushwestemn Escgy Co. 4.750 Feball] 2052 230,130 29712
4 Lo Bkl 4,205 850
Packaging & Coatainers - 1L.3%
440,000  Bali Corp TETS  Augel5-D030 £34,230 A4%E,342
250,000  Ball Corp. 3023 Sep-135-H0131 TH0,000 249 987
BT Paaiv LLC 7950 Dec-152025 THIHN2 RIOETT
1,397,841 1,555,206
Pharmaceutheals - 0.3%
400,300 . Bauseh Health Americas Ing, 1444 LS  ApeDl-2005. 418,500 409,746 - L. o
Fipaelines - 2.4% -
650,000 Energy Transfie LP 0 7128 - GO 570 633,572
T500000  Encrgy Transfer LP 0 6.750 — ThaH16E TESATT

The sccompanying nctes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

PRINCIPAL INTEREST MATURITY FALR
AMOUNT * RATE DATE COST ~_WALUE
KOTES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)
UNITED STATES (Cositioued )
Pipelines (Contineed)

L1 S0000  Emepy Trunsfer LP L2 6.500% - 5 w102 5 =
130,000  EQM Midareus Parnes LY 1444, 6,500 Jul-Gu-2027 130,000 135,720
590,000 Western Midstream Opecating LP 650 Tul1-2026 S90,632 E01.593%

40,000 Westcrn Midsiream Operating LIP 4.550  Feb01-2000 349,058 31
520,000  Western Midsiream Operating LP 5.750 Feb-01-2050 376,306 310,039
2,651,694 2,750,462
REITs - 0L1%
120,500 Driversified Healsheare T 4375 Mar01-2001 120,000 102,860
Roetall - 0.9%
130,000 Carrols Restsraet Groap Ire. 1444 5875 Jul0)-2029 315,043 262619
10,000 IRH [Tolding Comp. 1444 7006 Jemel5-2025 10,000 219,228
160,000 Micheels Cos neThe 1444 5250 May-01-2028 161048 147,033
TADOO0  Party City Holdings Inc, 1444 BT50 Feb-15-2024 242403 228,836
Subugban Propane Parinees LPSuborban Esergy
250,000 Finance Corp 1444 5000 Jan-0l-2031 252478 L AT
11R09TE L0592 363
Snftware = 0.4%
160,000  linsove Merger Sus ln:. 1284 6300 Feb-15.2038 180,546 174,628
IRO000  Racipace Technology Global Ine. 1484 3500 Feb-15-2028 30,000 340,356
S0, 000 514554
“Telecpmumumications - 9%
454,000 CosmmSeepe Tecknologies LLC 1444 GO0 Fun-15.2025 64,798 467,70
350000  Fronties Communicatbons Corp. 1444 5875 Oet-15-2027 350,000 148,257
00000 Level 3 Financing l=e. 1444 1625 Jan-15-2009 ER5 448 616,000
To0.000  T-Mobile USA Inc. L4624 Fhe]5-2029 TEILOTR 721,055
2,291,324 2,153,021
TOTAL UNITED STATES 40,731,596 30,244,022

VIRCIN [SLANDS (BRITISH) = 0.4%
Beverages - 0.4%
Central American Boailing Corp/CBC Boling

430,000 Holdoo SLBeliv Eeldon 51, 1244 5290 Apedl-2029 426,507 427,840
TOTAL VIRGIN ISLANDS (BRITISH) 16,7 427,850
TOTAL NOTES AND DEBENTURES 185331 076 99 418,057

TERM LOANS [FUNDED) - 2.1% =
UNITED STATES - 2.1%

Adrfines - 1.0%
&40,000  Milesge Flus Holdings LLC Inkial Term G250 Jum-21-2027 45357 458,026
T02900  Unied AirLines 62 Class B Term 4500 Apr-2]-2028 2555 695,522
1,133,231 1,153,845
Cable = Satellite - 1A%
1117350 DIRECTV Fim=cing LLC Tlesing Dste Term ST Aug-022027 L lI3A%. . 1,117,568
Techaology = 9.1%
151,640 ROLTerm ¥ 0000 Aprali-DE: 158,573 1 50, E82
TOTAL UNITED STATES : e ] 095 685 TAZLI0E
TOTAL TERM LOANS (FUNDED) X 398,655 TAZZIRE

The accompanying netes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments {Continued)

March 31, 2022

{Expressed in U.5. Dollars)

NUMBER OF FAIR
SHARES COST YALUE

INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATED INVESTMENT COMPANIES - 1.8%
TRELAMD - 1.8%

17572 Legg Mason USS Accursalating Share Fund 5 1942998 5 T, did
TOTAL IRELAND 1,942,798 1054 464
TOTAL INVESTMENTS [N AFFILIATED INVESTMENT
COMPANIES 1,042,790 2,054 464
PREFERRED STOCK - 0.2%
LUNITED STATES - 0.2%
Pipebines - 2%

200 Tasga Resoarces Compe MK 3'36_.529 313,064

TOTAL UNITED STATES 304,500 13,064
TOTAL PREFERRED STOCK 304,200 303,064

EXCHANGE TRADED FUND - 7%
UNITED STATES - 0L7%

11,607  SPDR Blocenbery Skort Tere High Yield Band ETF B9 §30.729
TOTAL UNTTED STATES g17.049 31,729
TOTAL EXCHANGE TRADED FUND 817,149 m.;:!
TOTAL INVESTMENTS - 80.5% $ 110794218 5 105039612
OTHER ASSETS [N EXCESS OF LIABILITIES - 9.5% 10,973,312
NET ASSETS - 100.0% 5 116,012,854

1440, Secarity is exempt From registration under Rule 1444 of the Securisies Act of 1933, These securitics may be resold in transactions
mxemp! from registration, pormally te gualified instifutione] buyers.

ETF Exchenge Traded Fund

BT Wiediam Term Mote

Fik Faymens bn Kind

REIT Rzl Esate Investmen: Tras

. Expressed in local currency, as unless imdicated.
\ Dienates o step-up bosdl. The rate indicaced is the carvent coapon &% of March 31, 3022,
£ The security i3 a perpetus] bond and has ne definite manedty date.
- Vhciable Rate Secusity. Rates disclosed are hat which wete in effect m Marech 30, 2022,
E] All o7 2 portica of tere leam secaritics that had mot settied as of Masxch 31, 2022,
Ferward Forclgn Currency Contracts

CONTRACTS IN EXCHANCE UNREALIZED
Agr-04-2022 HS AG AD 1940256 USD 1454420 5 (3,453)
Ape-04-20022 Goldman Sachs Internaticnal BRL 15,759,654 LISD 7540 842 30,306
Aprid2022 Goldman Sachs Internaticgal BRL 15,785,654 USD 7249391 (265,1463
Ap-D4-2022 Moegan Staaley & Co. Istermatiosal ple . BRL 170,349,587 UKD 33935420 145,716
Apr-04-2023 Morgan Susley & Co. Isternatioeal ple BRL 166,504,087  USD 34,475,184 {&27 265
Apr-Ld-2022 LUES AC BRL 3,835,500 USD 750,000 {56,24%)
Ilmy=] B 20122 Cirlbank, N.A EUE 2,341,968 USD 2650, 536 RO 364
May-18-2022 JEMoegan Chase Hazk, NA, BUR 2449785 USD. . 1996556 6,562
May-18-2022 1TBS MG EUR 137853 USD 14557435 A0,7ET
Belay=]B-2022 Citibank, N.A. GHP 3,262 645 USD &, 420 679 134,965
Agpr-{4-2022 UBS AG (GAP 14927 USD 20,000 345
Apr-04-200E2 UBS AG Ghr 157,153 UsD 467 994 (240
Dvkay-16-2022 UBS MG ; i AGHE 1,350,807 USD  LE34SL6 S64%2
Aprfd-2002 Goldman Sachs [sdermational 1% 307,049, 558,520 UISD 20,390,831 12,305
Apr-0d-2002 Galdinan Sachs Istermatioaal DR 295 641,358 520 USD  20,335.208 [25,365)
Api-Ca-200E2 RS AT =Y 127,603,403 USD 1,071,000 19403

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
13
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Schedule of Investments (Continued)

March 31, 2022

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Forward Furelgn Currency Contracts (Ceatinued)

CONTRACTS INEXCHANGE  UNREALIZED
_SETTLEMENTDATE = COUNTERPAREY _ TQDELIVER FOR ALY (LOSS)
Ape--2022 LIBS AG Y BalMIM0 USD  GFBSSMT § (123,731}
Ape-0d-T01 TPhorgan Chase Back, M.A. MMM 14010828 UsD 8502153 (117628)
Ape-0e-2022 LUBs AG MXN L1436 WUSD 100,000 6.304)
Ap-(-1022 Geddran Sechs [ptermnationat RIB TELSSLETS  USD 7354628 1[2,056,34%)
Apz--2022 TPhacpan Chase Bask, NA 2B 16275000 USD 00600 (21,873
Apr-04-2002 TPMdocpan Chase Baek, NAL =Y 2035353 USD 1a0.000 1404
Apr0d-2002 FPMocgan Chase Back, M.A. TRY 14,112,819 USD 6985169 {50,442
ApreDd2002 UBS AG ZAR TawaATe USD 542,751 {3 7E5)
2,BE%, 5685)
CONTRACTS IN EXCHANGE  UNREALIZED
L SETTLEMENT DATE COUNTERPARTY —_ TORECEIVE _ __FOR  GAIN{LOSS)
Agr-04-2002 B8 AG AR 3755976 USD LVIBATG 62,719
Apr0u-2022 RS AG AUD 4,556 USD 26,000 [41)
Apr-04-2022 Graléman Sachs Inberzational BRL 543001438 USD 10862511 532,851
Ape-04-20022 Cioldmar Saches Lotermational BRL 243851 UBD 44195712 (T2, 574)
Apra- 2022 Mdoogan Stanley & Co. [ntermatinoal plo BRL 134,843,674 UBD 67136572 5,58 6RR
Agi-Gu-2007 Miogan Stanloy & Co, Tnesnatioea] pie . BERL 3,835,300 UED 809,553 13,303)
Ape-04-2022 Ciribank, M.A, EJR s30,000  USD 606,359 6,141
Apr04-2002 Ctibatk, M.A, R 10,73 USD 12,151 159y
Apr-0a-2022 LBS AG [y 40,865 LUED 447,943 L83
Apr-04-2022 UBS AG =3P 37081 USD SO0,0E1 (10,192
Apr-04-2022 Goldmas Sachs Inernational 10K S92,606,017,040  USD 41,120,028 13,502
AprJd-2022 Goldmas Sxcks Inbernational IDE - 301365350520  USD 10990832 {11,281
Apr-04-2072 UIES AG TPy EH0550,074  WSD 4811012 L2255
Apr-Da-2022 LIES AG IEY o0, 56,373 UED 636586 {474,512y
Apri-2022 JPhdergin Chase Bank, N.A. MXN M TIROED O WSD 16,600,737 IRLRT
Apr-{M-2022 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A MXN 2E 581 USD LA0000 {25%)
Ape--202E Goldroaa Sachs Internztional RUB LITEEIL2SG  USD 13,047,062 2426
Ape-lM-2022 Goldmas Sacks Intemationsl RLIB 075000 USD 250,000 [Raliy
Apr-0d-T022 APMaorgen Chase Bank, NA kLB BASGO0  LISD 00,000 [ 1.500%
Apr-H-222 JPMargen Chase Bank, N.A. =Y 205,104,397 USD 13,51357% 125,507
Ape-kl-102 1PMongen Chase Bank, M., T3 5546025 USD 270,000 ([542)
Ape-til. 2022 LIRS AG ZAR 15491520 USD 050312 17394
Ape-(-2022 LIBS AG ZAR 158,549 LD 13,000 (124}
5,053,671
Total Net Unrealized Gala on Forward Forvign Curreacy Conbract i 2A005
Carremcy Logend
AUD - Awstralian Dollar
HEL Brarilizn Heal
EUR Eurn
fejiig British Pound
DR Indonesian Rupinh
IPY - JspeneseYen
MMM - Mexican Peso
RUB - Russidn Rubic
TRY Turkisk Lira
usD 15, Dellar
ZAR Scuth Adifcan Rand

The accompanying rotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2021 31
2021 31
135,357,327 140,526,673 18,916,295
1,942,799 2,145,246 288,772
4,353,215 585,986
1,228,344 1,230,845 165,684
2,302,877 309,990
3,035,020 408,544
1,775,876 239,051
743,081 100,026
5,236 705
312,199 42,025
156,430,268 21,057,078
5,010,709 674,492
4,939,891 664,959
135,264 18,208
612,759 82,483
536,192 72,177
334,743 45,060
11,569,558 1,557,378
144,860,710 19,499,700
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37,215,300 18,579,125 2.003 270
10,705,990 180,103 59.444 8,002
1,288,833 137,410 9.380 1,263
30,875,281 4,398,938 7.019 945
23,688,468 5,286,489 4.481 603
13,814,138 4,312,280 3.203 431
15,639,017 7,755,197 2.017 272
627,965 187,807 3.344 450
9,185,854 1,844,532 4.980 670
1,819,864 343,641 5.296 713
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2021 31

5,954 7,550,434 1,016,364
50,271 122,536 16,495
7,672,970 1,032,858
1,224,663 164,852
1,071,580 144,245
132,461 17,831
131,564 17,710
121,818 16,398
76,541 10,303
12,308 1,657
9,499 1,279
85,480 11,506
2,865,914 385,781
4,807,056 647,078
(3,817,296) (513,846)
124,435 16,750
(9,109, 400) (1,226,216)
(12,802,261) (1,723,312)
26,507,728 3,568,205
(8,164) (1,099)
202,447 27,251
10,926,770 1,470,853
37,628,781 5,065,210
24,826,520 3,341,898
29,633,576 3,988,976
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2021 31

4,807,056 647,078
(12,802,261) (1,723,312)
37,628,781 5,065,210
29,633,576 3,988,976
(4,511,783) (607,331)
(662,574) (89,189)
(99,453) (13,387)
(2,552,547) (343,598)
(2,641,000) (355,505)
(2,158,978) (290, 620)
(3,139,799) (422,648)
(73,817) (9,937)
(913,836) (123,011)
(124,161) (16,713)
(16,877,948) (2,271,941)
(9,857,398) (1,326,904)
2,898,230 390,131
141,962,480 19,109,569
144,860,710 19,499,700

213/342



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 31

2010 10

2021 31
10

2021 31 98
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30
30 2021 31

2021 31

2021 31
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2017-08 2017-08 )
2017-08
2017-08
2017-08
2017-08
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134,986,838 134,986,838
307,704 307,704
2,499,131 2,499,131
2,733,000 2,733,000
743,081 743,081
2,145,246
3,040,704 138,229,050 143,415,000
5,010,709 5,010,709
2021 31
2021 31
2021 31
2020 31 2021 31
1,942,799 202,447 2,145,246
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2021 31
2021 31
39,512 0.52
0.70
0.01 15,000
30
0.02 15 0.0125 45 0.0050
45,000

10,000
8,400
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0.80
0.05
31
2021 31
960,488 816,102 14,316 118,703 614,368 4,363,980
(1,200,718) (2,661,164) (179,239)  (1,572,914) (304,034)  (2,130,790)
(240, 230) (1,845,062)  (164,923)  (1,454,211) 310,334 2,233,190
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163,683 730,526 450,019 1,507,993 207,547 452,790 52,807 174,470
(636,344)  (2,848,149) (740,800)  (2,492,252)  (1,983,770)  (4,329,792) (158,619) (459,258)
(472,661)  (2,117,623) (290,781) (984,259)  (1,776,223)  (3,877,002) (105,812) (284,788)

95,962 464,784 42,181 189,068 2,614,885 10,851,372
(258,470)  (1,183,696) (84,332) (408,548)  (5,589,935) (20,708,770)
(162,508) (718,912) (42,151) (219,480)  (2,975,050)  (9,857,398)
10
2021 31
2.025 54.103 7.491 6.383 3.534
a 0.067 1.935 0.289 0.216 0.137
0.151 6.801 2.067 1.020 1.290
0.218 8.736 2.356 1.236 1.427
(0.240) (3.395) (0.467) (0.600) (0.480)
2.003 59.444 9.380 7.019 4.481
@ 10.77 16.15 31.45 19.36 40.38
1.88 1.88 1.85 1.88 1.85
3.17 3.17 3.36 3.09 3.09
2021 31
2.905 2.150 2.492 3.827 3.836
a 0.104 0.071 0.092 0.142 0.150
0.672 0.152 1.116 1.491 1.655
0.776 0.223 1.208 1.633 1.805
(0.478) (0.356) (0.356) (0.480) (0.345)
3.203 2.017 3.344 4.980 5.296
@ 26.71 10.37 48.48 42.67 47.05
1.86 1.88 1.86 1.85 1.85
3.16 3.22 3.11 3.03 3.03
Qa
Q@
11
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31
a
743,081
a
5,010,709
31
(9,109, 400)
10,926,770
31
2020 2021

(135,320,673)
245,432,944
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2021 31
743,081 5,010,709
743,081 5,010,709
(6]
Citibank, N.A. @ 90,881 (28,367) 62,514
Goldman Sachs International(® 20,992 (20,992)
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. @ 598,374 (598,374)
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc® 11,106 (11,106)
UBS AG® 21,728 (21,728)
743,081 (680,567) 62,514
¢
@
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(€]

Citibank, N.A.® 28,367 (28,367)

Goldman Sachs International® 620,239 (20,992) 599,247

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.® 2,780,442 (598,374) 2,182,068

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc® 906,696 (11,106) 895,590

UBS AG®™ 674,965 (21,728) 653,237
5,010,709 (680,567) 4,330,142

¢

(“
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Assets and Liabilities

Mareh 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Aszgels
Investments in securities, at fair value (cost $135,357.327) £ 140,526,673
Affiliated imestments, at fair value (cost 51,942,799 2,145,246
Cash equivalens 4,353,215
Foreign currency, at fair value (cost $1,228 344) 1,230,345
Drue from broker 2302877
Receivable for investments sold 3,035,020
Imterest receivable 1.775 876
Unrealized gain on forwarnd foreign currency contracts 743,081
Dividends receivable 5,236
Orther assets and receivables 312,199
Total assets 156,430,268
Liabilities
Unrealized loss on forward foreign currency contracts 5,010,709
Payable for investments purchased 4,939,891
Redemptions payable 135,264
Accrued distributor fees 612,759
Agcrued management fees 536,192
Accrued expenses 334,743
Total liabilities 11,569,558
Met assels attrnibutable to redeemable unitholders §  144860,710
BRL Class RUE Class
§37,215,300018,579,125 units §  2.003 SI3814.138/4312,280mmits § 3203
JBY Class TEY Class
$10,705,990/180,103 units ~ $ 59.444 §15,639,017/7,755,197 units~ § 2017
GEP Class ZAR Class
£1,288 B33/137,410 units 5§ 9330 S627,965/ 187,807 units F 0000 334
USD Class MXN Class
$30,875,281/4,398,938 mnits~ $ 7.019 $9,185,854/1 844,532 units 3 4.980
IDR Class AUD Class

L]

$23,688,468/5, 286,489 units 4.481 §1,819 864/343,641 units b 3.230

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fnancial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Operations

Year Ended March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

Investment Income

Interest (net of foreign tax withholdings $5,954) g 7,550,434
Dividends {net of foreign tax withholdings $50,271) 122,536
Total mvestment incame 1672970
Expenses
Drigtri butor fees 1,224,663
Management fees 1,071,580
Protfessional 132,461
Custody 131,564
Adminigtrative, accounting, and transfer agent 121,818
Agent company fees 76,541
Trustee fees 12,308
Loan servicing 9,499
Other 85,480
Total expenses 2865914
Net irvestment ncome 4. 807,056

Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments, foreign currency
translation/transactions and derivative contracts

Net realized gain (loss)
Investments (3,817,296)
Foreigm currency ransactions 124 435
Forward foreign currency contracts { G, 10 2000
Net realized (loss) (12,802,261)
Met change in unrealized gain (loss)
Investments 26,507,728
Foreign currency translation (B.164)
Affiliated investment companies 202,447
Forward foreign currency contracts 10,926,770
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) 37.628,781
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on irvestments, foreign currency
translation/transactions and derivative contracts 24.826,520
Net increase in net assets resulting from operations § 20633576

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

From operations

Met investment incomse g 4,807,056

Net realized (loss) (12,802,261)

MNet change in unrealized gain (loss) 37.628,781
Met increase in net assets resulting from operations 29633576

From distributions to unitholders

BRL Class (4,511,783)
IPY Class {662,574
GEP Class (99,453)
USD Class (2,552,547
IDR Class {2.641,000)
RUB Class (2,158,978)
TEY Class (3,139,799
ZAR Class (73817)
MXN Class (913,836)
AUD Class {124,161)

Total distributions (16,877.948)

From participant transactions

Met (decrease ) in net assets resulting from participant transactions {Note 93 (% B5T 398)
Net increase in net assets T 2898230

Nel assels

Beginning of year 141,962 480

End of year £ 144860710

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial statements.
17
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund
(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
MNotes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

1. Organization and Investment Objective

WA High Income Corporate Bond ( Multi-Currency ) Fund (the “Fumd ™y was formed on October 4,
2010 as a sub-trust of the Western Asset Offshore Funds (“Trust™), a unit trust established by a trust
deed under the Trusts Law (as amended) of the Cayman Islands and registered imder the Mutual
Funds Law of the Cayvman Islands. The Trust is structured as an umbrella unit tust, which allows it
o create multiple sub-trusts, with the aim of segregating assets and Labilities of each sub-trost. As
of March 31, 2021, there were 10 sub-trusts of Western Asset Offshore Funds. Western Asset
Management Company Limited (*WAMUCL") is the Trust's Manager Western Asset Managememt
Company, LLC ("WAM™), formerly known as Western Asset Management Company, Western
Asset Management Company Pre. Ltd ("Western Asset Singapore™), Western Asset Management
Company Ll ("Western Asset Tokyo™), Western Asset Management Company Distnbuidora de
Titulos & Valores Mobilidrios Limitada (“Western Asset Brazil”), and Western Asset Management
Company Pty. Ltd. (*Western Asset Melboume™) are the sub-invesiment managers to the Fund
(collectively the “Tivestment Manager™), BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited is
administrator and trustee to the Fund. The Bank of New York Mellon, a wholly-cwned subsidiary
of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, is the custodian and sub-administrator to the Fund.
The Bank of New York Mellon (Singapore Branch) is the registrar and transfer agent to the Fund.
Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley PB Secunities Co. Ltd. (Japan) is Agent Compamy and Distributor
to the Fund

The imvestment objective of the Fund is to seek to provide unitholders with a long-term total
refurn consisting of income and capital gaing throngh a diversified portfolio of investments mainly
consisting of global corporate bonds, including high yield bonds and bonds of emenging markets
issiers. The Fund may also invest in securities or asset classes that are outside traditional high
yield or emenging markets benchmarks, such as non-agency mortgage-backed securities, preferred
secunties and subordinated secunues, The Fund offers multiple hedged classes.

At March 31, 2021, the Fund had one unaffiliated unitholder who held 98% of the Fund's units
ontstanding. The Fund may be materially impacted by the actions of this unitholder.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basiz of Accounting

In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the Undted States of America (“US.
CGAAFT), the Fund uses the accrual basis of accomnung. Accordingly, income and expenses are
recorded as eamed and incurred, respectively.

The Fund is an investment company which follows accounting and reporting guidance in the
Finanecial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") A ccounting Standards Codification 946, Financial
Services — Investment Companies.
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

p Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with US. GAAP, requires management 1o
miake estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and hakbilites, disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amouns
of increazes and decréases in net assets from operations durng the reporting period. Actmal resulis
conld differ from those estimates,

Cash Equivalents and Foreign Currency

Cagh equivalents and foreign currency consist of cash and foreign currency on deposit with financial
mstimtions. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, plus accrued interest, which approximates fair
value,

The Fund considers all highly liquid investments with a matunty of three months or less when
purchazed 1o be cash equivalents. Cash held in banks penodically éxceeds the Fedeml Deposit
Insurance Corporation's ("FDIC") insurance coverage of 230,000, and as a result, there is a
concentration of credit sk related to amounts in excess of the FDIC insurance coverage.

Due to/from Broker

The Fund records restricted cash, if any, on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities within “Due
from Broker” which represents balances required by brokers for collateral on certain derivative
positions. “Due to Broker” may include resmricted cash and cash held with brokers. Due to/from
Broker 15 reported on a net=by-counterparty basis as there 15 a valid nght to offset with each of the
brokers. The Fund contimally monitors the creditworthiness of the financial institutions with which
it comducts business.

Seeurity Transactions and Investment [neome

Security transactions are accounted for as of trade date. The cost of securities delivered and the net
giin or loss on securities sold are determined using the first-in, first-out method. Interest income
earned on securities is recorded net of applicable withholding taxes on the accrual basis. Interest
income incliudes aceretion of discounts and amontization of premiums which are recorded using the
effective yield method. To the extent any issuer defaults or a credit event occurs that impacts the
issner, the Fund may halt any additional interest income accruals and consider the realizability of
imterest accrued up to the date of default or credit event. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-
dividend date net of apphcable withholding txes,

Funetional and Presentation Currency

Items meluded i the Fund's financial statements are measured nsmg the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates. The majority of issuances, redemptions, and valueations
of the units are effected and denominated in the US. Dollars (“USD™).
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Foreign Currency Translatien Transactions

Invesmment securities and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
inkto USD amounts based upon prevailing exchange rates on the date of valuation. Purchases and
sales of investment securities, income and expense items, and issuance and redemptions of units
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD amountz based upon prevailing exchange
rates on the regpective dates of such tmnsactions.

The Fund does not isolate that portion of the résults of operations resulting from flucations in
foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctnations ansing from changes in market prices
of securities held. Such fluctations are included within the net realized and unrealized gain or loss
an imvestrments on the Statement of Operations.

Net realized foreign exchange gaing or losses arige from sales of foreign currencies, including
exchange gang and loszes on the setlement of forward foreign currency contracts, CUrmency gams or
Insses realized between the trade and settlement dates on securities transactions, and the difference
between the amounts of dividends, interest, and foreign withholding taxes recorded on the Fund's
books and the USD equivalent of the amounts actmally received or paid. Net unrealized foreign
exchange gaing or losses anse from changes in the fair values of assets and Lhabtahities, other than
investments in securities and derivative contracts, on the date of valuation, resulting from changes
in exchange rates.

Certain foreign secunty and currency transactions may wwvolve considerations and risks not typacally
associated with those of USD denominated transactions as a result of, among other factors, the
possibility of lower levels of governmental supervision and regulation of foreign securities markets
and the possibility of political or economic instability.

Income Taxes

According to the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there is no income, estate, corporation, capital
gains or other taxes payable by the Fund. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made
in the financial statements

The Fand intends to conduct its affairs 2o that it will notbe deemed 1o be engaged in trade or business
in the US. and, therefore, none of its income will be treated as “efectively connected” with a ULS.
trade or business carried on by the Fumd. Effectively connected income is subject o US. federal
income tax at the graduated rates applicable to US. domestic corporations. Certain categories of
income that are not “effectively connected” but are derived from ULS, sources, including dividends
and interest income, are subject toa US, tax of tharty percent. However, undeér the portfolio interest
exemption, the thirty percent tax does not apply to portfolio interest earned. For the year ended
March 31, 2021, interest earned by the Fund gualifies under the portfolio interest exemption

The Fumd is subject to the authoritative gnidance with respect to accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions, which requires the Fund to determine whether a tax pogition is more
likely than not to be sustained upon examination. Management has analyzed the Fund's tax positions
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Income Taxes {Continued)

for all open tax years and has concluded that az of March 31, 2021, there are no uncertain tax
positions that would require financial statemment recogmition or disclosure. The Fund’s policy is to
recognize interest and penalties, iF any, related to uncertain tax positions 45 a component of income
tax expense. For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Fund did not recognize any intérest of penalties
for uncertain ax pogitions. There are currently no examinations being conducted of the Fund by the
Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authority.

Issuances and Redemptions of Units of Participation

Fund units are issued in multiple classes (each a “Class™ and, collectively, the “Classes™). The Fund
currently offers a Bragilian Real (“BRL”) Class, Japanese Yon (“JPY"") Class, British Pound (“"GBP™)
Class, United States Dollar (*USD™) Class, Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR™) Class, Russian Ruble
(“RUB™) Class, Turkish Lira (“TEY"") Clazs, Sowth African Rand (“ZAR™) Class, Mexican Peso
(“MXN") Class, and Australian Dollar (“AUD™) Class (each, except the USD Class, is a “Hedged
Class™)y. The BRL Class, USD Class, IDR Class, RUB Class, TRY Class, ZAR Class and the MXN
Class are demominated in USD, the GBP Class in GBPE, the JPY Class in JPY and the AUD Class in
AUD {each a “Denomination Currency™), in which issnances, redemptions, and valuation of units
are effected and in which units are denominated.

The net asset value of each Class is determined in the Denomination Currency on the relevant
“Dealing Day”. A Dealing Day is every business day on which federal, state or local banks are open
for business in New York, London, Japan and the Cayman [slandz and the New York Stock Exchange
and London Stock Exchange are open for trading. Issuances and redemptions of Fund units are
made on such days, based upon the closing net asset value. A sales charge of up to 3.5% of the net
asset value may be charged and retained, by the Distributor. For the year ended March 31 2021, the
Distrbutor has waived the sales charge.

TheTrustee, in consultation with the Investment Manager, may temporarily suspend the determination
of the net asset value of the Fund, and the issuance and redemption of the Fund’s units, and may
postpone the date of payment of redemption proceeds if, among other reasons, during any period
when it is not reasonably practicable for the Investment Manager to fairly determine the value of the
Fund's net assets, There were no such occurrences during the year ended March 31, 2021

Allocation of Income, Expenses, Gaing, and Losses

Income, expenses, and realized and unrealized gaing and losses are allocated on a daily basgis 1o
each Class of units based upon the relative portion of net assets of each Class. The Fund will apply
adjustments to the valuation of its Classes in order to specifically credit or charge to the relevam
Class of units any applicable gains, loszes and expenses generated by hedging transactions with
respect to such Classes (eg, all costs assocated with hedgng transactions relating to the JPY
Class of units are borne by the JPY Class of units). All Classes of units will bear ratably any gains,
losses and expenses generated by hedging non-USD denominated investments to the functional
CUITENCY,
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Redemptions Payable

Redemptions are recognized as liabilities when the amoum requested in the redemption notice
becomes fixed and determinable. This will generally occur either at the time of the receipt of the
notice or on the last day of a fiscal period, depending on the nature of the redemption request. Asa
result, redemptions paid after the end of the year but based upon vear end net asset values, are reflected
az redemptions payable on the Statement of Azsets and Liabilities at March 31, 2021, Redemption
notices received for which the USD and unit amoumnts are not fixed remain in capital until the net
asset value used to determine the redemption and unit amounts are determined,

Distributions to Unitholders

Disnibutions from netinvestment income, net realized or unrealized gaing and'or capital are declared
by the Fund on the fifteenth (15" day of each momh. Distribations are paid in cash or in-kind, as
may be determined by the Investment Manager, unless the unitholders elect to reinvest in additional
units. Cash distributions with respect to a Class are paid in the Class Denomination Currency.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

The Fund has made a change in accounting principle and adopted the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™} Accounting Standards Update 2017-08 (“ASU 2017-
8™y, Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Delbt Securities. ASU 2017-08 shortens the
amortization period for certain callable debt securities held at a premium, specifically, requiring the
premium to be amortized to the earliest call date. Prior to ASLT 201 7-08, premiums on callable debt
securities were generally amortized to mamety date. ASU 201 7-08 is intended to more closely align
the amortization period with the expectations incorporated into the market pacing on the underying
security. ASLU 2017-08 does not reguire an accounting change for securities held at a discount; the
discount continues to be amortized to maturity date. Upon evaluation, the Fund has concluded that
the change in accounting principle does not materially impact the financial statement amounts.

i Waluation

The Fund has adopted procedures for determining the fair value ofits investments each Dealing Day.
Under these procedures, the Fund has delegated its authonty to a pricing commattee governed by the
Investment Manager to determine the value of the Fund’s investments each Dealing Day. The notes
below describe in greater detail the methodologies nsed to valne the Fund’s investments.

The Fund uses both the income and market approaches to establish the fair value of its imvestments.
Use of particular techniques and inputs may vary over ime based on availability and relevance as
market and economic conditions evolve,

The Investment Manager considers pricing technigques it deems relevamt and appropriate when
making fair value determinations, When determining the reliability of third party pricing information
for investments owned by the Fund, the Investment Manager, among other things, conducts due
diligence reviews of pricing vendors, monitors the daily change in prices, and reviews transaclions
among market participants. In addition, prices which change from the prior day by greater than a

[
(]
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3 Valuation (Continued)

pre-established threshold will be verified against additional pricing sources, when available, or by
evaluation of verifiable changes to the model inputs that impacted the resulting fair value.

Exchange traded opticns, warrants, and publicly traded US. and non-ULS. equity securities are
generally valued at the official closing price of, or the last reported sale price on, the exchange or
market on which such securities are traded, as of the close of business on the day the securities are
being valued or, lacking any sales, at the last available bid price. Fumres contracis are valued at the
Iazt settlement price at the eénd of each day on the board of trade or exchange upon which they are
traded.

Fixed-income securities, including short-term securities purchased with more than 60 days left to
maturity, are generally valned at prices obtained from one or more pricing vendors. Vendors value
such securities based on one or more inputs described in the following table, The table provides
examples of inputs that are commonly relevant for valwing paricular classes of fixed-income
gecurities, in which the Fund iz authorized to invest. However, these classi fications are not exclusive,
and any of the inputs may be used to value any other class of fixed-income security.

Fixed-lncome class and Derivatives Examples of inputs

All All benchmark vields, transactions, bids, offers,
quotations from dealers and electronic trading
syslems, spreads and other relationships observed

in the markets among comparable securities; and
propoetary pricing models ssch as vield measures
calenlated using factors such as cash flows, financial
or collateral pedommance and other reference data
{eollectively meferred 1o as “standard inputs™).

Corporate bonds and notes Standard inputs and new issee daia.
Bonds and noetes of government and government Standard inputs.
ApENcies

Mot gage-backed and azset-backed obligations Sandand inputs, prepayment information, defanlt
rates, delinqueney and loss assumptions, collateral
characteristics, coedit enhancements and specific
deal information.

Stmctured products {including Interest Onby Standand inputs, plus new izse data, monthly

and Prncipal oty secunties and Collateralizned payment information and collateral pedformance.
Mongage and Collateralized Debt Obligations)

Loanz, loan participations and loan assignments Transactions, bids, offers, and quotations from
dealers,
Student loans Standard inputs including the weighted average life
of the loans.
23
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Fixed-income class and Derivatives Examples of inputs

Swaps and other dervatives Standand inputs and interest rate curves, intenest
rate volatilities, credit spreads and recovery rates on
the underlying reference securities, index spreads.
foreign exchange gpot and forward curves, and

foreign exchange volatilities,

Where the Investment Manager deems it appropriate to do so (such as when vendor prices are
unavailable or not deemed to be representative), fixed income secunties will be valued in good faith
at the mean quoted bid and asked prices that are reasomably and timely available or at prices for
securities of comparable maturity, quality and type.

Short-term securities purchased within 60 days to maturity are valued at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value,

Securities and investments for which representative market quotations are not readily available or
are considered unreliable are fair valued in good faith by the Investment Manager. Various inputs
may be reviewed in order to make a good faith determination of a secunty's fair value. These inputs
include, but are not limited to, the type and cost of the secunty, contracmal or legal restnictions
on resale of the security; relevant financial or business developmemts of the issuer, actively traded
similar or related securities; conversion or exchange rights on the security; related corporate actions;
gignificant events oceurrng after the close of trading in the securty; and changes in overall market
conditons. Fair valuations and valuations of imvestments that are mot actively trading imolve
Judgment and may differ materially from valuations that would have been used had greater markes
activity occurred

If third party evaluated vendor pricing is neither available nor deemed to be indicative of fair value,
the Imvestment Manager may elect to obtain indicative market quotations (“broker quotes™) directly
from a broker-dealer. Indicative market quotations are typically received from established market
participants, The Imvestment Manager has requested transparency to view the underlying inputs
which support these market quotations. When transparency o the underlying inputs is recetved from
the broker then the secunty may be considered Level 2 of the far value hierarchy if the inputs are
observable. If the inputs are not transparent or are found to be unobservable, then the securities are
categorized as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

If broker quotations are mot received as of the valuation date, the most recent available broker
quotation(s) may bé nsed However, adjustments are made 1o the most récent broker quotation(s)
based on interpolated changes in the yields of associated benchmark secunties from the date upon
which the broker quotation was received to the valuation date. Typically, benchmark securities are
comprised of certain treasury securities with standard maturities. Specifically, the interpolated
change in the yield 1z calonlated wsing an interpolation factor which measures the duration of the
security being priced versus the duration of the benchmark securities with durations immediately
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3 Valuation (Continued)

greater than and less than the security being priced. The interpolated vield change is then applied to
the duration of the security to caleulate the implied change in price.

Over-the-counter financial denvative instruments, such as forward foreign currency comtracts,
options contracts, Swapions conracts, or swap agreements, derive their value from underlying asset
prices, indices, reference rates, and other inputs or a combination of these factors, These contracts
are normally valued on the basis of pricing service providers or broker dealer quotations. Depending
on the product and the terms of the transaction, the value of financial derivative instruments can be
estimated by a pricing service provider using a series of techniques, including simulation pricing
models. The pricing models use inputs that are observed from actively quoted markets such as issuer
details, indices, spreads, interest rates, yield curves, and exchange rates.

Cemtrally cleared swaps transacted on a multilateral or wade facility platform, such as a registered
exchange, are valued at the daily setlement price determined by the respective exchange. For
centrally cleared credit de fault swaps, the clearing facility requires its members to provide actionable
price levels across complete term structures. These levels along with external third party prices
are used to produce daily settlement prices. Centrally cleared interest rate swaps are valued using
a pncing model that references the underdying rates including the overmight index swap rate and
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") forward rate to produce the daily settlement price. These
securities are categorized as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Investments in a collective ivestment vehacle, mcluding investments in imvestment comparnes, are
valued using the net azset value of such investment vehicles, as a practical expedient.

The vanous inputs that are used in deterrmaming the fair value of the Fund's assets and habihines are
summanzed into the broad levels listed below:

o Level | —gquoted prices in active markets for identical investments

& [evel 2 —ather significan observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar investments,
interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, etc.)

®  Level 3 —significant unobservable inpumts, including the Imvestment Managers  own
assumplions in determining the fair value of amwvestments. Level 3 fair value
technigues include (1) the use of proprietary models that require the use of judgment
and the application of various assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment
assumphions and default rate assamptions, and (i) the sohctation of valwations
from third parties (typically, broker-dealers) Third-party valuation providers often
utilize proprietary models that are subjective and also require the use of judgment
and the application of vanous assumptions including, but not limited to, prepayment
assumptions and defanlt rate assumptions.
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3 Valuation (Continued)

The valuation levels are not necessarily an indication of the risk or liquidity associated with investing
in those securities.

The following is a summary of the levels within the valuation hierarchy used in valuing the Fund’s
assets and labilities carried at fair value:

Acssely
Other
Significant Significant
Quoted Observable Unobservable
Prices Inputs Inputs
{Level 1) iLevel 2) {Level 3) Total
Notes and Debentures 3 — 5 134,98683% & — 5 134,986,538
Preferred Stock 307,704 - - 307,704
Term Loans (Funded) - 2,459 131 - 2,499,131
Exchange Traded Fund 2,733,000 - = 2,733,040}
Forward Foreign Currency
Contracis — 743,081 - 743,081
Imvestments valied using the
practical expedient - — - 2,145,246
Tidtal g 3040704 8 138720050 % — £ 43415000
Liabili ties
COriler
Significant Significant
Quoted Observable Unobservable
Prices Inputs Inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Lewvel ) Total
Forward Forcign Curpency
Contracts -3 — 3 5,010,709 & ] 5,010,709
4, Investments in AfTiliated Investment Companies

The following table summanzes the Fund's investments in affiliated imvestment companies (the
“Imvestes Fundis)”) as of March 31, 2021, The Fund did not directly pay any management fee or
performance fee to the Imvestes Fundis) for the vear ended March 31, 2021, The Fund did not receave
any distnbutions from the affiliated investment companies during the year ended March 31, 2021

Change in
Fuir Value Unrealized  Fair Value
At March Redemption  Realized Gauin At Muarch
Iovest ment 31, 2020 Purchases Proceeds Gain (Loss) 31,2021
Thegg Mason US3
AcurnlatingStareFundd_____ — 31842799 =3 — 1 o7 3 2es%e
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4, Ivestments in Affiliated Investment Companies (Continued)

Legg Mason USS Accumulating Share Fund — The inve stment objective of the Fund is to maximize
total remeen through income and capital appreciation. The Fund imvests at all times at least two-
thirds of its Total Asset Value in corporate debt securities and debt secunities issued by supranational
organizations that are denominated in U3, Dollars, Japanese Yen, Euro, Pound Sterling, and a
varety of other currencies, and listed or traded on Regulated Markets. The sub-investment managérs
will only purchase investments that are rated at least investment grade by a nationally recogmzed
statistical rating organization or, if unrated, deemed by the relevant sub-investment manager to be of
comparable quality. Redemption is permitted daily.

5 Loans, Loan Participations and Loan Assignments

The Fund may acquire loans, by acting as a member of the original lending syndicate of the loans
or through an assignment from another lender, and may also purchase loan participations (ie.,
participation imerests in other lenders' portions of loans). The underdying portfolio may also include
loanz, loan participations and other types of loans, melnding brdge loans and debior-in-possession
facilities.

Investments in loans and loan participations may subject the Fund to hiquidity risk. Loans and loan
participations may be transferable among financial institutions, but may not kave the liquidity of
conventional debt securities and are often subject to restrictions on resale, such as the need for the
consent of the lead or agent bank of the loan or the borrower, thereby making them potentially
illigquid.

Certain of the loan participations or assignments acquired by the Fund may involve unfunded
commitments of the lenders or revolving credit facilities under which a borrower may from tme
to time borrow and repay amounts up to the maximum amount of the facility. In such cases, the
Fund would have an obligation to advance its portion of such additional borrowings upon the terms
specified in the loan documentation. Such an obligation may have the effect of requinng the Fund 1o
increase its imvestment in a company at a time when it might not be desirable to do so, including at
a time when the companys financial condition makes it unlikely that such amounts will be repaid.

At March 31, 2021, the Fund did not have any unfinded loan commitments.

6. Payment-In-Kind Securities

The Fund may imvest in payment-in-kind securities (“PIK™). PIKs give the issuer the option at each
interest payment date of making interest payments in either cash or additional debt secunties. Those
additional debt securities usually have the same tenms, including maturity dates, interest rates, and
aggociated nsks az the original bondz. The daily market quotations of the onginal bonds may include
the accrwed interest and require a pro ata adjustment from the mrealized gain or logs on investments
to interest receivable on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

P
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. Payment-In-Kind Securities (Continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2021, with respect to in-kind payments from PIK securities, the Fund
received 339,512, or 0.52% of total investment income. This amount is included within interest

mcome on the Statement of Operations.

7 Forward Foreign Currency Contracts

The Fund may enter into a forward foreign currency contract 1o hedge against foreign currency
exchange rate risk on its non-USD denomimated securities and units or to facilitate setilement of
a foreign currency denominated portfolio transaction. A forward foreign currency contract i an
agreement between two parties to buy and sell a currency ata set price with delivery and setdement
at a futnre date. The contract is marked to market daily and the change in value is recorded by the
Fund as an unrealized gain or loss. When a forward foreign currency contract is closed, through
either delivery of the currencies or offset by entering into another forward foreign currency contract,
the Fund recognizes a realized gain or loss equal to the difference between the value of the contract
at the tme it was opened and the value of the contract at the time it iz closed

Forward foreign currency contracts involve elements of market risk inexcess of the amounts reflected
o the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund bears the risk of an unfavorable change in the
foreign exchange rate underlying the forward foreign currency contract. Risks may also arise upon
entering into these contracts from the potential inability of the counterparties to meet the terms of
their contrcts.

.3 Charges and Fees

Ivestment Manager Fee
The Irvestment Manager's fee 12 accrued daily and payable quarterly in amrears at an annual rate of
0.70% of the average daily net assets of the Fund

Trusice Fee
The Trustee fee is acerued daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an anmel rate of 0.01% of the
average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum of $15 000 per year

Administrator Fee

The Administrator fee is accrued daily and payable quarterly in armears at an anmal rate of 0.02% on
the first 53 billion or less, 0.0125% on the next 1.5 billion and 0.0050% on the amount over $4.5
billion of the average daily net assets of the Fund or a minimum of 345 000 per vear.

Rezistrar and Transler Agent Fee
The annual Registrar and Transfer Agent fee for the Fund is § 10,000, The annual maintenance fee
for each Class 15 $8,400.

Distributor Fee
The Distributor fee is accrued daily and payable quartedy in arrears at an annual rate of 0.80% of
the average daily net assetg of the Fund.
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Agent Company Fee
The Agent Company fee is accmed daily and payable quarterly in arrears at an anmal rate of 0.05%
of the average daily net assets of the Fund.

%, Units of Participation
The following represents the Fund's unit activity for the year ended March 31, 2021:

Year Ended March 31, 2021

BRL JPY GRP LISIx
Units Amouni Units Amount Unifs Amount Units Amount
Units isswed W0 ARE & 2032956 13514 & 816,002 14316 & 118,703 G14.368 § 4363 980
Units nedeemed {1 200718 (2,622.207) {43,608  (2.661.164) (179239 (1,572,914} (3003 G 30,7590
Met increase
{decrense) (402300 5 (SRDIS1) (300055 § (1.845.063) (164,523) & (1, 454.011% 310334 § 2 HEL190
1D RUB TRY FAR
Units Amonimt Units Amm oot Units Amount Umits Amount
LUnits Issued 163,633 & T30.526 450,019 § 1,507,993 75T S 452790 52807 % 17 AT
Units redeemnioed (63634 (2848 147) (0800 (A2 (LEBETT0) (4328792 {158,619 (4592 58)
et (decrease) 4TG0 & (217.623) 290,751 §  (9R4.259)  (LTT6.223) & (3877042 {105 312) § (234 783}
ANN ALUD Total
Units Amoumnt Units Am ount Units Amount
Units Tssued 95962 8 46473 42,181 § 159,065 LE14.585 & 1085137
Lnits recleemd (2584T0)  (1,183,696) (54,332) (OB S4E) (5, 580.955) (20,708,770

BNt {decrease) (16L5081 §  (TIROLY) L1510 8 (2194800 (29750500 § (RB5TIE)

10, Finaneial Highlights
Year Ended March 31, 2021

Selected Per Unit Data BRL _ JPY  GBF  USD = IDR
et assel value, beginning of year £ 20258 M3 % T491 5§ A383 5 3.5%34
et imeestment income’” (.067 1.935 0.28% 0216 0.137
et realized and unrealized gain (loss) 0.151 f.801 2.067 1.020 1.2%0
Total income from investment operations 0218 8.736 2356 1.236 1.427
Distributions to unitholders (0. 240) (3.395) (0.467) (0500 {0480}
et asset value, end of year § 20035 944 5 G38085 70193 448
Total retum %45 10.77 16,15 3145 19.35 4038
Ratios o Average Net Assels

Expenses % 188 1.5% 185 188 185
et imestment income % 317 N 336 09 304

29
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10. Finaneial Highlights (Continued)
Year Ended March 31, 2021

Selected Per Unit Data RUB TRY ZAR MXN AUD
et azeet value, beginning of year §F 2905 3 20150 % X492 8 38T 8 33816
et imvestment income!? 0104 0071 0,052 0142 0.150
Net mealized and unrealized gain {loss) 0672 0.152 1.116 1.491 1.655
Total income from investment operations 0.776 0.223 1.208 1.633 1805
Distnbutions to nnitholders {0.478) (0.356) {0,356} (DA% {0345}
Net asset value, end of vear £ 33X 5 2017 5 3344 5 4980 %5 5206
Total redum %5 26.71 10.37 45 48 42 67 4705
Ratios to Average Net Assels

Expenses % 1.86 1.58 1.86 185 1.85
Net investment income %% 316 322 311 303 303

A Net mvestment income per unit has been caloulated based upon average units cutstanding for the vear

o Total return cabeulation is based on the valoe of a sing be il of participation outstanding throughot the pe,
It represents the percentage change in the et asset value per undt between the beginning and end of dee year,
exchuiding distributions o unitholders,

The above ratios are calculated for the participating units as a whole, Anindividual unitholder’s total
return and ratios may vary from these ratios based on the timing of capital unit ransactions.

11. Derivative [nstruments

The Fund may transact in a vanety of denvative instruments including forwards for rading purposes
with each instrument’s primary risk exposure being foreign exchange risk, The fair value of thege
derivative instruments is included as a separate ling item within the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities by contract type.

The following tables provide information about the fair values and the location of derivatives
not acconnted for as hedging instruments which are included within the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities at March 31, 2021 and are grouped by derivative type:

Assel
Derivatives!
Forelgn

Exchange Risk
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 5 743,081
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

11. Derivative [nstruments (Continued)
Liahility
Dertvatives”
Foreign
Exchange Risk
Foraard Foreign Currency Contracts b 5,010,709

A Generally, the kcation for asset derivatives i receivables and unrealized gain and for liability derfoatives i payvables
and umrealized (bossh

The following tables provide information about the effect of derivatives within the Fund's Statement
of Operations for the year ended March 31, 2021, The first table provides additional detail aboum
the amounts and sources of gaing or losses realized on derivatives dunng the yvear The second
table provides additional information about the change in unrealized gain (loss) resulting from the
Fund’s derivatives during the year The realized and unrealized gains and losses from derivatives are
presented a2 separate ling items on the Statement of Operations

Amrount of
Realized
{ L)
on Derivatives
Recognized
Foreign

Exchange Risk
Forward Foreign Currency Coniracts 5 (9.1 08, 400

Change in
Unreatized
Lrain | Loss)
om Dherivatives
Hecognized
Forelgn
Exchange Risk
Forward Forcign Currency Coniracts £ 10,926,770
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

11. Derivative Instruments (Continued)

During the year ended March 31, 2020 the volume of derivatives activity for the Fund waz as follows:

Monthly

Average

Values
Forward Currency Contracts to Deliver!® £ (135320.673)
Forward Curreney Contracts to Recepe™ 245432944

A This ameound, comverted o presentational currency where applicable, cormesponds io the representalve averape
payabile valoe at settlement date based on the monthly activity of the Fund,

S This amount, comverted to presentational currency where applicable, corresponds to the representat ve average
receivable valie al seitlement dase baséd on the monthly activity of the Fand,

1% Offsetting Assets amnd Liabilities

By using dervative instruments, the Fund is exposed to the comnterparty’s credit nsk, the risk that
derivative counterparties may not perform in accordance with the contractual provisions offset by
the value of any collateral received The Fund’s exposure 1o credit risk associated with counterparty
non-performance is limited to the unrealized gains inherent in such transactions that are recognized
within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The Fund minimizes connterparty credit sk through
credit limits and approvals, credit monitoring procedurnes, executing master neming arrangements,
and managing margin and collateral requirements, as appropriate. The Fund records counterparty
credit sk valuation adjustments, if material, on certain derivative assets in order to appropriately
reflect the credit quality of the counterparty. These adjustments are also recorded on the market
guotes received from counterparties or other market participants since these quotes may not fully
reflect the credit risk of the counterparties to the denvative instruments

For financial reporting purposes, the Fund does not offset denvative assets and habilities that
are subject to netting arrangements within the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Information is
presented below for all derivative assets and liabilities that are subject to an enforceable Master
Netting Agreement (“MNA").

Offsetting of Derivative Assets and Liabilities a1 March 31, 2021

Amounts Presented in the Statement
of Assets amd Liabilities

Assels Lintsilities
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 5 743,081 3 50040, 709
Total denvative azsets and lisbilities inthe Statement of Assets &
Lisbilities subject 1o a MNA 5 T43.081 £ 5000, 700
32
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds,
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)

12. Offsetting Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

Derivative Assets and Collateral Received
Gaross
Amonnis of
Assets Presented
inthe Statement

of Assels and Fimancial Cash Recelved
Liabili ties [ostroment ax Collateral Net Amonnt™
Citibank, N.AS 3 L8815 (28,367) & — 3 62,514
Goldmean Sachs

International® 20,992 {20,562 — —
JPMorgan Chase

Bank, M.A, & 208,374 (50E, 374 - —
Morgan Stanley & Co.

Intemational ple™ 11,106 (11,106} — -
UBS AGH 21,728 {21,728} _— ar
Total 5 43,081 & (680,567 & — 5 62,514
A Wet amount represents the net amount receivable from the counterparty in the event of defanlt
& Orver the Counter.

Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Pledged
Gross
Amounis of
Liabili ties
Presented in
the Statement
of Assets and Financial Cash Pledged
Liabilities Instrament as Collateral Net Amount®
Citibank, N.A.® 4 28,367 8 (2%.367) & — 5 —
Goldman Sache

Intermational ™ 620,239 {20,992} — 599,247
JPMorgan Chase

Bank, N.A, @ 2,780,442 {598,374} —_ 2,182,058
Morgan Stanley & Co.

Intermational ple' DO, 60 {11,104} i £95 590
UBS AGW 674,965 {21.728) — 653,237
Total b 5010708 % (680.567) 5 — % 4,330,142

ay

@ Orver the Counter,

i
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

13 Fund Investment Risks
Lower-Rated Securities Risk

The Fund may invest in lower-rated securities, which are commonty referred to as “junk bonds" or
“ligh yield” bonds. Lower-rated secuntes reflect a greater possibility that adverse changes in the
financial condition of the 1ssuer or in general economic conditions, oran unanticipated fse in inteérest
rates, may impair the ability of the issuer to make payments of interest and principal. Additionally,
lower-rated securities are generally less liquid than higher-rated securities. The inability or perceived
mabality of issuers o make tmely payments of interest and poncpal and limitatons in hqudity
would likely make the values of securities held by the Fund more volatile and could limit the Fund's
ahility 1o gell its securities at prices approximating the values placed on such securities.

Invesmment in Emerging Market [ssuers

The Fund may invest in emerging market instrnuments which are subject to certain credit and market
risks. The securities and currency markets of emerzing market countries are generally smaller, less
developed, less Lgud and more volatile than the securities and currency markets of the United States
and other developed markets. Disclosure and regulatory standards in many respects are less stringent
than in other developed markets. There also may be a lower level of monitoring and regulation of
securities markets in emerging market countries and the activities of imvestors in such markets and
enforcement of existing regulations may be extremely limited. Political and economic structures in
mary of these countries may be in their infancy and developing rapidly, and such countries may lack
the social, political and economic stability charactenstics of more developed countries.

" in Non-ULS, Secuiti

The Fund invests in secunties of non-U S, issuers which present certain special nsks, including those
resulting from fomre political, legal, and economie developments, which could include changes
in currency exchange mtes of exchange control regnlations, expropriation of assets, confiscatory
taxation, nationalization of assets, imposition of withholding or other taxes, adverse changes in
investment capital or exchange control regulations, political changes, diplomatic developments,
difficulty in obtaining and enforcing judgments against non-US. entities, the possible imposition
of the applicable country’s governmental laws or restrictions, and the reduced availability of public
information concerning issuers. Additionally, issuers of non-US. securities are not generally subject
to uniform accounting, auditng and financial reporting standards or other regulatory practices
and requirements comparable 1o those applicable 10 US. igsuers, In the event of nationalization,
exproprigtion or other confiscation of assets, the Fund could lose 115 entire imestment in a securty.

The costs agzociated with ivestment in debt secunties of non-LLS. issuers, including withhol ding
taxes, brokerage commissions and custodial fees, may be higher than those associated with
investment in debt securities of LS. issuers. In addition, non-US. securities transactions may be
subject to difficulties associated with the settlement of such transactions Nom-LULS. markets have
different ¢learance and settlement procedures which in some markets have at times failed 1o keep
pace with the volume of transactions, thereby crealing substantial delays and setilement failures.
Delays in setlement could result in temporary pericds when assets of the Fund are uninvested and

34
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

13 Fund Investment Risks (Continued)
Investment in Mon-ULS. Securities {Continmed )

no remum is eamed thereon Setflement failures conld also adversely affect the Fund's performance.
The mabality of the Fund to make imtended secunty purchases due 1o settlement problems could
cansge it fo miss attractive investment opportunities. Inability 1o dispose of a portfolio security due
to settlement problems could result in logses to the Fund due to subsequent declines in value of the
portfolio security.

Sovereign Debt Risk

The Fumd may ivest in sovereign debt instruments which can involve a high degree of risk. The
governmental entity that controls the repayment of sovergign debt may not be able or walling to repay
the principal and/or interest when due in accordance with the terms of the debt A governmental
entity s willingness or ability to repay principal and interest when due may be affected by, among
other factors, its cash flow simation, the extent of its reserves, the availability of sufficient foreign
exchange on the date a payvment is due, the relatnve size of the debt service burden to the ¢conomy
as 4 whole, the governmental entity s policy toward the International Monetary Fund, the political
constraints to which a governmental entity may be subject, and changes in governments and political
systems,

Non-Publicly Traded and Rule 1444 Secunties Rigk

The Fund may invest in non-publicly traded and Rule 144A securities which may imvolve a high
degree of business and financial risk and may resultin substantial losses. These securities may be less
iquid than publicly traded securities, and the Fund may take longer to liguidate these positions than
would be the case for publicly traded secunties, Although these securities may be resold in privately
negotiated teansactions, the prices realized from these sales could be less than those originally paid
by the Fund. Further, companies whose securities are not publicly traded may not be subject to the
disclosure and other investor protection requirements that would be applicable if their securities
were publicly raded. Consequently, these securities may be difficult to value

Hedging Transactions Risk

Hedging strategies in general are usually intended to limit or reduee investment risk, but can also be
expected tolimit or reduce the potential for profit. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that
assets of the Fund attributable to a particular Class of units are insufficient to satisfy the liabilities
associated with a hedging transaction with respect to such Class of units, such amowmnt of the
liabilitiez that exceed such assets may be borne by the other Classes of units of the Fund
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WA High Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

13 Fund Investment Risks (Continued)
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fixed income securities will decline in value because of changes
i interest rtes. As nomingl interest rates nse, the value of certain fixed mcome secunes held by
the Fund 15 likely to decrease. A nominal inferest rate can be described as the sum of a real interest
rate and an expected inflation rate. Fixed income securities with longer durations tend to be more
sensitive 10 changes in interest rates, usually making them more volatile than secunties with shorter
durations. Duration 1z used pnmanly as 4 measure of the sensitvity of a fixed income'’s market price
to interest rate (i.e., yield) movements.

Liquidity Risk

The Fumd may invest in assets and derivatives that may not be readily available to sell or dispose
of, including securities whose disposition is restricted by securities laws. The effect of liquidity risk
15 particularly pronounced when Llow trading volume, lack of a market maker, large position size,
or legal restrictions (including daily price fluctuation limits or “circuit breakers” or an affiliation
with the issuer of a security) limit or prevent the Fund's ability to initiate a transaction, sell assets,
ar unwind derivative positions at desirable prices. The Fund is also exposed to liguidity risk when it
has an obligation to purchase particular securities {for example, as a result of entering info reverse
repurchase agreements, writing a put, or closing out a short position),

Concentration of Eisk

Tothe extent the Fund concentrates i1 investments in one or more countries, the value of the Fumd's
assets will be especially affected by economic, political and other factors affecting such country or
countries, and may fluctuate more widely than the value of a fund that invests m 4 greater number
of countries.

The Fumd may invest in varions derivatives which may present additional fisks and costs that are
different from and, in certain cazes, greater than the nsks amd costs presented by ivesting directly in

securities and other more traditional investments. Following are additional nsk factors concermng
the use of derivatives:

& Manggement Risk: Dervative prodicts are specialized instruments that reqione investment
techniques and risk analyses differemt from those associated with stocks and bonds. The
suceesstil use of derivatives requires sophisticated management and an understanding not only
of the underlying instrument but also of the denvative itself) In panticular, the use and complexity
of dervatives requare the mantenance of adequate controls to monitor the transactions entered
into, and the ability to assess the risk that a dertvative adds to the Fund's pontfolio
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(A Sub-Trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds, a Cayman Islands Unit Trust)
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

March 31, 2021

(Expressed in U.S. Dollars)

13 Fund Investment Risks (Continued)

Derivative Instruments Bisk { Continued)

& Cowrnterparty Credit Risk. The use of denivatives subjects the Fund to the risk that the connterparty
will not be able or willing to make timely settlement payments or otherwise meet its obligations,
ezpecially dunng unisually adverse market conditions. If the counmterparty defaults, the Fund
will have contractal remedies, but the Fund may be unable to enforce its contractiel rights.
Counterparty risk is more propounced if a counterparty’s obligations exceed the amount of
collateral held by the Fund (if any), the Fund is unable to exercise its interest in collateral upen
defanlt by the counterparty, or the termunation value of the mstrument vanes sigmficanily from
the marked-to-market value of the instrument.

o Documentaton Risk: Many derivative instruments have documentation risk. Because the
contract for each over-the-counter derivative transaction is individually negotiated with a specific
cotnterparty, there exists the risk that the parties may interpret contractual terms differantly.
[F that occurs, the cost and unpredictability of the legal proceedings required for the Fund 1o
enforce its contractual rights may lead the Fund to decide not to pursue its claims against the
cotnterparty. The Fund, therefore, assumes the risk that it may be unable to obtain payments the
Imvestment Manager believes are owed to them under derivatives instruments or those payments
may be delayed or made only after the Fund has incurred the costs of litigation

14. Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal course of business, the Fund enters into contrcts that contain a vasiety of representations
and warranties, which provide general indemnifications. The Fund's maximum exposure under these
arrangements is unknewn, as this would invelve future claims that may be made against the Fund
that have not yet occurred Based on experience, management is of the view that the nisk of loss
in connection with these potential indemnification obligations is remote;, however, there can be no
assurance that material liabilities related to such obligations will not arise in the future that could
adversely impact the business of the Fund.

15 Subsequent Events

As of May 27, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, no subsequem
events or transactions had ocenrred that would have materially impacted the financial statements as
presented
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99,185,131.54 13,351,311
3,737,312.64 503,080
95,447,818.90 12,848,231
16,883,673
4,871,871
4,446,958
47,476
146,901
1,127,445
6,557,877
163,827
1,488,533
272,631
1.82 245
3.52 474
5.59 752
5.64 924
5,401
3.25 437
0.77 104
2.41 324
4.20 565
5.63 530
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2021 2020
30
12 3,919,186 527,562 539,966 72,685
3,919,186 527,562 539,966 72,685
13 21,969,559 2,957,322 21,209,148 2,854,963
13 405,469 54,580 488,959 65,819
14 33,319,316 4,485,113 34,129,277 4,594,142
26,322,699 3,543,299 12,856,283 1,730,584
82,017,043 11,040,314 68,683,667 9,245,508
16 (17,170,932) (2,311,379)  (18,219,000) (2,452,460)
64,846,111 8,728,935 50,464,667 6,793,049
68,765,297 9,256,497 51,004,633 6,865,734
16 - - (23,651) (3,184)
17 (101,043) (13,601) (626,622) (84,350)
68,664,254 9,242,895 50,354,360 6,778,200
18 11,050,010 1,487,442 11,050,010 1,487,442
8 43,008 5,789 - -
57,571,236 7,749,664 39,304,350 5,290,759
68,664,254 9,242,895 50,354,360 6,778,200
2022 17
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125,752,665 16,927,566 76,184,956 10,255,257
- (103,969,340)  (13,995,313)  (64,867,187)  (8,731,772)
837,398 112,722 927,544 124,857
- - (7,245) (975)
22,620,723 3,044,976 12,238,068 1,647,366
10 (4,353,837) (586,070)  (2,729,498) (367,418)
18,266,886 2,458,906 9,508,570 1,279,949
39,304,350 5,290,759 44,795,780 6,029,960
18,266,886 2,458,906 9,508,570 1,279,949
1 - - (15,000,000) (2,019,150)
57,571,236 7,749,664 39,304,350 5,290,759
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(1)
@i
2021 30 2020 31
18 12
19,837,967 8,839,481
33,177,206 19,062,498
20,548,122 12,201,574
52,189,370 36,081,403

125,752,665 76,184,956
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281,243 196,730
16,773 6,199
2,401,527 1,696,788
151,492 24,598
i} 7,245
261,832 441,911
36,998 24,666
2,290 -
(104,777) (313,990)
(225,177) (108, 450)
(418,684) 266,706
(48,489) (613,554)
2021 30 2020 31
18 12
30,876,675 17,473,977
4,311,786 2,443,109
1,365,527 160,362
1,424,573 876,477
37,978,561 20,953,925
2021 30 2020 31
18 12
24 23
13 14
25 24
62 61
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2,653,608 1,611,692
73,846 44,906
1,196,335 502,143
3,923,789 2,158,740
2020
2020
2020
2017 2018 2019 2020
447,662 2020 173,535
2025 7
100%
100%
%
2020
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43,008
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2,286,003 2021 30
2020 2020 1,910,985
2,117,269 2020 1,861,870
345,654 2020 182,490
4,035,312 2020 1,356,598
452,641 2020 194,071
1,424,573 2020 876,477
2021 30 2020
10
2021 30 2020 31
18 12
4,063,865 2,482,332
159,535 309,818
46,948 (33,486)
4,270,348 2,758,664
83,490 (29,166)

4,353,837 2,729,498
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22,620,723 12,238,068
19 2020 19 4,297,937 2,325,233
15,871 29,211
159,535 309,818
46,948 (33,486)
(263,299) 135,028
13,355 (7,140)
83,490 (29,166)
4,353,837 2,729,498
132,811 356,148 488,959
(290, 439) 206,949 (83,490)
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466,377 4,492 100,861 136,457 3,875,970 4,584,157
89,119 - - - 3,753,201 3,842,320
(235,472) - (2,198) - (3,785,151) _(4,022,821)
320,024 4,492 98,663 136,457 3,844,020 4,403,656
270,933 2,006 55,212 - 3,716,040 4,044,191
169,297 1,348 37,426 - 252,739 460,810
(233,182) - (2,198) - (3,785,151) _(4,020,531)
207,048 3,354 90,440 - 183,628 484,470
112,976 1,138 8,223 136,457 3,660,392 3,919,186
195,444 2,486 45,649 136,457 159,930 539,966

8,222
45,220
2021 30 2020 31

13,886,928 13,069,845

7,264,550 6,818,647

209,246 286,763

608,835 1,033,893

21,969,559 21,209,148

6,200,000 2020 6,100,000

2022 28 SOFR
10
35,260 2020 42,579
405,469 2020 488,959
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2021 30 2020 31
2,208,475 3,503,823
12,626 34,949
5,349,166 3,827,531
9,600,665 10,852,697
17,170,932 18,219,000
- 23,651

23,651
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2021 30 2020 31
12,626 34,949
- 23,651
12,626 58,600
2020
10 2020 11
10
30 10 11
101,043 2020 599,055
2021 30
2021 30
2021 30 2020 31

2019 626,622 1,623,200

24,332 (48,101)

(549,910) (948,477)

30 2020 31 101,044 626,622

2021 30 2020 31
100,010
100,010 100,010 100,010
10,950,000
10,950,000 10,950,000 10,950,000
11,050,010 11,050,010
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED 20
Statement of financial position as at 30 September 2021
Registered No. 2479672

Note 30 September 31 March
2021 2020
5 5
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible asseis 12 3,919,185 339,966
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 3,919,186 539,966
CURRENT ASSETS
DEBTORS: amourts falling due within one year 13 21,969,559 21,209,148
DEBTORS: amounts falling due after more than one year 13 405 469 488,959
Investments 14 33319316 34,120277
Cash at bank and in hand 6,322,659 12,856,283
82,017,043 68,683,667

CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one yoar 15 {17,170,932) (18,219,000}
MNET CURRENT ASSETS 64,846,111 50,464,667
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 68,765 207 51,004,633
CBEDITORS: amounts falling due after more than one year 18 - (23,651)
Provisions for liabilities 17 (101,043) (626,622)
NET ASSETS 68,664,254 NEﬂEW
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 18 11,050,010 11,050,010
Equity reserve & 43 008 -
Retained camings 57,571,236 39,304,350
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 68,664,254 50,354,360

The notes on pages 21 1o 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 19 to 38 were approved for issue by the board and signed om its behalf

DocuSigred by
[.,mm_m.m ............. M. Zelouf Date: January 17, 2022
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of income and retained earnings
for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021

Registered No. 2479672

Tumever

Admiristrative expenses

Inierest receivable and similar income
Interest payuble and similer oxpeoscs
Profit before taation

Tux on profit

Profit for the financial period

Retuined eumings al the beginning of the periad
Profit for the fimncial period
Dividends

Retuined camings ot the cod of the period

Hose

4
5,6,7.89
5

5

(1]

All amounts are in respect of continuing activities.

19
18 moath period ended 12 month period ended
30 September 2021 31 March 2020

s 5

125,752,665 76,184,956

(103,969,340) (64,867,187)

237,308 927,544

- (7.245)

22,520,723 12,238,068

(4,353,837) (2,T29,498)

18,266,886 9,508,570

39,304,350 44,795,780

18,266,885 9,508,570

" {15,000,000)

S7571,136 39,304,350

The notes on pages 21 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 21

1. Gemeral information

Western Assct Management Company Limited (“the Company™), is an investment manager, principally
providing investment managemeni services to both external clients and io clients of its affiliates. The
Company is suthorised by the FCA and makes its Pillar 3 disclosures on its website
www, westornasset.com.

The Company is 8 company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled under the laws of England
and Wales. The address of its principal place of business is 10 Exchange Square, Primrose Street,
London EC2A 2EN, The ultimate parent company is Franklin Resources, Ing. (“Parent™),

2. Statement of compliamce

These individual financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, incloding Financial Reporting Standard 102, “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ircland”™ (“FRS 102"), and the Companics Act 2006,

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

() Basis of preparation
These separate financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the recognition of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical expericnce and other factors, including expectations of future cvents that are belicved to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting sccounting estimates will, by definition
uldﬂmuqmlﬂ::rﬂlutﬂduﬁudmmﬂh During the period, there were no material critical accounting

FRS lﬂzuljumnmﬂifymgmuroumdmlmn exemptions, subject to certain conditions,
which have been complied with.

The Company has taken advantage of the following exemptions:

(i} from disclosing a reconciliation of the number of shares ouisianding at the beginning and end
of the period;

(ii) from preparing a statement of cash flows, on the basis that it is a qualifying entity and the
statement of cash flows included in the conmsolidated financial statements of the Parent
includes the Company's cash flows;
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 22

3. Summary of significant sccounting policies (comtinued)

(iii) from disclosing details of financial instruments, on the basis that it is a qualifying entity and
disclosure of financial instruments such as trade receivables and trade payables are included
in the consolidated financial statements of the Parent;

(iv) from disclosing details of certain share-based payment arrangements required under FRS 102
section 26 in respect of shares based payments of the Parent issued fo employees of the
Company by the Parent which are presented in those financial statements;

(v) from disclosing the Company's key management personne] compensation in total, as required
by FRS 102 paragraph 33.7.

(c) Functional currency
The functional and reporting eurrency of the Company is US Dollar, as the Directors consider this
to be the most appropriate currency for the Company*s business.

(d) Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into US Dollars at the balance sheet
date. Transactions during the period expressed in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars
at the rate of exchange ruling in the month in which they occur. Any foreign exchange differences
are laken 1o the Staternent of [ncome and Retained Earnings in the year in which they arise,

Foreign curtency non-monetary assels are carried in the balance sheet translated into US Dollars at
historic rates of exchange. This is determined using the month end rate of exchange for the month
in which they were acquired.

The £/ US Dollar rate used at the balance sheet date is 1347250 (2020: 1.239839)
The average rate for the balance sheet for the year was 1.372816 (2020: 1.270759)

{e) Reveoue recognition
Turmnover or revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and

represents the amount receivable for investment management services rendened, net of any rebates
allowed and value added taxes. Revenue in respect of performance fees is recognised in the
financial statements at the end of the related comtractual performance period when all performance
criteria have been met and the outcome of the transaction can be measured reliably.

{f) Employee benefits
The Company provides a range of benefits to employees, incloding annual bonus arrangements,
paid holiday arrangements and defined contribution pension plans.

(i) Short Term Bencfits
Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are
recognised as an cxpense in the period in which the service is received.

(i) Incentive Plans
The Company operates an Employec Benefit Trust (“EBT™) as part of the owverall
remuneration strategy for employees. Annually, a bonus award, as determined by the
Company, may be paid into the EBT, Where the EBT is considered to remain under the control
of the Company, the assets and liabilities of the EBT are included in the Company's financial
statements until they become fully vested and are paid to the relevant employees. See Notes 7
and 8 for farther detadl.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 23

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (comtinued)
{f)

(ii) Jrcentive Plans (continued)
The Company has set up a Group Personal Pension Plan, which is a defined contribution
scheme and is administered by a third party. Contributions o the pension scheme are charped
to the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings. See Note 9 for further details.

(iil) Amnual Bonus Plan
The Company operates an annual bonus plan for employees. An expense is recognised in the
Statement of Income and Retained Eamings when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation to make payments under the plan as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

(iv) Share Based Payments
The Company has accounted for share-based payments in line with FRS 102 as equity settled
transactions. The recharge from the Parent is recorded as an intercompany payable position,
with a corresponding charge in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings as services are
rendered.

() Taxation
Taxation expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting
pericd. Tax is recognised in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings.
Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted.

(1) Current Tax
Current tax 1s the amount of corporation tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year
or prior years, Tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the period end.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax refurns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to imterpretation. It cstablishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities,

(ii) Deferred Tax
Dieferred tax arises from timing differences. These timing differences arise from the inclusion
of income and expenses in lax assessmenis in periods different from those in which they ane
recognised in financial statements,

Deeferred tax is recognised on all timing differences at the reporting date. Unrelieved tax losses

and other deferred tax assets are oaly recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax lisbilities or other future taxable profits.
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WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 24

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (comtinued)

(i) Deferred Teoe (contimued)
Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the period end and that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

(h) Tangible fixed assets
The cost of tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost, including any incidenial expenses of
acquisition. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the tangible fixed assets on a straight
ling basis over their expected cconomic lives. The principal annual rates used for the purpose are:

IT & Communications equipment 33%
Office equipment 20% - 33%

Depreciation is charged on &8 monthly basis and a full month's charge is made in the month
following acquisition.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the remaining life of the relevant lease. Depreciation
for artwork is not provided as no diminution of its value is expected.

) Dividends
Dividends and other distributions to the Company's shareholder are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which the dividends and other distributions are approved by
the board of direciors. These amounts are recognised in the Statement of Income and Retained
Eamings.

() Investments
The Company’s investment in the EBT and Western Asset Liguidity Funds ple (“WALF™) are
current assel invesiments and are siated at fair valee. Changes in fair value ane meognised as fair
value adjustments through the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafis.

(1) Leased assets
At inception the Company assesses agreements that transfer the right to use assets, The assesament
considers whether the arangement is, or contains, a lease based om the substance of the
arrangement. See Note 19 for further details.

(1) Finance leaved asrets
Leases of assets that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are
classified as finance leases, Finance leases are capitalised at commencement of the lease as
asscts at the fair valus of the leased asset, Incremental direct costs, incurred in negotiating and
arranging the lease, are included in the cost of the asset.

Assets are depreciated owver the shorter of the Jease term and the estimated useful life of the
asset. Assets are assessed for impairment at each reporting date. The capital element of lease

obligations is recorded as a liability on inception of the arrangement.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (comtinued)

(iiy Operating leased assets
Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating
leases, Payments under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Income and Retained

Earnings on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

{iii) Lease incentives
Incentives received to enter into an operating lease are credited to the Statement of Income
and Retained Earnings, to reduce the lease expense, on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

(m) Eipancial instruments
The Company has chosen to adopt Sectons 11 and 12 of FRS 102 i mespect of fnancial
instruments.

Section 11 (Basic Financial Instrumenis) and Section 12 {Cther Financial Instrumenis) were issucd
under FRS 102 and provide guidance for recognising, derecognising, assessing impairment, and
measuring and disclosing financial instruments. Section 11 applics to basic financial instruments,
such as trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, bank loans,
intercompany payables and common and preference shares, Section 12 applies to other more
complex financial instroments and transactions such as derivatives, including currency firtures and
forward foreign exchange contracts,

Basic financial instruments are generally recognised at cost or amortised cost.

Derivatives are complex financial instruments and are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.

in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in Statement of Income and Retained Earnings as
appropriate. The Company has no derivatives at 30 September 2021.

(n) Brovisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably,

Prowisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using & pre-tax rate that reflects curment market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. See Note 17 for firrther details,

Contingent liabilities arise as a result of past events when (i) it 1s not probable that there will be an
outflow of resources of that the amount eannot be reliably measured at the reporting date or (i) the
cxistence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of uncertain future events not
whaolly within the Company's control. Contingent habilities are disclosed in the financial
statements unless the probability of an cutflow is remote or the outflow is immaterial.
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4. Turmover

Tumover, which is stated net of value added tax, represents the amounts receivable for the management
of investment portfolios for clients and an allocation of tumnover from the Company's affiliates where
the Company is responsible for servicing the client.

The geographical location of the clients is analysed as follows:

18 month period ended 12 monith period ended

30 Septernber 2021 31 March 2020

5 5
United Kingdom 19,837,967 8,830,481
United States of Amerca 33,177,206 19062498
Europe {txchding United Kingdom) 20,548,122 12,201,574
Rest of the World 52189370 36,081,403

125,752 665 76,184,956
5. Operating profit

18 morth period ended 12 month period ended
30 Septernber 2021 31 Migrch 2020

5 ]
The operating profit is stated after charging  (crediting) ©
Auditors' remuncration - audil services 241,243 196,730
Auditors' remuneration - CASS andit 16,773 6,199
Lease of office premises 1,401,527 1,696,788
Loss on foreign exchange 151,492 24,598
Interest payable and similar charges - 7245
Depreciation - on tangibde owned fixed asscts 261,832 441911
Depreciation - on tangible fived assets held under finance leases 36,598 24 666
Gain on disposal of tangible owned [xed sasets 2200 -
Inccrest recchvabile (104,777) {313,990)
Income from current assel vestments
- Realised gains - EBT (225,177 {108,450)
- Unrealised gnin (418,684) 266,706

- Gains on imvestments - WALF {48,489) {613,554)

282/342



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOO000DO000DO000DO000DO000DO00nnoE24736)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DocuSign Erwnlopa ID; 67584 3DA-E216-4FEA-AT2C-BRAECDI0TROT

WESTERN ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED
Motes to financial statements for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 27

6. Imformation regarding directors and employees

Employment costs incurred by the Company and included in administrative expenses comprise:

18 month peclod ended 12 month period ended

30 Septemnber 2021 31 March 2020
£ £
Wages and salaries 30,876,675 17473977
Sociel securiy costs 4,311,786 2443109
Restricted stock 1,365,527 160,362
Other pension costs 1,424,573 876477
37,978,561 20,953,925
The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) employed by the Company
during the year was:
18 month peried ended 12 month period ended
30 September 2021 31 March 2020
By sctivity
Partfobio management L 23
Marketing & client services 13 14
Administration 25 24
&2 ]

Aggregate directors' emoluments related to the highest paid director are as follows:

18 month pericd ended 12 month period ended

30 September 2021 31 March 2020
£ £
imolments 2,653,608 1,611,692
Pension contribution 3,846 44,906
Employee deferrad benafis 1,196335 502143

3933 ThY 158740

Retirement benefits are accruing to 1 (2020: 1) director under a defined contribution scheme, During the
period, no share options were exercised (2020: nil).

The emoluments of the other 2 directors (2020: 2) are paid by the Parent or other group companies which
make no recharges to the Company. These two directors are employees and / or directors of the Parent
and / or 2 number of fellow subsidiaries and it is not possible to make an accurale apportionment of their
emoluments in respect of the Company. Accordingly, the above details include no emoluments in respect
of these two directors.

Additionalty, during the year 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 EDIP schemes partially vested and a cash
amount of $447,662 (2020: $173,535) was paid by the Company to the highest paid director.
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7. Share-based payments

During the period, and as a result of the change in ownership to Franklin Resources, Inc., the share-
bascd award programme under Legg Mason, Inc. restricted stock unit plan was replaced by Franklin
Resources, Inc. restricled stock unit plan.

The Parent issucs restricted stock units to certain employees and 10026 vesting will oocur in July
2025 if certain conditions are met. The employee must be in continnous employment with the
Compeny and performance period revemues mmust exceed the performance threshold. Should
performance pericd revenues be less than the performance threshold but more than five times the
base annual net revennes, vesting will occur on a pro-rata basis subject to maximum vesting at
100% and a minimum of (96, Ownership of the restricted stock umits are transferred to the employee
once vested.

8. Incentive plans

The Company has one active EBT for the cmployee deferred incentive plan,

The trustess appointed to “The Western Asset Management Compamy International Employes
Deferred Incentive Plan™ (“EDIP™) are “Intertrust Group™.

There s no cash balance in the current year (2020: $0) held in the EBT. Investments held by the
EBT are disclosed in Note 14.

During the period, awards made from the Legg Mason, Inc. restricted stock unit plan were fully
settled in cash as a result of the change in ownership to Franklin Resources, Inc. and resulted in an
cquity reserve of $43,008. These awards vsually vest between one and four years but were
accelerated due fo the acquisition by Franklin Templeton. The expense related to the awards and
any gains or losses associated with them are recorded in the year in which the awards vest. The
method of settlement of the awards either in cash or the Pareni’s issued restricted stock is at the
discretion of the Western Asset compensation committee,

EDIP awards totalling $2.286,003 were made to senior employees attributable 1o the financial
period ended 30 September 2021 {in May 2020, EDIP awards made for the 2020 financial year:
$1,910,985).

An sccrual for awerds totalling $2,117,269 (2020: $1,861,870) is included in these financial
statements, and this total amount will be contributed to the EDIP, In addition, $345,654 (2020:
$182,490) has been provided in respect of employer's national insurance payable on these awards.

The expense recorded in the Statement of Income and Retained Eamings for the EDIP is $4,035,312
{2020: $1,356,958) and the employer's national insurance on this amounts to $452,641 (2020:
£194,071).

9. Pension
The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The scheme is a Group Personal
Pension Plan which is run and administered by Scoftish Widows, an unrelated third party.

The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the Company to the fund and
amounted to $1,424.573 (2020; $B76,477). At 30 September 2021 there were no pension
contributions in arrears (2020: $0).
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10. Tax on profit
a. Tax on profit
18 month period ended 12 month period ended
30 September 2021 31 March 2000
5 5
Current period tax charge 4,063,865 2482332
Adjstments in respect of prior periods 159,535 309818
Adjmtments in respect of FX difference of prior periods 46948 (33,486)
Current period tax charge 4,270,348 2,758,664
Defirred taxation - current period timing differences 83490 (29,166)
Total tax o profits 4,353,837 2729498

b. Reconcilintion of tax charge

Tax assessed for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 is higher than (2020 higher than) the
glandard rate of carporation tax in the UK for the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021 19%

(2020: 19%)

Profi before taxation

Expected tax at standard rate of 19% (2020; 19%6)

Effects of :

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Adpstments in respect of prior periods

Adjstments in respect of FX difference of prior periods
Adstments for reduction i corporntion tax rate on timing

differences

Adjstment in respect of current period tax charge

Deferred tax tems
Total period tax charge

18 month period ended 12 month period ended

30 September 2021 31 March 2020
5 5

ZE0TH 12238068

4297937 2325233

15871 29211

159,535 309,818

46,548 {33.486)

(263,299) 135,028

13,355 (7,140)

83,490 (29,166)

4353 837 2729498

The current period tax charge has not been adjusted by group relief from other group companies as no

group rclicf has been granted.
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10. Tax on profit {(comtinued)

&. Deferrad tax
Fixed Assets Employee Total
remuneration
5 5 L3
Asset as at 1 April, 2020 132811 356,148 488 959
Current period (credif)/charge (290,439) 206,949 (83,490)
Asset as at 30 September, 2021 (157,628) 563,097 405 469

The timing differences related to: (i) accelerated capital allowances on fixed assets: and (ii) the issuance
of deferred compensation awards to employees on which a corporate tax deduction can be taken when
the deferred compensation vests and is distributed to participants.

The Directors consider that it is more likely than not that there will be sufficicnt taxable profits in the
future such as io realise the deferred 1ax asset and therefore the asset has been recognised in these
fingncial statements.

d. Tax rate changes

The tax rate for the current year is the same as the prior year as there was no change in the UK
Corporation tax rate, which remained at 19% since 1 April 2017, On the basis that the UK Corporation
tax will remain at 199 from 1 October 2021, the Company’s deferred tax balances have been effected
at the same rate.

11. Dividends

No dividend was declared and paid during the 18 month period ended 30 September 2021. In the pricr
vear ended 31 March 2020, a dividend of £15 million was paid to the former immediate parcnt entity,
Western Asset Management (Cayman) Holdings Limited, equating to $149.99 per ordinary share,
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12. Tangible assets

Communications — Fumiture DOffice. Lensehold

5 5 § ] 5 5
Coxt
As 1 1 April 2020 466,377 4492 100,861 136457 3ETSI0 4584157
Additions 8,113 - - - 3,753,201 3842320
Disposals (235477) = (2,198) (3785,151)  (4,022,821)
As at 30 September 2001 320,024 4492 53,663 136457 384000 4403656
Accumulated depreciation
Ag st | April 2020 27,933 2,006 55212 3,716,040 4,044,191
Cherge for the financial 169,297 1,348 374X =T 450,810
year
Disposals (233,182) - (%198) (3,785,151)  (4,020,531)
As at 30 September 2021 207,048 3,354 90,440 183,628 484,470
Net book value
30 Sepiember 2021 112,976 1,138 82X 136457 3,650,392 3919,185
31 March 2000 195,444 2485 45549 136,457 159,920 539,966

The net book value of tangible assets inclodes an amount of $8,222 (2020: $45,220) in respect of office

equipment held under finance leases.
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13. Debtors
30 Septemiber 31 March
2021 2020
£ s

Amourts faling due within one year ;

Trade debtors 13,886,528 13,065,845

Amounts owed by group underiakings 7,264,550 6,818,647

Other debtors 209,246 286,763

Prepayments and accrued income 608,835 1,033,893

21,969,559 21,209,148

Amounts cwed by group undertakings includes a $6.2 million (2020: $6.1 million) loan to an affiliate.
The loan bears interest at 6-month average US Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus 25bps,
with a maturity date of May 28, 2022, The remaining balance is unsecured, interest free, has no fixed
date of repayment and is repayable on demand,

The Company makes available to all employees interest-free season ticket loans which are repayable
by ten monthly instalments. The balance of $35,260 (2020: $42,579) is included in other debtars.

Amounts falling doe after more than one year from Deferred Tax is $405,469 (2020: $488,959). Seo
Note 10 for further details.

14. Investments

The Company has an investment of $5,333,261 (2020: §3,267,189) in EDIP. This plan is invested ina
range of investment funds managed by Western Assel.

During the year, the EBT generated realised gaing of $225,177 (2020: $108,450), and unrealised gain
of $418,684 (2020 lass of $266,706).

The Company has an investment in the US Dollar fund in the WALF series, The WALF fund is a highly
rated money-market fond and has same day liguidity. The principal investment objective of the fund is
the preservation of capital. This investment is camied at fair value and at the balance sheet date was
$27,986,055 (2020: $30,862,088). The share class in which the Company is invested, is a no-fiee share
class, thereby maximising the Company's return. The Company provides investment management
services to the fund.

The Company classifies its financial assets within the ERT, which are shares and other variable-yield
sccurities at fair value through Statement of Income and Retained Earnings.

The Company classifies its financial assets within WALF at fair value throngh Statement of Income
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14, Invesiments (contimeed)

Financial assets designated at fair value through Statement of Income and Retained Famings at
inception are those thal are manaped and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis.
Information about these financial assets is provided internally on a fair value basis to the Company's
key management personnel. The Company's strategy is to invest in funds, designated at fair value
through Statement of Income and Retained Eamings upon initial recognition.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based on quoted bid prices on the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. As the funds
invested in by the Company are priced daily based on net asset value (NAV) with subscriptions and
redemptions occurring at NAY, the funds are considered 1o be measured at a quoted price in an aclive
market.

Net gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of fair-valved financial assets, are presented
in the Statement of Income and Retained Earnings, together with related interest and dividend income
within “Interest receivable and similar income™ in the period in which they arise.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted bid prices at the
balance sheet date and these securities are included in (2).

The Company closely monitors the valuation of assets in markets that may become less liquid.
Determining whether & market is active requires the exercise of judgment and is determined based on
facts and circumstances of the market for the invesiment being measured. The Company does not hold
investments where the investments have no active market.

The Company follows the FRS 102 hierarchy 1o estimate fair value:

(a) The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market.

(b) When quoted prices are unavailable, the price of a recent transaction for an identical asset
provides evidence of fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic
circumstances or a significant lapse of time since the transaction took place.

{c) If the market for the asset is not active and recent transactions of an identical asset on their own
are not a good cstimate of fair value, an entity estimates the fair value by using a valuation
technique.
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14, Investments (contimued)

The tables below present investments carried at fair value.

2021 (8) {b) {c) Total

Fair value through profi and loss $ L3 L3 5

- WALF 27,986,055 - - 27.986,055

-EBT 5,333,261 5,333,261
Total assets 313319316 . . 33319316

2020 () @) (©) Total

Fair value through profit and loss 5 5 5 ]

- WALF 30,862,088 - - 30,862,088

-EBRT 3267189 3.267,189
Total assets 129277 = - 34129277

During the period ended 30 September 2021 and year ended 31 March 2020, the Company did not hold
investments categorised as (b) or (c) and correspondingly there were no transfers involving (b) or (¢).

15. Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Companys activities expose it to a variety of financial risk: market risk (including cumrency risk,
fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and lignidity risk. The
Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and secks fo minimise potential adverse effects on the Company”s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by an internal risk management department adhering to principles and
policies approved by the board of directors, The Compamy has written principles for overall risk
management, a3 well as written policies eovering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, inlerest
rate risk, credit risk use of derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liguidity.
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15. Financial risk management {continued)
(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Company, being US Dollar functional, and operating internationally, is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily to Sterling, Euro and Yen.
Foreign exchange risk arises from fiture commercial transactions and recognised assets and
Liabilities which are denominated n a currency that is not the éntity’s functional curréncy. The
estimated fair value of derivative instruments reflects the estimated amount the Company wounld
receive or pay in an arm's length transaction. The amount is determined wsing quoted prices
from independent third parties. During the year the Company mitigated its foreign exchange risk
by the use of derivative instruments administered by an affiliate, specifically currency forward
contracts. During the year, the Company made a foreign exchange loss of $151,492 (2020: loss
of $24,398).

(i) Price risk
The Company’s investments held by the EBT are diversified in accordance with the guidelines
of the EBT. As all investmenis are held by the EBT, the risk and reward of mvestment returns
are borne entirely by the EBT's participants, the Company i not exposed to price risk relating
to its EBT. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk. The Company is indirectly
exposed price risk as revenues may fluctuate based on assets under management, interest rates
and the returns of the fixed income markets,

(b} Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on 8 Company-wide basis. Credit risk ariscs from cash deposits with banks
and financial institutions, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments, credit exposures to
clients from outstanding fee receivables and loans made to group Companies. All the Company's
with a Moody's rating of at least Baal, or with a Standard and Poor's rating of at least BBB+. The
Company asscsscs the credit quality of clicots, taking into account their financial statements,
regulatory position, past experience and other factors. Intercompany loans, including existing
lpans, may be considered only after assessing the impact projected cash flows under stress testing
scenariod and ensuring the Company”’s minimum liquidity tolerance levels are maintained.

(c) Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that cash may not be available at a reasonable cost to pay obligations when
due. The Company performs monthly cash liquidity monitoring against set limits to ensure funds
are available to meet such requirements.

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Company's cnly significant interest-bearing asset is cash, the Company's income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
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16. Creditors
30 September 31 March
2021 200
$ -1
Amounts owed to group undertakings 2208475 3,503,823
Obligations under finance leases 12,626 34,949
Texation and social security 5.349,166 3,827,531
Accrunk and deferred income: 9,600,665 10,252,697
17170932 18215,000
30 September 31 March
201 200
5 -1
Amounts falling doe after more than one year:
Obligations under finance leases - 23551
- 23,651

The net finance lease obligations to which the Company is committed are:

30 Scptember 3] March
2021 2020
L4 £
In one year or less 12,6826 34,49
Between cne and two years - 23651

S . — ]

The total value of finance leases repayable by instalments, any part of which falls due after more than
five years is nil {2020: nil).

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and
are repayable on demand.
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17. Provisions for liabilities

The Company is a tenant of 10 Exchange square and a new lease was signed in April 2020 to occupy
the 11th floor, In the prior year and under the old lease, the Company had vacant office space on two
floors and entered into sub-letting arrangements which ceasad when the new leass became effective.

The new lease commenced on 1% May 2020 with a term of 10 years. There is a clause in the tenancy
agreement relating to dilapidation work which must be underiaken before the property is vacated. The
amounts provided are based on the current estimate of future costs determined on the basis of the present
condition of the property.

For the period ended 30 Sﬂptmn’n-:rzﬂzl a provision of $101,043 (2020: $599,055) has been made for
estimated costs of the dilapidation repairs pertaining to Jevel 11 at 10 Exchange Square and pertaining
to level 10 in respect of the prior year. At 30 September 2021, the dilapidations provision of level 10
was written down in full as the obligation to retumn the property to its original condition was released by
the landlord. The decrease in provision is fully recognised in the Statement of Income and Retained
Earnings during the period ended 30 September 2021.

30 September 31 March
2021 2000
H s
Carrying amount at 1 April 2020 and 2019 (26,622 1,623200
Amounts reclassified from accruak and deferred incoms = -
Amounts charged{(utfsed) during the period 24,332 (48,101}
Amounts released during the period (549.910) (34847T)
Bakance st 30 September 2021 and 31 March 2020 101,044 626622
18. Called up share capital
30 Seplember 31 March
2021 2030
] 5
Issued, called up and fully peid
100,010 {2020: 100,010) crdinary shares of S1 each 100,010 100,010
10,950,000 (2020 10,950,000) redeemakie preference shares of $1 10,950,000 10,950,000
each
11,050,010 11,050,010

The preference shares carry no rights to participate in the profits of the Company, and no voting rights.
The Company may redeem the prefercnce shares at par, at any time subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006. On redemption, and at the discretion of the Directors, the preference shares may
be converted to ordinary shares of similar par value.
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19. Financial commitments

The Company had the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

for each of the following periods:
30 September 31 March
201 2m0
¥ 5

Land and buildings payments dos
Mot lter than one year 1,235,173 -
Later than one vear and not later than fve vears 4,540,693 =

6,175,866 =

The Company previcusly occupied office space across multiple floors, which expired in March 2020.
[mmediately thereafter, the Company signed a 10-year lease to occupy the 11® floor, which was effective
May 2020, and under the terms of which the Company has an initial rent-free period to 31 Jamary 2022,
The rent payable under the lease will be subject to review in May 2025,

Provision for rental payable was made in the financial statements during the rent-firee period, and this is
being released to the Statement of Income and Retained Eamnings so as to spread this benefit eventy over
the period of the lease.

20. Related party disclosures

The Company is exempt from disclosing related party transactions with other companies that are wholly
owned within, and reported on the consolidated financial staternents of, the group.

Consolidated financial statements of' the group, in which the Company is included are publicly available,
as disclosed in Mote 21.

21. Controlling parties

The immediate parent undertaking is Legg Mason Global Holdings Ltd.

The ultimate controlling party is Franklin Resources, Inc., a Company incorporated and registered in the
United States of America and listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

The cnly group into which the Company's results are consolidated is the group that is headed by Franklin
Resources, [nc.. Copies of the consolidated financial staternents of Franklin Resources, Inc. are available
from One Franklin Parkway, San Mateo, CA, 94403, United States.

Further information can be found on the Franklin Resources, Inc. website "www.franklinresources.com"
under "Tnvestor Relations™.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of WA High Income
Corporate Bond (Multi- Currency) Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of WA High Income Corporate Bond
(Multi- Currency) Fund (a sub-trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds) (the “ Fund” ), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments, as
of March 31, 2021, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets for
the year then ended.

Management®s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on ourjudgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal
control relevant to the Fund"s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund®s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, inall material
respects, the financial position of WAHigh Income Corporate Bond (Multi- Currency) Fund as of
March 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and changes in its net assets for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

May 27, 2021
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Report of independent auditors

To BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of WA High
Income Corporate Bond (Multi-Currency) Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of WA High Income Corporate Bond
(Multi- Currency) Fund (a sub-trust of Western Asset Offshore Funds) (the "Fund™), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the schedule of investments, as
of March 31, 2022, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets for
the year then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial
statements™).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Fund as of March 31, 2022, and the results of its
operations and changes in its net assets for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors” responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Fund and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial
statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors” report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund"s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

May 26, 2022
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Independent auditors®™ report to the members of Western Asset Management Company Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion, Western Asset Management Company Limited"s financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the company®"s affairs as at 30 September 2021
and of its profit for the 18 month period then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “ The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” , and
applicable law); and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report and financial
statements (the “ Annual Report” ), which comprise: the Statement of financial position as
at 30 September 2021; the Statement of income and retained earnings for the period then
ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs
(UK)” ) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in
the Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC"s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the company®s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least

twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors® use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is
not a guarantee as to the company®s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern
are described in the relevant sections of this report.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the
financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. ITf we identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors® Report, we also considered whether the
disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us
also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors®™ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information
given in the Strategic report and Directors® Report for the period ended 30 September 2021
is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic
report and Directors®™ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors® responsibilities in respect of the
financial statements, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors® report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.
We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal
risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to breaches of UK regulatory
principles, such as those governed by the Financial Conduct Authority, and we considered the
extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We
also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management®s incentives and
opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of
override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to manipulation
of financial data to present more favourable financial results through posting inappropriate
journal entries. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

Reviewing correspondence with the Financial Conduct Authority in relation to compliance
with laws and regulations;

Discussions with management, including consideration of known or suspected instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud;

Reviewing relevant meeting minutes, including those of the directors;

Understanding of management®s internal controls designed to prevent and detect
irregularities;

Identification and testing of journal entries, in particular journal entries posted with
unusual account combinations; and

Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature, timing or
extent of our testing;

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely
to become aware of instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not
closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. Also, the
risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for
example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is

located on the FRC"s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditors® report.
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Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company®s
members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
certain disclosures of directors® remuneration specified by law are not made; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Shujaat Khan (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

Date: 17 Jan 2022
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